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In 2016, the overall Chinese economy remained stable, with GDP growth rate keeping at 6.7%. As a result
of the adjustment of industrial structure, proportion for the secondary industry decreased to 39.8%, and
it is a year full of challenges for industrial enterprises. Although foreign markets were slowly recovering,
the economic situation still underwent fluctuation and international trades were improving slowly due to
international politics. In response to the changes at home and abroad, the Group made proper strategic
adjustment according to the actual situations to cater to the market, resulting in a further increase in the
Group’s revenue and profit.
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Chairman’s Statement

1. Overall growth in results of operation

The Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB7,969,773,000
during the year under review, representing an increase of 13.33%
over RMB7,032,486,000 in the previous year; and gross profit
margin increased from 16.62% in the previous year to 20.59%
during the year under review, the highest in the past four years.
Net profit amounted to RMB615,466,000, also the highest since
2013. The Group's silicone business also achieved a turnaround
from loss in the year under review, becoming an important
component of profit growth. During the year under review, the
Group focused on sales and marketing and carried out “100 Open
Days to Customers” campaign to allow customers to learn more
about the Group, strengthen cooperation with them, increase
market share of the Group’s product and highlight the Group'’s
leading position in the industry.
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2.

Adhered to scientific and technological
innovation and accelerated the realization

of “two alternatives”

During the year under review, the Group achieved solid results in
research and development, completed a total of 23 new products
and quality improvement projects, successfully developed
high-strength suspended fine powder series, water treatment
membrane grade PVDF and vinyl MQ silicone resin and other new
products; submitted 37 patents applications, and was granted
approval of 41 patents in the period. The Group’s research and
development expedited made domestic fluorosilicone chemical
industry move toward a higher level.

The level of automation and

informatization greatly improved

In implementing the campaign of “Benchmarking Formosa
Plastics”, the Group built an effective central control system
for production, operation and related processes to carry out
informational and intelligent management so as to control
anomalies, improve production efficiency and ensure production
quality. In the year under review, Dongyue ranked among China'’s
100 pilot intelligent manufacturing model enterprises. On the
supply side, the Group achieved informatization on procurement
and feedback tracking, introduced more promising high-quality
suppliers through online and offline channels. Meanwhile, it
implemented quality member system and other measures to
improve quality and utilization efficiency of materials, equipment
and raw materials, to increase the comprehensive cost advantage
and the market competitiveness of the Group.

Optimized job structure and improved

employee’s welfare

During the year under review, the Group set up a streamlined
and efficient operating mode, by removing redundant posts,
sections, and employees, and streamlined organizational structure
through automation and optimized the human resources. At
the same time, the Group also vigorously improved employee’s
welfare, implemented employee promotion channels and
assessment mechanism. In particular, production line employees’
wages increased by about 10% over the same period last year. In
addition, the Group improved employee’s working environment,
so as to improve employees’ efficiency and morale.
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Chairman’s Statement

Introduced the work of “DuPont Safety
Management”

In the year under review, the Group introduced the DuPont
safety system and established a long-effect safety management
mechanism. The Group and DuPont signed a cooperation
agreement on safety management with DuPont and introduced
the DuPont’s safety management system with an aim to solve the
three major safety management issues, namely process safety,
equipment safety and behavior-based safety. In this way, a long-
effect mechanism for creating intrinsic and long-term safety was
established.

Streamlined the financial process and
optimized the financial supervision system

During the year under review, the Group straightened out
the financial process to prevent the emergence of blind spots
from the processes, and strengthened the financial supervision
to ensure the operation of the financial process. Built on past
experiences, the Group improved the financial system with a more
reasonable process and stricter supervision.

Strengthened the building of cadres’ work
style and created a clean entrepreneurial
team

During the year under review, for promoting leadership team's
ideological understanding, the Group arranged them to visit “The
Road to Revival” and detention center in Beijing, where the team
listened to General Wang Shuzeng's lecture on “Long March Spirit”
and law classes given by public security organs, procuratorial
organs and people’s courts and built a strong compliant and
ethnical bottomline, which would provide strong support and
guarantee in line with ethnic standards for the Group's future
development.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2016 05
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2016 marks the first year of the “13th Five-Year” plan. While making

success in 2016, the Group’s management has made strategic

deployment for 2017:

1.

Make great efforts to improve sales
management

After the market volatility in the transition period of 2016, the
Group in 2017 will further increase sales management, unify
office standards, improve office conditions, and provide one-stop
services. In 2017, the Group will improve the quality of sales team,
reduce redundant offices, clarify and elaborate on the products,
market, industry and assessment, so as to improve the brand'’s
market competitiveness.

Plan the future around “two alternatives”

In 2017, the Group will orientate its R&D efforts around the
“two alternatives”, identify innovation opportunities for fluorine
silicon fine chemicals, special chemicals, high-end fluorosilicone
electronics, pharmaceutical supplies and high-end applications,
establish a new development mode so that the goal of “the high-
end fluorosilicone could replace the traditional materials, and
high-end fluorosilicone products could replace foreign products”
can be achieved.

“Benchmarking DuPont” campaign

In 2016, the Group has introduced the “DuPont Safety Management”
model. In 2017, the Group will fully promote the “Benchmarking
DUPONT" strategy. In terms of safety, the Group will set up a
“DuPont Safety Management” promoting team to raise employee’s
safety awareness through training, and establish a strict safety
assessment mechanism to reduce security risks; in environmental
protection, the Group will set up environmental command center
for implementing strict governance and control on emissions;
in health care, the Group will create a high-level occupational
disease prevention and control center, to provide employees with
good health care.
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Chairman’s Statement

Continue to improve automation and
information system

In 2017, the Group’s MES management system will be fully
completed to effectively guide, coordinate, supervise and provide
service to all activities of the production process to ensure safe,
stable, long-term and efficient production operation, promote
the progress and upgrading of production technology and
improve production efficiency. In the financial aspect, the Group
will build ERP system, and upgrade the existing system, to realize
informatization first in financial accounting.

Further strengthen financial management

In 2017, the Group will continue to improve the financial
management. Under the normal implementation of processes and
supervisions straightened out in 2016, the Group will strengthen
the audit function, so that the audit work will penetrate into a
comprehensive operation. It will strengthen financial control, and
try to report and solve problems once they are found. In addition,
the Group will strictly standardize the execution of the contract
and seal management and implement approval within the limits
of authority. Offenders will be subject to heavier penalties and
called for account.

2017 marks the 30th anniversary of the Group since its entry into

this industry, and it will be a year for the Group to demonstrate its

substantive results. Over the past few years, the Group has made a

multifaceted response to multi-pronged challenges and completed

its transition. While 2017 will be the year to test the results of reforms

over the past few years. After 30 years of development, the Group has

accumulated a large number of development experiences, and honed

a perfect professional team, “Honing gives a sharp edge to a sword,

and bitter cold adds keen fragrance to plum blossom.” The team will

work perseveringly to bring satisfactory returns to the shareholders and

investors in 2017.
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Financial review
Results Highlights

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB7,969,773,000, representing an increase of 13.33%
over RMB7,032,486,000 in the previous year. The gross profit margin
increase to 20.59% (2015: 16.62%) and the operating results margin
was 13.06% (2015: 12.67%). During the year under review, the Group
recorded profit before tax of approximately RMB862,114,000 (2015:
loss before tax of RMB796,717,000), and net profit of approximately
RMB615,466,000 (2015: net loss of RMB680,937,000), while consolidated
profit attributable to the Company’s owners was approximately
RMB588,154,000 (2015: loss of RMB690,479,000). Basic earnings per
share was RMB0.28 (2015: basic loss of RMB0.33). During 2016, the
Group's financial position turned from a loss to profit, which is mainly
attributable to the absence of a one-off asset write-off amounting to
RMB1,478,200,000 which was recorded in 2015 and the increase in
revenue and profit during the year.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HKS$0.10
(2015: HKS0.05) per share to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 31 July 2017.

08 REEBARAE —B-A FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

EEENWED T
Management Discussion and Analysis

Segment Revenue and Operating Results

Set out below is the comparison, by reportable and operating
segments, of the Group's revenue and results for the year ended 31
December 2016 and the year ended 31 December 2015:

HZE2016F128310LLEE BZE015F 1A BIEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

gk XE REnN= Yzs B geRiEx
Operating Operating
Reportable and Results Results
ERRBEDT Operating Segments Revenue Results Margin Revenue Results Margin
ARBTRE AR%WTR ARBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
aa T Polymers 2,187,639 245,119 11.20% 1,952,624 181,247 9.28%
Bi#nE Organic Silicone 1,684,716 81,204 4.82% 1,443,021 (28,873) (2.00%)
FSH| Refrigerants 1,828,048 193,196 10.57% 1,867,578 372,158 19.93%
—E8%k  BAZE  Dichloromethane,
(Ipvc]) Rz Polyvinyl Chloride (“PVC’)
and Liquid Alkali 1,211,244 145,147 11.98% 977,928 54,046 5.53%
G ES Property development 871,162 308,204 35.38% 619,233 200,133 32.32%
Hitp Others 186,964 74,646 39.93% 172,102 18,138 10.54%
one) Consolidated 7,969,773 1,047,516 13.14% 7,032,486 796,849 11.33%
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Analysis of Revenue and Operating Results

During the year under review, the economy of the PRC still grew slowly.
With a shift of the focus of the industrial structure, the secondary
industry’s weight declined and industrial enterprises suffered to certain
extent. However, thanks to the robust development of the tertiary
industry, the downstream market conditions had witnessed a rebound.
During the year under review, the Group had not put much new
capacities into operation due to the uncertainties of future economic
development.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2016 09
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During the year under review, the Group saw improvement in its overall
results by transferring to the development model in a New Normal and
seizing opportunities brought about by the economic recovery in the
second half of the year despite the adjustment of domestic economy.
The Group maintained its market dominance by promoting production
technology, improving product quality, vigorously developing high-end
new products. As a result, a majority of the Group’s operating segments
had seen remarkable growth over the year. Each of fluorine-containing
polymers segment, the organic silicone segment, property development
segment and pichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali segment saw
growth in their results for the year. Although results of the refrigerant
segment decreased as compared with 2015, the Group achieved
growth of its overall results in the year thanks to the substantial growth
of the results of other segments.

Refrigerants

During the year under review, the refrigerant segment’s revenue
was RMB1,828,048,000, representing a slight decrease of 2.12% as
compared with RMB1,867,578,000 in the previous year, accounting for
22.94% of the Group's total revenue (2015: 26.56%); the results of the
segment recorded a profit of RMB193,196,000, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 48.09% (2015: profit of RMB372,158,000). The slight
decrease in the refrigerant segment’s revenue for the year was mainly
due to continued decline in the prices of certain main refrigerants and
the absence of significant increase in the demand on the downstream
markets, which had contributed to the decrease of segment results.
Meanwhile, the price of raw materials also rose, resulting in a significant
reduction in results.

This segment includes the revenues generated from the manufacturing
and sales of traditional refrigerants products (mainly R22), new green
and environmental-friendly refrigerants products (mainly R32, R125,
R134a and R410a and so forth) and other types of refrigerants products
(mainly R142b and R152a and so forth). The Group produces and sells
refrigerants products externally to both domestic and international
customers, and internally (mainly R22 and R410b) for its polymers
segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group has the largest production capacity of R22 in the world.
As the backbone refrigerants product of the Group, R22 is the most
widely used refrigerant in the PRC and is generally used in household
appliances. Apart from that, it has been one of the key raw materials
for the production of the fluoropolymers (i.e. PTFE, HFP and other
downstream fluorinated chemicals) and R125. R125 and R32 are the
key refrigerant mixture for other types of green refrigerants (such
as R410a) to replace R22. Currently, R410a has been the principal
replacing refrigerant which has been widely applied in inverter air
conditioners and other green home appliances. R134a is broadly used
in the refrigeration and air-conditioning systems in automobile air
conditioners, while R152a is another key refrigerant product of the
Group which can also be used as blowing agents, aerosols and cleaning
agents. Apart from the fact that R142b can be used as refrigerant,
temperature controller medium, or intermediates of aviation propellant,
it can also be one of the main raw materials for the production of VDF,

Pursuant to the Montreal Protocol, R22 would be progressively phased
out as a refrigerant by the end of 2030 and would be replaced by other
green refrigerants. The Chinese government has stopped granting
approval to the building up of new R22 capacity. Starting from 2013,
the Chinese government has been enforcing a quota system for the
sales of R22 as a refrigerant or ozone depleting substances for all of
the domestic R22 producers. Subject to such restrictions, the Group's
R22 sales can't grow without limit. After the hike-up upon the initial
implementation of the quotas, the price had dropped to a low early in
the year, and rebound slightly late in the year. Therefore, the R22 price
was not high throughout the whole year, and as a result, R22 products’
revenue decreased by 22.65% to RMB457,124,000 from RMB590,967,000
in the previous year.

A majority of refrigerant products (other than R22) had witnessed
increases in their revenue, mainly including R134a, R410a and so on.
This increase was due to the development of other refrigerants while
R22 was under quota restriction.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2016 11



EEEWED
Management Discussion and Analysis

2RESD FHHR

KEEAN - EREF THMEDBREAEARE
2,187,639,0007C * ¥R & F B HA G &= 12.04% (2015
FAHARBE1,9526240007C) ¢ HE BB ZH
27.45% (2015 &27.77%) ° EFTE LB =
BREBEED M _EF IR - PVCRIER D
HEFREE - REZH RGBT
HEHHHEE BB ARE2451190007T @ BEF
B HA 2 F| A R #5181,247,000 718 K 34.50% ° A4
EERas THRREARED  BHDER
EEOTHBER  ERREFEEMEM - T
MERRKEEMER - MERMBERERILT
B SR EReD FHED S EEE R
o

FR - AEBERASD TMESBHHFPERE
REHEABRANRELR - 35N EEWSHE
BIPVDF ~ FKME E m A B S A 85 = 4 8 BRI
8 - ZEEMMIERBERZYBHERT RITH

o

=
B

ANEERBANSIRMHR2AEETFE (— @RS
) AEBFABATFEEEERASS FHMRER -
WPTFE (— &R EEIVAEESE « B4 Xt
kKt ERBNaKEsamasf - RIEREYE
LAl — IR SnEAc 2R - WalEZE
ML 25 - BREEFRTETE)RHFP
(—EEZEMEHa L TEE  ARELEESZE
FRAEER) o bHh - REERSH 5 ERIRHER22
ERI2bEREEZB T HERA D FIRMA(LE
o (B FEFEP (PTFECR R W#} - DAHFPIR ATFET 4
E G FZANBRESBEE  HEET - 2@
gEE « KR - BFIRKE) « FkM (BIRR - —
BEMRCE  EREEEEMSFEUREM
BTUE - UL EME A RREESE - TZARM
X~ RE - R AEIEE) - PYDF (BAR142b4
EVDF - BIEVDFBRE KA - TZARE

12 REEBERQE —B2-AFFH

Fluoropolymers

During the year, the fluorine-containing polymers segment’s revenue
was RMB2,187,639,000, representing a year-on-year increase of 12.04%
(2015: RMB1,952,624,000), accounting for 27.45% (2015: 27.77%) of
the Group's total revenue. The decrease is mainly due to the excellent
performance of the organic silicone segment and the dichloromethane,
PVC and liquid alkali segment, driving down the percentage of the
segment in terms of revenue. The results of the segment recorded
a profit of RMB245,119,000, representing an increase of 34.5% as
compared with RMB181,247,000 in the same period of the previous
year. The results of fluorine-containing polymers segment for the year
increased significantly due to gradual bottoming out of the market
conditions of the fluorine-containing polymers to normal, year-on-year
rises of prices, increases in the downstream market demand and the
insignificant rise in the price of its raw material.

During the year, prices and sales of the HFP product of the Group’s
fluorine-containing polymers segment have witnessed a significant
increase. In addition, prices and sales of PVDF, FKM and other products
produced by Huaxia Shenzhou also witnessed a significant increase.
The rising trend of various products has driven results of the segment
to grow.

The Group relies on the internal supply of R22 for the production of
TFE (a fluorocarbon), which is used by the Group for the production
of polymers products such as PTFE (a synthetic fluoropolymer with
high level of resistance to temperature changes, electrical insulation,
and aging and chemical resistant that is used as a coating material
and can also be further processed into high-end fine chemicals which
can be widely applied in the chemicals, construction, electrical and
electronics and automotive industries) and HFP (an important organic
fluorochemical monomer, which can be used to produce various
fine chemicals). Furthermore, the refrigerants segment of the Group
supplied R22 and R142b as the raw materials for the production of
a variety of downstream fluoropolymer fine chemicals including FEP
(modified materials of PTFE, produced with HFP added in TFE, mainly
used in the lining for wire insulation layer, thin-walled tube, heat
shrinkable tubes, pumps, valves and pipes), FKM (Fluorine Rubber,
a specialized fluorinated material produced with VDF, HFP and TFE,
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Management Discussion and Analysis

which is mainly used in the fields of aerospace, automotives, machinery
and petro-chemistry because of its superior mechanical property, and
excellent oil, chemical and heat resistance), PVDF (fluorocarbon made
with R142b to produce VDF, mainly used as a fluorine coating resin,
fluorinated powder coating resin and lithium battery electrode binding
material) and VDF, in which Huaxia Shenzhou has been engaging. Other
fluorinated fine chemicals, including PPVE, PSVE, HFPO, formed another
major production category of Huaxia Shenzhou.

At present, the Group is accelerating implementation of the “two
alternatives” policy, while the fluorine-containing polymers segment
is one important business segment determined by the Group for
implementing this policy. Therefore, the fluorine-containing polymers
segment still adhered to conducting aggressive research and
development, successfully developed high-strength suspended fine
powder series, PVDF for water treatment membrane and other new
products, and completed a number of research and development

projects to improve product quality and performance.

Organic Silicone

During the year, the organic silicone segment’s revenue grew by
16.75% to RMB1,684,716,000 from RMB1,443,021,000 in the previous
year, accounting for 21.14% (2015: 20.52%) of the Group's total revenue.
The segment recorded revenue of RMB81,204,000, making a turnaround
from a loss of RMB28,873,000 in the previous year. During the year, the
market conditions of silicone improved significantly. Meanwhile, the
Group's organic silicone production technology was also improved,
resulting in remarkable growth of the results of the Group'’s silicone
segment which saw its first profit since 2014, making great contribution
to the growth of the Group’s overall results.

Speaking by product of the segment, the proportion of simple DMC
sales revenue dropped significantly, as contrast to a greater share
of products such as 107 Room Temperature Vulcanizate and Raw
Vulcanizate that require higher technology, driving up the results of the
organic silicone segment.
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This segment mainly includes the production and sales of DMC
(upstream organic silicone intermediates that are used as raw materials
to produce deep proceeded mid-stream and downstream silicone
products, such as silicone oils, silicone rubber and silicone resins),
107 Silicone Rubber, Raw Vulcanizate and Gross Rubber (collectively
referred to as “Silicone Rubbers”, deep proceeded silicone rubber
products, where Raw Vulcanizate is a key raw material for producing
Gross Rubber), and other by-products and other high-end downstream
products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicone Oils. Named as “Industrial
MSG”, organic silicone is widely applied in military, aviation, automotive,
electronic, construction and other industries, mainly in the form of
additives, treatment chemicals stabilizers, lubricants and sealants and
are a key ingredient in industrial processes. The Group initially produces
silicone monomers with silicone powder and internally generated
chloromethane and further processes them to become silicone
intermediates (mainly DMC), with certain portion of which the Group
produces Silicone Rubbers and other organic silicone products). The
Group can also be able to produce and generate other by-products and
high-end downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicone Oils
through its production processes.

Growth of the segment’s results for the year was credited to the
breakthroughs made in the segment’s research and development. The
organic silicone segment of the Group has always been vigorously
improving production technology, product quality and development of
high-end new products. During the year, the segment developed Vinyl
MQ Silicone Resin and other new products, and obtained a number of
technical patents, laying a foundation for turnaround to profitability.

Dichloromethane, PVC and Liquid Alkali

During the year under review, the segment’s revenue increased by
23.86% to RMB1,211,244,000 from RMB977,928,000 in the previous
year, accounting for 15.2% (2015: 13.91%) of the Group's total revenue.
The results of the segment recorded of a profit of RMB145,147,000,
representing a year-on-year increase of 168.56% (2015: RMB54,046,000).
The growth of the segment’s results for the year is primarily due to
the market stability of bulk chemical commodities and increases in
the product prices and demand driven by downstream real estate and
other industries.
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Among products of the segment, PVC and Liquid Alkali's revenues have
recorded a significant increase, thanks to the rebound of the real estate
market in 2016.

This segment includes two major auxiliary products (dichloromethane
and liquid alkali) of Refrigerants Segment of the Group and the
production and sales revenue of PVC products. Liquid alkali is a basic
chemical product from the production of the methane chloride (essential
chemical for the production of refrigerants and organic silicone
products), and used in the textile, power and materials industries.
Methane chloride includes dichloromethane, which is mainly used
to produce antibiotics and as a foaming mode for polyurethane. The
Group engaged in the production of PVC (a widely used thermoplastic
polymer applied in the construction industry to replace traditional
building materials). The production of refrigerants products generates
a chemical, hydrogen chloride, which is one of the basic raw materials
for PVC production. Therefore, the Group’s PVC production can ensure
production synergies and increasing economic value generated from a
self-sufficient business chain.

Property Development - Dongyue International
Project (the “Project”)

The Project comprises, among others, residential portion of two parcels
of land which are adjacent to each other. They are located at the west
of Liuquan North Road, the north of Huantai Avenue and the south of
Gongyuan Road, Huantai County, Zibo City, Shandong Province, and
the PRC with a total site area of 189,381 square metres. The residential
portion is 157,187 square metres, upon which the Group planned to
construct 23 residential blocks with a total planned gross floor areas of
approximately 296,000 square metres.

As at the end of 2016, the project had sold 430 residential units with a
total GFA of about 80,103 square meters, and a total of 21 commercial
units with a GFA of approximately 2,553 square meters during the
year. The segment recorded revenue of RMB871,162,000 for the year,
representing an increase of 40.68% as compared with RMB619,233,000
in the previous year, accounting for 10.93% (2015: 8.81%) of the
Group’s total revenue. During the year, the results of the segment
recorded a profit of RMB308,204,000 (2015: a profit of RMB200,133,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 54%.
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Others

This segment included the revenue from the production and sale of the
Group's other by-products of the various operating segments, such as
Ammonium Bifluoride, Hydrofluoric Acid, Bromine, and so on.

During the year under review, the segment recorded a revenue of
RMB186,964,000, representing an increase of 8.64% as compared
with RMB172,102,000 in the previous year. The results of the segment
recorded a profit of RMB74,646,000 (2015: RMB18,138,000), representing
a year-on-year growth of 311.54%. During the year under review,
growth of the segment’s results was attributable to stabilization and
slight pick-up of the domestic economy. In the segment’s products,
Bromine recorded the largest increase, with a year-on-year growth of
17.14% in its revenue.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

During the year under review, the distribution and selling expenses
increased by 12.64% to RMB283,058,000 from RMB251,284,000 of the
previous year, which is attributable to an increase in sales during the
year under review.

Administrative Expenses

During the year under review, the administrative expenses increased
significantly by 48.44% to RMB387,610,000 from RMB261,116,000 of
the previous year. The reasons for the substantial increase include:
(i) an increase in employees’ salary and bonus for maintaining
competitiveness; and (ii) an increase in professional fee incurred
from the investigation and legal matters relating to the incident of
misappropriation of funds.

Finance Costs

During the year under review, the finance costs decreased by 20.34%
to RMB166,229,000 from RMB208,663,000 of the previous year. This was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the amount of the borrowings of
the Group during the year under review.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's aggregate
capital expenditure was approximately RMB457,737,000 (2015:
RMB677,769,000). The Group's capital expenditure is mainly for the
acquisition of fixed assets including the equipment and facilities for the
improvement of technology and upgrading the intelligence system of
the Group and operation expansion.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's financial position is sound with healthy working capital
management and strong operational cash flow. As at 31 December
2016, the Group's total equity amounted to RMB5,686,251,000,
representing an increase of 12.10% as compared with that as at
31 December 2015. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank
balances and cash totaled RMB2,082,361,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB1,467,426,000). The increase in the Group’s bank balances and cash
is mainly attributable to (i) an increase in revenue and profit in 2016 and
(i) the collection of outstanding entrusted loans during the year. During
the year under review, the Group generated a total of RMB1,546,155,000
(for the year ended 31 December 2015: RMB564,191,000) cash inflow
from its operating activities. The current ratio” of the Group as at 31
December 2016 was 1.16 (31 December 2015: 1.07).

Considering the effect of the incident of misappropriation of funds
and the relevant one-off asset write-off recorded in year ended 31
December 2015 (please refer to the 2015 annual report of the Company
for more details), it did not materially undermine the working capital
soundness of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
Group still maintained sufficient cashflow on the production, supply
and sale activities of the Group. Taking the above figures into account,
together with the available bank balances and cash, the unutilized
banking credit facilities and support from its banks as well as its
sufficient operational cash flows, the management is confident that the
Group will have adequate resources to settle any debts and to finance
its daily operational and capital expenditures.

Capital Structure

During the year under review, the Company repurchased and cancelled
a total of 1,702,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the “Buyback
Shares”). After the cancellation of the Buyback Shares, the number of
issued shares of the Company was decreased to 2,111,689,455 as at 31
December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the borrowings of the Group totaled
RMB2,729,700,000 (31 December 2015: RMB3,419,366,000). The gearing
ratio® of the Group was 10.22% (31 December 2015: 27.79%). The lower
gearing ratio is mainly attributable to (i) an increase in profit during the
year and (i) a decrease in outstanding loan balance in 2016.
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The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As at 31
December 2016, the Group's borrowings comprised non-current portion
(over 1 year) and current portion (within 1 year). The non-current
portion of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB932,000,000
which are repayable in full after one year but not exceeding five
years. The current portion of borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB1,797,700,000. The Group's borrowings were made at fixed interest
rates and floating rates. The weighted average effective interest rates
on floating rate borrowings and fixed rate borrowings for the year
ended 31 December 2016 were 6.35% (2015: 5.84%) and 5.78% (2015:
6.21%) per annum, respectively. As at 31 December 2016, 18.99% (31
December 2015: 30.54%) of the Group's borrowings bear fixed interest

rates.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s borrowings were denominated
in RMB only. In 2015, there were borrowings denominated in
other currencies including HK and US dollars which amounting
to approximately HK$120,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB100,536,000) and approximately US$20,625,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB133,930,000) respectively.

Notes:
(1 Current Ratio = Current Assets <+ Current Liabilities
(2)  Gearing Ratio = Net Debt + Total Capital
Net Debt = Total Borrowing — Bank Balances and Cash

Total Capital = Net Debt + Total Equity

Group Structure

During the year under review, there has been no material change in the
structure of the Group.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had certain property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB8,669,000 (31 December 2015: RMB319,591,000), and
bank deposits of RMB106,703,000 (31 December 2015: RMB113,214,000),
which were pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings and the bills
payable of the Group.
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group’s functional currency is RMB with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. However, foreign currencies (mainly United States
dollars) were received/paid when the Group earned revenue from
overseas customers and when settling purchases of machinery and
equipment from the overseas suppliers.

The Group entered into forward contacts for managing certain risks
arising from foreign currency transactions. In order to reduce the risk
of holding foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the foreign
currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking into account its foreign
currencies payment schedule in the near future.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The Group had 5,660 employees in total as at 31 December 2016 (31
December 2015: 6,297). The Group implemented its remuneration
policy, bonus and share option schemes based on the performance
of the Group and its employees. The Group provided benefits such as
social insurance and pensions to ensure remuneration competitiveness.

In addition, the Group also adopted a share option scheme as a long
term incentive to the Directors and eligible employees. The emolument
policy for the Directors and senior management of the Group is set up
by the remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to the
Group's performance, individual performance and comparable market
conditions.
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Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible for
the management and operation of the Company’s businesses and has
the general authority in this regard. Certain information of the members
of the Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong, aged 57, was appointed as the chairman, chief
executive officer and executive director of the Company in July 2006.
He has been with the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) and its predecessors since October 1986 and has 30 years
of experience in the chemical industry. He is also the chairman of
Dongyue Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers and Dongyue Organic Silicone,
and a director of Dongyue F&S, Dongying Dongyue Salt and Dongyue
Precision Chemicals, all of which are the Company's subsidiaries. In
addition, Mr. Zhang is the director and the chairman of the Strategy
Committee of China Minsheng Investment Company Limited (FFEIR
ERERMDBRAR]) . Mr. Zhang is a senior officer of political affairs
with a postgraduate degree in economics. He had served the People’s
Liberation Army Navy from 1978 to 1982. Mr. Zhang currently serves as
Vice Chairman of All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce (& E
T 78 ), Deputy Director of China Fluorine and Silicon Material Industry
Association (R EISEM B TE#HE) and a standing committee
member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Shandong Province (LLUE A1) . He has obtained the honorary titles
of National Outstanding Builder of Socialism in the Non-Public Economy
(Fourth Session), Powerful Figure of China Petroleum and Chemical
Industry (First Session), Top 10 Outstanding Figures of Chinese Brands in
the International Market, National Outstanding Demobilized Soldier, and
Most Outstanding CEO of the Year chosen by a Hong Kong magazine

“Capital CEO" ("BARA&").

Mr. FU Kwan, aged 60, was appointed as the executive director of the
Company in July 2006. He is formerly a director of Dongyue Chemicals,
Dongyue Polymers, Dongyue Organic Silicone and Dongyue F&S. Mr. Fu
is the chairman of the board of directors and the president of Macro-
Link Holding Limited (“Macrolink Holding”) and is a director of Macro-
Link International Investment Co. Ltd. (“Macrolink International”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Fu is a senior economist
with a postgraduate degree in business administration. Mr. Fu has over
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25 years of experience in corporate management and business strategy
planning. Mr. Fu was the deputy director of the Economic Committee
of Liling City, Hunan Province, head of the Foreign Trade Bureau of
Liling City, Hunan Province and the vice chairman of the 10th China
Federation of Industry & Commerce, and is a committee member of
the Chinese People Political & Consultative Conference, the honorary
chairman of Chamber of Commerce of Beijing and Hunan Enterprises
(It = BMEEEEE), vice chairman of China Civil Chamber of
Commerce (FREIREIMEE ) and director of political affairs committee
of China Federation of Industry and Commerce (% B T B2 B
MZEE) . Mr. Fu has also been awarded the “Top 10 Outstanding
Entrepreneurs in China Certificate” in 2003 by the China Professional
Managers Association. Mr. Fu is the director of Macro-Link Property
Joint Stock Company Limited (FfEB A ERMDBER 2 F), a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu owns a direct
4.25% and an indirect 90% interest in Macrolink Holding, which wholly
owns Macrolink International. Macrolink International is a substantial
shareholder of New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (formerly known
as “JLF Investment Company Limited”) , a company listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "HKSE").

Mr. LIU Chuangqi, aged 67, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006. He has been with the Group and
its predecessors since October 1986. Mr. Liu has over 25 years of
experience in the chemical industry and is a director of Dongyue
Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers, Dongyue F&S, Dongyue Organic Silicone,
Dongying Dongyue Salt, Huaxia Shenzhou and Dongyue Precision
Chemicals and was a director of Zibo Dongyue Lvyuan, all of which are
the Company'’s subsidiaries. He is also formerly the general manager of
Dongyue Chemicals and currently the president of the Group. He is a
senior officer of political affairs, and was awarded “Medal for Enhancing
the Labour Force of Zibo City” in 2002 by the Zibo City Labour Union.

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng, aged 42, is currently and also previously from
2006 to 2007, the financial controller of the Group. He has served as
the financial controller and general manager of MacrolLink Mineral
Co., Ltd. (¥ E= B i 2 B BR A 7)) from February 2008 to February
2016. MacrolLink Mineral Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of Macro-Link Holding
Limited GTEERHZAZRABR 2 R), which is also the holding company of
Macro-Link Industrial Investment Limited, the substantial shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Zhang ZF graduated in the Hunan University in
2003. He is also a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a registered tax agent in the PRC. Mr. Zhang ZF has
more than 10 years of experience in accounting and finance.
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Mr. ZHANG Bishu, aged 48, is currently the senior vice president,
chief accountant and the president of the chemical and tyre business
department of the Macro-Link Group. In his earlier years, Mr. Zhang BS
served as the chief of the finance section of Hunan Yiyang Pharmaceutical
Company (# F & 2[5 2 B2 %) and the section chief and deputy
secretary of the Hunan Yiyang Tax Bureau. He joined the Macro-Link
Group in October 2004. He has since served as the deputy financial officer
of the Macro-Link Group, the chairman of Macro-Link Weihung Food
Company Ltd. GTEBHMZIR R MARR A7), the director and the general
manager of Jiayuan Cobalt Holdings (&84 FEIZR AR /A 7)) and the
financial officer and the chief officer of the investment department of the
MacrolLink Group. Mr. Zhang BS obtained a master's degree in business
administration from the Inner Mongolian University in 2005. He is also a
certified accountant and registered tax agent in the PRC.

Mr. ZHANG Jian, aged 44, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006 and has been with the Group since
February 2006. Mr. Zhang has more than 10 years of experience in the
investment banking and corporate finance. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor
degree in Economics and Law from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics and a Master degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is the controller of listed company
division of Macrolink Holding, as well as an executive director of New
Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited and Macro-Link Property Joint Stock

Company Limited CETEZEB T EIER D AR AF).

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA
(HK), FHKIoD, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Ting is a certified public
accountant and has been the managing partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan
& Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising) since 1987. Mr. Ting is a
member of the 9th, 10th and 11th Chinese People Political Consultative
Conference, Fujian Province. Mr. Ting is currently a non-executive director
of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and an independent
non-executive director of six companies listed on the HKSE, namely
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited, Tongda Group Holdings
Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (formerly known as “JLF
Investment Company Limited”), Computer and Technologies Holdings
Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited and China SCE Property Holdings
Limited. Save for the aforesaid, Mr. Ting does not have any other
directorships in listed companies during the past 3 years.
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Mr. YUE Rundong, aged 74, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007 and has
been with the Group since then. Mr. Yue has more than 40 years of
experience in the chemical industry. He was the technician, project
leader and deputy director of research department of Shen Yang
Chemical Research Institute, the dean of Chen Guang Chemical
Research Institute and the dean of Chengdu Silicone Research Centre.
Mr. Yue has taken the post of the dean of Bluestar Institute of Chemical
Technology, the standing chairman and professorate senior engineer of
China Association of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material Industry, and
an Independent Director of Chengdu Guibao Science and Technology
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Yue is currently the Chairman of the Supervisory Board of
Chengdu Guibao Science and Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Growth Enterprises Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and the
honorary standing chairman of China Association of Organic Fluorine
and Silicone Material Industry.

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in August 2014. Mr. Yang has over
30 years of experience in fluoropolymer and organic silicone industries.
Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor degree in chemical engineering from East
China Institute of Technology in 1982. Mr. Yang served at China Bluestar
Chengrand Research Institute of Chemical Industry as chief engineer
and director of National Organic Silicone Engineering and Technological
Research Centre and National Synthetic Resin Quality Supervision
and Inspection Centre, and the chief secretary of the Organic Silicone
Professional Committee of China Association of Fluorine and Silicone
Industry and so forth. Mr. Yang is currently vice chairman of China
Association of Fluorine and Silicone Industry, director of the Expert
Committee and the Professional Committee of Silicone, and editor of
Silicone Material.

Senior management

Mr. ZHOU Guangsheng, aged 61, is the deputy president of the Group.
He has been serving the Group since March 1988 and is responsible for
production, safety and environmental protection. He served as a deputy
head of production plant and deputy production general manager from
April 1989 to March 2004. He served as the deputy general manager
of Dongyue Chemicals from March 2004 to March 2006. He has been
serving as the vice president of the Group since March 2006 until now.
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Mr. WANG Weidong, aged 53, has worked for the Group since
September 1996 and is responsible for technical matters and projects.
He is currently the president of the Group, the general manager of
Dongyue Chemicals, the general manager and a director of Dongyue
Organic Silicone, and the chairman of Dongyue F&S. In 2005, he was
awarded the title of Outstanding Scientific Researcher of National
Chemical Industry and in 2006, he obtained the award for “Outstanding
Worker of National Chlor-alkali Industry”. Mr. Wang holds a bachelor
degree in Chinese Literature.

Mr. ZENG Hongzhi, aged 53, has been serving the Group since
October 2003 and is formerly a chief officer of the Group’s safety
and environment protection department and the Group’s corporate
administration department, as well as the deputy general manager of
Dongyue Polymers. He has been serving as the general manager of
Dongyue Polymers since February 2009 until now.

Company secretary

Mr. CHUNG Tak Lai, aged 35, is a full time company secretary of
the Company. She joined the Group on 20 March 2015. Ms. Chung is
primarily responsible for company secretarial matters of the Company.
Ms. Chung has over 13 years of work experience in accounting,
corporate finance and strategic investment. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms. Chung had worked in the audit and financial advisory
divisions of a leading international accounting firm; merger and
acquisition team of a Hong Kong listed blue-chip company; finance and
accounting; and strategic investment divisions of two listed companies
in Hong Kong respectively. Ms. Chung holds a bachelor degree of
business administration, majoring in professional accountancy from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a bachelor degree of laws
from the University of London. Ms. Chung is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 100.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2016 (six months ended 30 June
015: Nil).

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKS$0.10 per share (the "Final Dividend") (approximately equivalent to
RMBO0.08 per share) (2015: HK$0.05 per share, approximately equivalent
to RMBO0.04 per share), in respect of the year 2016, to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company (the
“Register”) on 31 July 2017. The Final Dividend is subject to the approval
of the members of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the "AGM") to be held on 26 July 2017

Closure of the Register

The Register will be closed to ascertain the qualification for attending
and voting at the AGM and for the entitlement to the Final Dividend.

The Register will be closed from 21 July 2017 to 26 July 2017, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all share transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 20 July 2017
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The Register will be closed from 1 August to 3 August 2017, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the entitlement to the Final Dividend, all share
transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
31 July 2017.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of change in equity on page 103.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2016, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as computed in accordance with the
Companies Law (2003 Revision) of the Cayman Islands amounted to
RMB2,763,130,000, of which HK$211,168,946 (approximately equivalent
to RMB187,940,353) has been proposed as Final Dividend.

Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities

During the year, the Company repurchased, on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "HKSE"), a total of 1,702,000 ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Buyback Shares”) at a price range of HKS$1.46
to HKS$S1.55 per share. The aggregate consideration for the Buyback
Shares is approximately HK$2,591,620, which was funded from internal
resources of the Company. The Buyback Shares were validly cancelled
on 2 February 2016.
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Report of the Directors

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Share options
Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme approved by a written resolution
of all shareholders of the Company on 16 November 2007 (the
“Scheme”), the Company may grant to, among others, the Directors
of the Company and employees of the Group, for the recognition of
their contribution of the Group, options to subscribe for the Shares.
According to the Scheme, the board of Directors (the “Board”) may,
at its discretion, invite any eligible participants to take up options to
subscribe for Shares of the Company, which when aggregated with any
other share option scheme, shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and
any other scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the number
of Shares in issue as at the date on which dealings in the Shares first
commence on the HKSE unless further shareholders’ approval had been
obtained pursuant to the conditions set out in the Scheme. The total
number of Shares in issue and to be issued upon exercise of all option
under the Scheme and any other schemes (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company.

The offer for the grant of options (the “Offer”) must be taken up
within 28 days from the date of Offer, with a payment of HK$1.00 as
consideration. The exercise price of the share option will be determined
at the highest of (i) the average closing prices of Shares as stated in
the HKSE's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the Offer; (i) the closing price of Shares as stated
in the HKSE’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the Offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Shares. The total number of Shares which may
fall to be issued under the Scheme and any other scheme must not, in
aggregate, exceed 208,000,000 which represents 10% of the total issued
share capital as at the listing date unless further shareholders’ approval
is obtained. The share options are exercisable at any time during a
period of not more than 10 years from the date of grant, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Scheme and any conditions of grant as
may be stipulated by the Board. Unless terminated by the Company by
resolution in general meeting, the Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from 16 November 2007.
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As at 31 December 2016, particulars of the options granted to certain
Directors and employees of the Group under the Scheme are set
out below. As at 31 December 2016, there was no outstanding share
options under the Scheme.

R2016% R2016%
1818 RER RER 12A31A
] P i M RITHE HE BUAN IEHER TEHER
Balance Outstanding
as at Lapsed  Exercised as at
SEE Name or Category 1 January during during 31 December Exercise Date of Exercisable  Exercisable
#EER of participant 2016 theyear  theyear 2016 Price Grant from until
B fit i,
HKS  Note 1 Note 2
HTEE: Executive Directors:
RELLE Mr. Zhang Jianhong
F—Ht Tranche 1 3325000 (3,325,000) - - 813 2011F6A1H 201256418 201656718
1June 2011 1June 2012 1June 2016
E-H Tranche 2 3325000 (3,325,000) - - 813 2011%F6A1H 2013F6A18 2016F6A1H
TJune 2011 1June 2013 1June 2016
EAaiin Tranche 3 3325000 (3:325,000) - - 813 2011%F6A1H 2014F6A18 201656 A1H
1June 2011 1June 2014 1 June 2016
St Tranche 4 3325000 (3,325,000) - - 813 2011F6A1H 015%6A1R 201686 A1H
1June 2011 1 June 2015 1 June 2016
flEsrs Mr. Liu Chuangi
ERi Tranche 1 3375000 (3375,000) - - 813 2011%F6A1H 201256 A18 2016E6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2012 1 June 2016
Eiid Tranche 2 3375000 (3,375,000) - - 8.13 2011F6A1H 2013F6A 18 2016%F6A1H
TJune 2011 1June 2013 1June 2016
E=it Tranche 3 3375000 (3,375,000) - - 813 2011%F6A1H 201456 A 18 2016E6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2014 1 June 2016
EJI Tranche 4 3375000 (3,375,000) - - 813 2011F6A1H 2015F6A1H 2016%F6A1H
TJune 2011 1June 2015 1June 2016
ERREE Mr. Cui Tongzheng
ERi Tranche 1 1250000 (1,250,000) - - 813 2011%F6A1H 2012F6A18 2016F6A1H
TJune 2011 1June 2012 1 June 2016
i Tranche 2 1,250,000 (1,250,000) - - 813 2011%F6A1H 2013%6A18 2016F6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2013 1June 2016
Fatiin Tranche 3 1,250,000 (1,250,000) - - 813 2011F6A1H 2014F6A18 201656718
1June 2011 1June 2014 1 June 2016
ESI Tranche 4 1,250,000 (1,250,000) - - 813 2011%F6A1H 2015F6A18 201656 A1H
1June 2011 1June 2015  1June 2016
28  EEEEARAT —EB-AFEH 2
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1818 RER RER 128318
b3 F3 i MR TFE REAE TESRER TEEER

Balance Outstanding
as at Lapsed  Exercised as at
SHE Name or Category 1 January during during 31 December Exercise Date of Exercisable Exercisable
HERER of participant 2016  theyear theyear 2016 Price Grant from until
B M Mz
HKS Note 1 Note 2
RELE Mr. Zhang Jian
£t Tranche 1 50,000 (50,000 - - 813 2011F6A1H 2015618 201656718
1June 2011 1June 2012 1 June 2016
Ftiif Tranche 2 50,000 (50,000) - = 813 2011F6A1H 20136418 201656718
1June 2011 1June 2013 1 June 2016
E=# Tranche 3 50,000 (50,000) - - 813 2011F6A1H 2014%F6A18 20165618
1June 2011 1 June 2014 1 June 2016
Mt Tranche 4 50,000 (50,000 - - 813 2011F6A18 201556 A18 20165618
1June 2011 1June 2015 1 June 2016
E5: Employees:
A% In aggregate
gt Tranche 1 25975000 (25,975,000) - - 813 2011F6A1H 201256418 201656718
1June 2011 1June 2012 1 June 2016
Foubiif Tranche 2 25975000 (25,975,000) - - 813 0114E6A18 201356A1R 201656718
TJune 2011 1June 2013 1 June 2016
E=H Tranche 3 25975000 (25,975,000) - - 813 2011E6A18 201456/1R 20165618
1June 2011 1June 2014 1 June 2016
Emit Tranche 4 25975000 (25,975,000) - - 813 2011F6A1H 2015F6A1H 2016%6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2015 1 June 2016
135900,000  (135,900,000) - -
MHEE1 - RERH B B2 AR E R EAR7988TT Note 1: The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant is
HK$7.98 per Share.
MizE2 : ETEITRINMOMBEEREN 201656 A2BER - Note 2: All share options granted under the Scheme has expired on 2 June 2016,

IERA20165F 12 431 B M0 48 i K1 71502 BB ARAE - therefore there was no outstanding share options as at 31 December 2016.
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EME—FTERE o
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The fair value of the share options granted under the Scheme were
determined and measured using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing
June 201
exercise price shown above, volatility of 64.65%, dividend yield of 3.68%,

Model on 1 1. The significant inputs into the model were the
an expected option life of 3.5 to 5 years and on annual risk-free interest
rates of 1.00%, 1.18%, 1.34% and 1.49%. As any changes in subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates, in the
opinion of professional appraiser, the valuation model for the share
options granted does not necessarily provide a reliable single measure
of the fair value of the share options.

The related accounting policy for the fair value of the share options are
set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no option had been granted or agreed to be
granted to any person under the Scheme since its adoption.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

pEamahte



BEFEE

ERREE(BEAFEEIFE)
(R2017%5H2HBHT)

R E (S FEEAEE)
(R2017F5 2 HEZ(F)

BT S (1201745 52 A BHE)

RMEAE (R2017F5 A2 HEZ(F)

RIESLAE

BYFHTES

TRESE
ERREE
BEERL

RIBEAXREMERMRE7NE - NEEBRR
BFEAgL BER=SZHEEEF(AMES
ABYIF==mFH% - MsEOL=02—EB1
PR=nDZ—MHBE)ERERE MEBRES
BELB=FWERTE KR - REZRXE TR
BREEREBREEMMAFZEER(H2017
FSA2ABRAER) (BERGELENREELL)
BREEBRRBFASHERE - RETEER
YRS ERERRAFAS LERET -

EEZNRBEY

ERERERRBFASEENESHMELRARRD
AR EALAIM B AR FT LA LA KE A
R—FRTNRECEERERIN M T LIEME
RIEEH) o

EENENER

AR7A] - REFRRMERR - BB E
B RIS 48 S AT B P R SL AT AR R
AEENETERNARBEEEARGENERS
) o

EEERE

Report of the Directors

Mr. Liu Chuangi

Mr. Cui Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Feng Jianjun (resigned on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Zhang Bishu (appointed on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yue Rundong
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, at
each of the annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. Mr. Zhang Jianhong, Mr. Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Yue Rundong and two newly appointed
directors (effective from 2 May 2017) including Mr. Zhang Bishu and
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has entered or has proposed to enter into any service contracts with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its fellow
subsidiaries, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Director’s rights to acquire shares

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options” in
this report, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective spouse or minor
children to acquire benefit by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 24.

Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration of each Director is determined with reference to the
duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of
the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 12 to
the financial statements.

Corporate governance practice

Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set
out on pages 41 to 59.
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Disclosure of interests

RO REERNEZR AR

M20165F12A31H » RRABIEFEREZETH
ABREES MR ARARRA 7 S E a5
FE(EERBEBFRHERAINTES LR
16 1) ExXVER) B AR D - AR D REREE
REARBEES RBAEGOIEXNVIEETRE
SHEEMEBARARNT RN ERIAE
(BREBRBEEFRBAERIBHEBTREE
SEREENERRAE) IIRBEFEHFR
HAE 1611 25 352 16 78 B0 B 7R 5% 16 P it = 22 it
BiEmIORE - IRIBE EMBEITAESETT

EHFRXHMEETRAI([FEEFRI D AME AR
RAI MR FEERSORRINT -

EEHA

Name of Director

EEME

Nature of interest

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short

positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”")) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") to be notified to the Company and the HKSE were as follows:

B 10 S B B 1R BB
Number of Shares
or underlying Shares

HEBRTREESL
% of issued
share capital

RERTE
Mr. Zhang Jianhong

BELRLE

Mr. Fu Kwan

2EHxEE
Mr. Liu Chuanqi

ERBELE
Mr. Cui Tongzheng

RESTE
Mr. Zhang Jian

REE"
Corporate interest!”
BatEm

Beneficial interest

20
Corporate interest®?

O
Corporate interest®
EntEn

Beneficial interest

AR
Corporate interest®
g Fa

Beneficial interest

EaniEn
Beneficial interest

178,277,273 (L) 844 (L)

7,147,636 (L) 0.34 (L)

616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
75,634,000 (L) 3.58 (L)
6,353,454 (L) 0.30 (L)
156,852,363 (L) 743 (L)
5,162,180 (L) 0.24 (L)
397,091 (L) 0.02 (L)
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BEIEFRAEGD  BRRERLEER
& Dongyue Team Limited ) & [ 1 25 © 85K
P A W 18 A R Dongyue Team Limited ¥ B £
178,277,273 BB (L F B ek

ZEBRMDAMEHBERIEEGR AR FEB
B DEERFE M ERRRAHFTERE
EREERABI([HEBREXN2EHE - ¥
EREERNERITRE2EHEES - MATERE
BRABERARERRAR(TRA REELE
DREH 0% K% 425% © AN - RADBIABE
SERE X E L T E A 53.35%K%33.33%

2% o
fm

ZERD B EE TR E2EREHDongyue
Wealth Limited H## 8 - RIEZHRBEK
B+ BI5E £ 18 AR Dongyue Wealth Limited$
B #975,634,0000 IR (O F A ERE °

BEEFRAGHD  BRERBKEERS
Dongyue Initiator Limited B 2 3 1 5 « 88
FHE AR A Dongyue Initiator Limited# A5 &9
156,852,363 ()P FEE #EER ©

Br BT EESN - BR2016%F12A31H AR E
ENNESRTETHRABREESANBEA
MERERAFSREAMAEEZR(ERRESR
ARG EXVED) BBk D - BRI RE#EZ S
WA EAREEZF RIS ERAEXVEE7RESH
HERMEARARBMRANERIOXE (BER
BEFRAEGRIBHEACHEEIRAEEN
MOk R) - RIRIEE 5 KB KO 3521478
RN ZEFTE R M ERSORE - HIREE
EFRIZEMEARNA R RIS SAR -

Notes:

(1) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
178,277,273 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

(2)  These Shares are directly held by Macro-Link International Investment Co.
Ltd. ("Macrolink International”) which in turn is wholly-owned by Macro-
Link Industrial Investment Limited (“Macrolink Industrial”). Macrolink
Holding, a company owned by Cheung Shek Investment Limited (“Cheung
Shek”) as to 90% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to 4.25%, respectively, wholly
owned Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu Kwan and Mrs. Xiao
Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 53.35% and 33.33%, respectively.

(3)  These Shares are directly held by Dongyue Wealth Limited which is
wholly owned by Mr. Liu Chuangi. Mr. Liu is deemed to be interested in
the 75,634,000 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Wealth Limited under the SFO.

(4)  Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Cui Tongzheng holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Initiator Limited, Mr. Cui is deemed to be interested in the
156,852,363 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Initiator Limited.

(5) L: Long Position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of
the then Directors or chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the HKSE.

Ealatte
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(b) Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s
interests and short positions in the Shares,

underlying Shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2016, so far as is known to the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, the following persons (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an
interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be disclosed

to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part

XV of the SFO:
EEHE % 10 =LA BE R 17 BB
Number of shares

Nature of interest or underlying Shares

HERITREB DL
% of issued
share capital

FrEERG B R
Macrolink International

HEBE R

Macrolink Industrial

72 R
Macrolink Holding

A
Cheung Shek

BHXEZ+t
Mrs. Xiao Wenhui

Dongyue Team Limited
Dongyue Team Limited

Dongyue Initiator Limited
Dongyue Initiator Limited

616,646,818 (L)

TR

Beneficial interest”

(RO
Corporate interest!"

616,646,818 (L)

iR
Corporate interest”

616,646,818 (L)

EER"
Corporate interest”

616,646,818 (L)

0
Corporate interest!”

616,646,818 (L)

B 25HE 250

Beneficial interest®

178,277,273 (L)

156,852,363 (L)

B0

Beneficial interest®

29.20 (L)

29.20 (L)

29.20 (L)

29.20 (L)

29.20 (L)

8.44 (L)

743 (L)
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56 44 45 E R Dongyue Team Limited T35 A
178,277,273 B0 (O F B B ek

BIEEFRAEHD  BRERBREERS
Dongyue Initiator Limited B 2 3F 1 25 » & &
S EH AR R Dongyue Initiator Limited FT#5 A
156,852,363 (L) EB #E 2 ©

REFRERRAR —F—AFFH

Notes:

These Shares are directly held by Macrolink International which in turn
is wholly-owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a company
owned by Cheung Shek as to 90% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to 4.25%,
respectively, wholly owned Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu Kwan
and Mrs. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 53.35% and
33.33%, respectively.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
178,277,273 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Cui Tongzheng holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Initiator Limited, Mr. Cui is deemed to be interested in the
156,852,363 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Initiator Limited.

L: Long Position
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(c) R2016F12A31BREEBHMAE (c) Interests in other members of the Group as at 31

ERQRINER December 2016
EEENE AR
BRITRE
KRBHMBAR LM ZHEBARNEERRER EEME AMEAB DL
% of issued share
capital/registered
Name of the Name of substantial shareholder capital of
Company'’s subsidiary of such subsidiary Nature of interest such subsidiary
IR REREMEBRAF] IWRESHRMIRERR AR yNC] 16.78
(TRERE])
Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Shandong Hi Tech Investment Co., Ltd.  Corporate 16.78
Materials Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue F&S")
NEEREL BRI IARAQF RETEFERRAE NC] 49
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine  Chifeng Peak Copper Co., Ltd. Corporate 49
Chemicals Co,, Ltd.
TREEREERR LA TRIE T IR R RN A NGl 20
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd. Chifeng Peak Copper Co., Ltd. Corporate 20
REREEERRAA] MEBERRERR AR yNC] 40
(TREREEEX]) (TFEMEXIRE])
Macro-Link Asset Investment Co., Ltd. Corporate 40
("Macrolink Asset Investment”)
RERERAEITARAT MEBERRE'
Dongying Dongyue Precision Macrolink Asset Investment’
Chemicals Co., Ltd.
REBBRRERO(BERAR) NGl 15.79
Dongying Hai Run Investment LLP Corporate 15.79
W RERESO @M BRAE R EESOAME THR QA NC] 49
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine Shandong Lai Wu Wen He Chemicals Corporate 49

Chemicals Co,, Ltd. Co,, Ltd.
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Note:

(1) Macrolink Asset Investment is a 40% equity holder in Dongying Dongyue
Salt which, in turn, owns 59.21% of Dongying Dongyue Precision
Chemicals Co., Ltd., with the remaining 25% and 15.79% owned by
the Company and Dongying Hai Run Investment LLP respectively.
Consequently, Macrolink Asset Investment indirectly owns more than
10% of Dongying Dongyue Precision Chemicals Co., Ltd.

Saved as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2016, no other
person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company)
had any interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group.

Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none of the Directors of the
Company was interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier 9.28%
— five largest suppliers combined 29.21%
Sales
- the largest customer 1.58%
— five largest customers combined 6.58%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company'’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.
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Connected transactions

Save as disclosed below, during the year, the Group had not entered
into connected transactions that are subject to be reported under
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
HKSE (the “Listing Rules”).

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 not falling under Rule
14A.33 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

2016 FNIFHABER S FE LR BEREH
Continuing connected transactions for the year 2016 Annual Cap Actual
(AREBET) (AREBET)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
MBS B B 2E PR T 22 B 1928/ Framework agreement for the purchase of 1539 19.9
wE((REREHEERE]) industrial salt from Dongying Dongyue
(K3E) Salt (the "DDS Agreement”) (Note)

et AT REREEXEHANBNRALEBEERRB R
ARASENRLH - 28V D TREBEEE
MEZHREEREMKE) REREEXR/FREAAT
HP—UBTEEHERENBEARARRTER
SOTEMBEIRANEEATKRREEAL © FEREZE
RE RFTEBEIR R R AR H80% M 20% R ©

H2016F 128318 - BEAMEAREREEETVE
FIREREHEE RS - RHI=F - EE2019F12A°
318 - BB REREEERZNFBHNAQA
BEIA20165F12A31BHAE

TERENBEERDABRST2ETEEERIRTH
B UTNBEREELE =T RENGER - BLTFE
FRETE - WARAKRER—EA ZEEHRART
FER - ERSEMEHBENSNIN - H—REE
R - BRIREREEE BB L BEREASE
BrREREEXBRIRBIRE -

Note: The purpose of the DDS Agreement is for the purpose of the Group's
production of liquid alkali and chlorine (an essential intermediate raw material
for the Group's refrigerants, fluoropolymers and organic silicone production).
Dongying Dongyue Salt is a connected person by virtue of it being an associate
of one of the Company’s executive Directors, Mr. Fu Kwan and an associate of
the Company's substantial shareholder, Macrolink International. Macrolink Asset
Investment is held as to 80% by Macrolink Holding and 20% by Cheung Shek.

On 31 December 2016, Dongyue F&S entered into the Renewed DDS
Agreement with Dongying Dongyue Salt for three years to 31 December
2019. Details of the Renewed DDS Agreement are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 31 December 2016.

The purchase price for the industrial salt payable by the Group shall be paid by
means of bank remittance, bill of exchange or other agreed payment method(s)
with one month credit term and on normal commercial terms which will be
determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties with reference
to the then prevailing market price of industrial salt that is no less favourable
than that offered to independent third parties. There is no provision in the
Renewed DDS Agreement requiring the Group to exclusively source industrial
salt from Dongying Dongyue Salt.
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the INEDs. The INEDs confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from independent third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board engaged the auditors of the Company in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float of the issued shares of
the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited will retire as auditors of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their offices, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 31 May 2017
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dongyue Group Limited (the
“Company”) recognizes their mission of creating values and maximizing
returns to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), while
at the same time fulfilling their corporate responsibilities. To this end,
we strive to promote and uphold the highest standard of corporate
governance.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company with the adoption and improvement of the various
procedures and documentation which are detailed in this report. To
the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has
adopted and complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the
“Code") during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date
of this report, except for deviation regarding the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer, the details of which have been disclosed in the
relevant paragraphs below in this report.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), and oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic direction and performance. The Board delegates
the authority and responsibility to the Group’s management for the
management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board's Committees. The composition of
the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a good balance of
expertise, skills and experience which can meet the requirements of the
business of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report, except that Mr. Cui Tongzheng and Mr. Feng Jianjun resigned
from their offices as the Company's Executive Director with effect from
2 May 2017 and that Mr. Zhang Zhefeng and Mr. Zhang Bishu were
appointed as the Company’s Executive Directors with effect from the
same date, there was no change in the structure of the Board, which
currently comprises nine Directors and its composition is set out as
follows:
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HITES Executive Directors (“EDs"):

RIERSTE(EBFTEARHR) Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

BELE Mr. Fu Kwan

2EFEE Mr. Liu Chuang

ERBREE(BERFEETFE) Mr. Cui Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
(R201745 82 HBHTE) (resigned on 2 May 2017)

RIS A (BB FESERE) Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
(R2017F5 A2 HEZ(E) (appointed on 2 May 2017)

JEIRE St (201 74E5 H2 A B#T)
RN EL A (R20174E5 2 HEZEF)

Mr. Feng Jianjun (resigned on 2 May 2017)
Mr. Zhang Bishu (appointed on 2 May 2017)

RERE Mr. Zhang Jian

BYFHITES : Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”):
TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

EREREE Mr. Yue Rundong

EEBEFBERAFRENEMEEERT
EBEEABREE|—f -

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors’
and Senior Management's Profile” section on pages 20 to 24 of this
annual report.
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The Company has three INEDs representing one-third of the Board.
At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant to
Rule 3.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE
(the “Listing Rules”). The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence and considers that all the INEDs are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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During the year under review, the Board was met regularly to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group, and to review and approve the Group's annual and
interim results, as well as corporate governance, financial, capital,
remuneration and incident of misappropriation of funds. During
the year under review, four Board meetings were held. In addition,
certain matters relating to change of auditors, renewal of continuing
connected transactions, appointment of internal control advisor
and recommendation of the remuneration of the independent non-
executive Directors were dealt with by written resolutions of the
directors. During the year, no annual general meeting ("“AGM") was
held due to the delay in publication of the 2015 annual results and
delay in dispatch of the 2015 annual report. The 2015 annual results
were announced on 28 April 2017 and the 2015 annual report was
dispatched on 29 May 2017

During the year, the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings
is set out as follows:

HE BT
EEE2ERY
Number of
Board meetings

attended/held
BITES : EDs:
RERTE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 4/4
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan 2/4*
AEFEE Mr. Liu Chuang 0/4%
ERREE Mr. Cui Tongzheng 4/4
TREE L Mr. Feng Jianjun 4/4
RIESEAE Mr. Zhang Jian 3/4
BYFHTES: INEDs:
TRESE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 4/4
HEELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 4/4
EEREA Mr. Yue Rundong 4/4
* BEERBIFAZARRANESHFHRRRELHFEE * Mr. Fu and Mr. Liu appointed representatives to attend the Board meetings on

AAAi
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$A/\ ¢
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their behalf during their absence. Mr. Liu did not attend any Board meetings
during the year due to health reasons.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has dealt with
matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual and interim
results, risk management, dividend policies, corporate governance,
capital, financial and remuneration. The Board has delegated the day-
to-day operations of the Group to the senior management under the
supervision of the Board. In addition, during the year, management
(including the Chairman) of the Company has had frequent discussions
with members of the Board (including independent non-executive
Directors) on matters relating to misappropriation of funds.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held regularly and as required
by business needs. At least 14 days' notice of regular Board meetings
(or reasonable notice for all other meetings) is normally given
to all Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and
the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at
least 3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

In facilitating the Directors to discharge their responsibilities as
stipulated under the Listing Rules, starting from April 2012, the
Directors have been provided with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group's performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail and with appropriate insurance cover
to protect them from potential risks arising from legal actions against
them while they discharge their duties.

Directors’ continuous professional development

The Directors are briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Directors
are provided with written materials to develop and refresh their

professional skills.
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REARFAFENLE  EFREEFACER
TIFBEERERTEMNE

According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training on continuous professional development
during the year under review:

EBESHEEEREN
EE - RAR
ERNERER
Received training on
Corporate Governance/
Updates on laws,

rules and regulations

BiTES EDs:

SRIZR AL Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan v/
ZETLE Mr. Liu Chuangi v/
ERBEE Mr. Cui Tongzheng v/
TS E Mr. Feng Jianjun v/
REBEAE Mr. Zhang Jian v/
BYFHTES: INEDs:

TRIBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
EREmRAEE Mr. Yue Rundong v/

ESHECRELRTHNEL

EERANERSRELEBE ANEEERILTY
BRENEE - Rt - EXRERZESRA(HD
BRE)BHAARAFNEREARRRERARLAK
RAEELETTHMAREANHEBKE

BEEZHBHNAREEXERZEG ]| —HFH
REEA ©

Directors’ responsibilities in corporate governance

The Directors recognize the importance and their responsibilities for
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. In this accord,
the corporate governance committee is responsible for, among
others, reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and the Company's compliance with the Code and the
relevant disclosure in this report.

More details are set out under the relevant paragraphs of the section
headed “Corporate Governance Committee” of this report.
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Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed
they have complied with the required standard set out in the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company.

Roles of chairman and chief executive officer

Code A2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Jianhong is both the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the
same position provides the Group with stronger and more consistent
leadership and allows for more effective planning. Further, the Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power, which
has been closely monitored by the Board, which comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals. The Board has full confidence in Mr. Zhang
and believes that the current arrangement is beneficial to the business
prospect of the Group.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which
would make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
including the appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the
Company. The Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to
have expertise in relevant area to make contribution to the Company
and to have sufficient time to participate in the decision making
process of the Company.
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Except Mr. Fung Jianjun, other EDs of the Company did not enter into
service contracts with the Company. Mr. Fung has entered into service
contract for a term of two tears commencing from 13 March 2015
(Mr. Feng Jianjun resigned from his office as the Company’s Executive
Director from 2 May 2017). The INEDs signed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of approximately two years commencing
from 1 January 2016 and 14 August 2016.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”), one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles. Accordingly, all Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM under the
Articles.

Board committees

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an Audit
Committee, a Nomination Committee, a Corporate Governance
Committee and a Risk Management Committee, each of which has its
specific written terms of reference, which have been available on the
Company’s and the HKSE's websites, and is chaired by INEDs (except
the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee).
To further enhance independence, all the committees (except the
Corporate Governance Committee) include a majority of INEDs.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the Company’s two INEDs
and one ED, namely, Mr. Yang Xiaoyong (being the Chairman of the
Committee), Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Zhang Jianhong.
The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee cover,
among other things, the review of the Group's policy and structure
for the remuneration for all the Directors and senior management of
the Group, the approval of the remuneration for all the EDs and senior
management of the Group, including the granting of share options to
the Group’s employees and the EDs under the Company’s Share Option
Scheme, and the recommendation to the Board for the remuneration
for the INEDs.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, no Remuneration
Committee meeting was held. Instead, for efficiency reasons, the
recommendation to the Board to the remuneration for the INEDs was
approved by written resolution signed by all members of Remuneration
Committee.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

FoNEEE(ET) AE

Remuneration bands (HKD)

Number of
persons

1,500,0017T % 2,000,0007T
11,000,0017C 2% 11,500,0007T
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1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1
11,000,001 to 11,500,000 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the
financial statements.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee comprises the Company’s three INEDs, namely,
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (being the Chairman of the Committee
with appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise), Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Yue
Rundong.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
annual reports and accounts, half-yearly reports and accounts and
to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board, to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors. The Audit Committee
is also responsible for reviewing the financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group and to give suggestions in these
regards.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31

Mre®  SHKEMNHFERAT December 2016 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:
HiE BT
ZEEERRE
Number of
Committee
meeting
attended/held
ZEEKE - Committee member:
TREBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/2
BEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 2/2
EEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 1/2

ARBMNERZBE R ARERHEEABNG

BzEgE o
REE2016F12A31BIEMBEERITHNE &
o ERZEEEREITATSEIE:

AREREZR2015F12A31 HIEFENH
BmEORBERAGH®
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REIBRBHET @ BREEHAEEEHZE20165F
DNAJNBLEFENFEREE  AETEXRESE
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The external auditors of the Company and the related management of
the Group also attended these meetings.

During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2016, the Audit Committee has performed the works which are set out
as follows:

perform pre-audit meeting in respect of the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015;

discuss with management and review an unaudited consolidated
financial information before publication of an unaudited
consolidated financial information of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 pursuant to Rule 13.49(i)(c) of the Listing Rules;

the engagement of external auditors in respect of the financial
year ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016.

On 10 January 2017, the Audit Committee conducted pre-audit meeting
with the external auditors in respect of the audit of the financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2016. The Audit Committee also had a meeting with management on
31 May 2017 to review the accounting standards and practices adopted
by the Group and to discuss matters regarding internal control and
financial reporting including the review of the Group's annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2016 before proposing to the Board
for approval.
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Nomination committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference on 18 March 2012 to be responsible for the appointment
of new Director(s) of the Company and other related matters. Mr.
Zhang Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
were appointed as the members of the Nomination Committee.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity) of the Board, to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become members of the Board, to assess the independence
of the INEDs, to review the policy (the "Policy”) concerning the diversity
of the Board and the measurable objectives that the Board has adopted
for implementing the Policy and to make the relevant disclosure on
the progress of achieving those objectives in the corporate governance

report of the Company.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2016 and the attendance of each member is set out as

follows:

EREESR
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEENE -

Committee member:

SRR E Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong /

gL KEERWERLSERHARIEE -
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During the meeting, the members confirmed and rectified the
resignation of the president of the Group.
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In addition, a summary of the Policy for the diversity of the Board is set

out as follows:

A.

Policy Statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. A truly diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of
the Board.

Measurable Objectives

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
and recommend to the Board for adoption.

The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity
of Directors, in terms of skills, experiences, knowledge, expertise,
culture, independence, age and gender.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the Corporate
Governance Report, on the Board’s composition under diversified
perspectives, and monitor the implementation of the Policy.

A summary of the Policy, together with the measureable
objectives set for implementing the Policy and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives will be disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Review of the Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate,
and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.
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The Board has adopted the following measurable objectives during the
year ended 31 December 2016:

Inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas

academic, research or working experience (outside of PRC);

ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors; and

inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries.

During the year, the Board achieved the above measurable objectives
by which the Board had included both male and female candidates
with overseas academic, research or working experience in other
industries in the selection of Directors.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a Corporate Governance Committee
with terms of reference on 21 March 2013. Mr. Zhang Jianhong was
appointed as the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
and Mr. Liu Chuangi and Mr. Feng Jianjun were appointed as the
members of the Corporate Governance Committee. The primary
duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are to develop and
review policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors, to review and
monitor policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and to review the compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Reports. During the year, no
Corporate Governance Committee meeting was held.
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Risk Management Committee

The Company established a Risk Management Committee with written
terms of reference on 13 August 2015 to review and advise the risk
management and internal control of the Company and other related
matters. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen was appointed as the chairman
of the Risk Management Committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr.
Yue Rundong were appointed as the members of the Risk Management
Committee. The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee are to
consider, review and approve the risk management policies, identify the
risk of the Group, approve major decisions affecting the Group’s risk profile
or exposure, consider the effectiveness of decision making processes in
crisis and emergency situations and review the effectiveness and resources
of the internal control systems of the Group.

During the year, no Risk Management Committee meeting was held.
Instead, for efficiency purpose, the appointment of internal control
advisor was approved by written resolution signed by all members of
Risk Management Committee.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and
external auditors

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows. The external auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the financial
statements prepared by the Directors and report the opinion solely to the
members of the Company as a body and for no other purpose.

Risk management and internal control

The Board of Directors is responsible for assessing and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing to accept
in reaching its strategic objectives and to ensure that the Group has
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Board of Directors has supervised
the management’s design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems. The Board confirmed that
it is responsible for establishing risk management and internal control
systems for the Group and will continue to monitor the system and
ensure to review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its principal subsidiaries at least
once a year.
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The Company’s Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee have also confirmed that they have reviewed
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and its principal subsidiaries, covering all important
monitoring aspects of the Group, including strategic, financial,
operational and compliance monitoring.

The Company has also conducted procedures of risk management, which
mainly include:

1) identify risk and form risk list;

2)  Based on the possibility of various types of potential risks and
the concerns of the management of the Group, combined with
the risk of financial losses, make risk assessment on the impact
of operational efficiency, sustainable development capacity and
reputation, and prioritize them;

3) Identify risk management measures for significant risks, conduct
evaluations of the design of risk management measures, and
improve the deficiencies through formulating measures;

4)  Develop risk management manuals for risk management, identify
the responsibilities for the management, Board of Directors, Audit
Committee and Risk Management Committee in risk management,
and continuously monitor risk management;

5)  The management has reported to the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee on the review and assessment of risk
management, major risk factors and related response measures.
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However, risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failing to reach a business
goal, and to make reasonable, not absolute, warranties of no significant
misrepresentation or loss.

Set out below is the Company’s procedures and internal controls for
handling and distributing inside information:

The Company acknowledges its obligations under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The first principle
is that the information should be immediately published when
the Company is aware of and/or when the related decision is
made, unless such inside information falls under the Safe Harbour
Provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

In dealing with the matters, adhere to the Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information promulgated by the Securities
and Futures Commission in June 2012 and the “"Recent Economic

Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of Listed Issuers
issued by the SEHK in 2008; and

Unauthorized use of confidential or inside information has been
expressly prohibited in the internal system.
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The Company has set up internal audit function. In addition, as disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 14 December 2016, the
Company appointed an independent consulting firm on 12 December
2016 as its internal control adviser to conduct an internal control review of,
among others, the cash and funds management, preparation procedures
on financial and accounting information and the management and
disclosure procedures on inside information of the Group, and to provide
recommendations to the Company. As at the date of this report, the review
has been completed and more details are disclosed in the Company'’s
announcement dated 28 April 2017.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems during the Reporting Period and considered
them to be effective and adequate. The Board will continuously
improve and monitor the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems.

External auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total remuneration for
the audit services provided by the external auditors amounted to
HKS$2,600,000 (approximately RMB2,262,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total remuneration for
the permissible non-audit services provided by the external auditors
amounted to approximately HKD600,000 (approximately RMB522,000)
which is for the review of the interim financial report of the Group for the
six months period ended 30 June 2016.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has resigned as the auditor of the Company
on 9 December 2016 as they are of the view that they have not
received sufficient information and explanations in relation to the
circumstances surrounding the misappropriation of funds of the Group
(Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 24 February 2016
for more details of incident of misappropriation of funds) for them
to commence and perform their audit procedures in respect of the
financial results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Elite Partners CPA Limited was appointed as the new auditor of the Company
with effect from 9 December 2016 to fill the casual vacancy following the
termination of engagement with Deloitte. Elite Partners shall hold office until
the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company.

Shareholders’ rights

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene
extraordinary general meetings (“EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles, one or more registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company (the
"EGM Requisitionists”) carrying right of voting at the general meetings
can deposit a written requisition to convene an EGM to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the registered office, which is presently
situated at Vistra (Cayman) Limited, P.O Box 31119, Grand Pavillion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands, or its office in Hong Kong, which is presently situated at Unit 02,
15/F, AXA Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The EGM
Requisitionists must state in their requisition the businesses of the EGM
to be transacted and such requisition must be signed by all the EGM
Requisitionists.

Promptly after confirmation that the EGM Requisitionists’ requisition is
in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene
the EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders
in accordance with all the relevant statutory requirements. According
to the Articles, the EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of the requisition. If within twenty-one days of the deposit of
the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the
EGM Requisitionists may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by them as a result of failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists by the Company.
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Procedures for the Shareholders to put forward
proposals at a general meeting

To put forward proposals at AGM or EGM, the Shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact
information to the Board or the Company Secretary at Unit 02, 15/F,
AXA Center, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified and upon confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Company Secretary will request the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM

At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company in EGM or an ordinary or
special resolution of the Company in AGM

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the
Company's website www.dongyuechem.com.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

Unit 02, 15/F
AXA Centre,
1 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fax: 2180-7524
Email: carrie_dy@hotmail.com
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Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at any general
meetings of the Company.

Investor relations
Communication channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
Shareholders, the Company has established various channels to
facilitate and enhance communication:

the AGM provides a forum for the Shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board; and

updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company's website to enable the Shareholders and the investor
community to have timely access to information about the Group.

The Chairman and the Directors (including the chairmen and/or the

members of the various Board Committees) are available at AGM to
answer questions raised by the Shareholders.

Change in the constitutional documents of
the Company

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, there
has been no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 31 May 2017
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Dongyue Group attaches great importance to the communication
with stakeholders by using various channels to disseminate
the Group's social responsibility philosophy and practices, and
understand the requirements of stakeholders, and taking measures

to meet the reasonable expectations and pursuits of stakeholders.
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Business communication
Customer feedback

Exchange & discussion
Negotiation & cooperation
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Improving the community environment
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Workers' congress
Collective consultation
Democratic communication platform
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Company website
Company announcement
Interview & exchange

In order to enhance the pertinence and responsiveness of
the report, the Group identified the subject of sustainable
development and determined the significance in accordance with
the requirements of Hong Kong Stock Exchange's Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (ESG Guide) and Global
Reporting Initiative’s Sustainability Reporting Guidelines (G4.0), to

ensure that the information disclosed in the report covers the key

issues which are related with the Company’s development and

the stakeholders are concerned about.
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Selection process of environmental, social and governance issues
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Sources of issues
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- Proposed by management of the Company
—RIMNBER IR
— Proposed by internal and external experts based on analysis
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— Analysis of media information
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— Contribution to sustainable development
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- Meeting the strategic development needs of the Company
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Determination of materiality

c>u"""m‘4‘<ﬁﬁmunc>nm""""<M‘<¢"m""m<D

62 REEBARQE —B-AFFH



Environmen

EXEEERE

Matrix of Major Issues

EREHESER

Determination of Significance

=)

High

RETRER
Promoting industry development

BT HBiER

Employees’salaries and benefits

HBERERE
Intellectual property management
B TR ER
Employee training and development

BTRRER

Employee occupational health

e EE

Supplier management

HNZBEINERRRE

Importance for stakeholders

& " . =
o HAEENESIZE igh

Importance to the Group




RiE - HERERME
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

2. AIEEE 2. Sustainable operation
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For Dongyue Group, sustainable development is not limited to
growth of the Company’s operational results and market size,
but also includes the Group's performance of responsibilities
towards the society and environment. Integrating the concept of
sustainable development into the daily operation and extending it
to various stakeholders is an important way for Dongyue Group to
march toward the goals of environmental protection, science and
technology, and internationalization.

2.1 Integrity and compliance

In 2016, the Group further implemented the integrity and
compliance requirements, comprehensively rationalized the
fund management process and system, improved the internal
control system, adjusted and standardized the fund-raising
and financing, transfer and payment of large amount of
funds in cash, financial and payment and other procedures.
Meanwhile, it reshuffled the internal audit management
system by separating the internal audit department from the
Group's financial system so as to effectively implement the
Group's overall supervision and evaluation, and to ensure the
independence, effectiveness, and authority of the internal
audit.

The Group attaches great importance to anti-corruption,
and actively carries out legal education activities for anti-
corruption, strengthens incorruptibility and self-discipline
awareness and legal concepts of party members and cadres,
strictly abides by the laws and regulations, and sets up
whistling mailboxes and hot lines, to encourage people to
report the Company's internal fraudulent practices, violations,
and corruptions. Therefore, a system for the punishment
and prevention of corruptions that integrates education,
institution and supervision was established, which ensures
the healthy development of the Company.
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2.2 Quality control

The Group strictly controls the internal production and
operation process of the Company, and continuously
improves the quality management system from raw material
procurement, production and quality inspection to ensure
the quality of the products. Dongyue Group disposes of the
the substandard raw materials for production at a discount or
return them to the supplers according to the requirements
of raw material inspection and acceptance management,
to guarantee the stable quality of the four major solid raw
materials for production, i.e., raw coal, crude salt, calcium
carbide and fluorite powder. Meanwhile, the Group has
formulated the Quality Inspection Management System, and
inspects the quality of various products through the product
inspection centers of its subsidiaries, samples and analyzes
the products and issues reports on them in accordance with
the finished product inspection procedures and national
standards or industrial standards. Substandard products will
be reviewed and treated in accordance with the Substandard
Product Control Procedures, and their sales will be strictly
prohibited so as to protect the overall product quality of
Dongyue Group.

In addition, the Group continuously promotes the
informationalization of operation and automation reform in
a number of production systems and energy management
systems of the Group. For example, Dongyue Group
Electric Power Department implemented the automation
reform for the Group's power distribution room, which
made background remote control of power outage and
transmission of the substation possible, effectively reduced
the manual operational error and production risks, greatly
enhanced the work efficiency and product quality, and
promoted the Group to explore a road of scientific and
technological innovation and intelligence.
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Customer services

The branches and subsidiaries of the Group, according to
their own business characteristics, understand the individual
needs of customers through different customer relationship
maintenance channels, and provide quality services and
products, striving to enhance the quality of customer
services from multiple angles, and achieve mutual benefit
with customers. In 2016, the Group held the annual meeting
of industry chain cooperation, during which, more than 500
high-quality customers in the world jointly discussed China’s
economic trends under the background of the supply side
reform, development prospect for fluorine silicon materials
industry, and scientific and technological innovation strategy.
By holding this annual meeting, the Group attracted a
large number of high-end customers and reached strategic
cooperation intention with them. The Group acquired more
than 100 new customers, which greatly enhanced the
Group's product sales and brand influence.

Meanwhile, the Group attaches great importance to
customer feedback and complaints, and thus has developed
a sound quality complaint handling process and customer
satisfaction survey mechanism. During the peak sales
season of each year, branches and subsidiaries will send
the Customer Satisfaction Questionnaire to our customers
to survey the customers’ satisfaction, their opinion about
quality of the delivered products, the user opinion surveys,
the business loss analysis, the guaranteed commitments,
the distributor reports and so on. All of these are taken as
the basis for the assessment and improvement of adequacy,
suitability and effectiveness of quality management system.

Supply chain management

The Group strengthens the integrated management of
supply chain, and selects high-quality suppliers in accordance
with the standard supplier selection mechanism, to protect
the quality of raw materials for production. The Group
endeavours to solidify and maintain its relationship with
suppliers through a variety of exchange and communication
methods, and provides supports to suppliers to achieve win-
win development.

iR



2.4.1 HERRE

REBBRETENEREERE
R BIREEEE  HEH
o BINAE - TTERE CRE
EETEXHSHELDMHERN -
HAEHERAEAT N EE
TEMWER  UERBHERNEE
TERLENE - 8L
EEEGRE  BEEF-
TERREBRE  HRAEESS ﬁ
BIIE - ALLEER - #ZE2016
FE  AEERMBHENELE
1m%v%w%#ﬁﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁ

CEMBEREESMAEAR
E~Jﬁ~ I OLE - LB
# o

242t EE A FREE

REERRKEREHEEFNAE
ME  TEHEHERETR
o EBRY EREEKEEMT
FERPE - -REBFEBER
Bk AEERBARIRMZFE
BhERIS IR - m R A E
R -REEEFRARIILRRER
BEMHBRAR ARR=TH
MHRERE  REZHERIR
figks  EERTHHERIAKX
TeBHARBERRR  KES%
REMRAMRERR  FZA
B =TT B0 A B T B R BT
HmEARNEESTE - EZK
N RAEERNEEHER -

B HERERRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

2.4.1Supplier selection

The Group insists on perfecting and implementing
the supplier selection mechanism. We actively look
for high-quality suppliers through professional media,
professional websites, peer introduction, industry
associations, exhibitions and other platforms. We set up
an investigation team to conduct field surveys for the
newly developed suppliers, so as to have an idea about
the level of sophistication of their production process,
their independent R&D capability, production control
measures, quality systems, safety and environmental
protection systems, and to confirm whether they are
qualified for tendering and bidding and inquiry. As
of the end of 2016, the Group had 120 raw material
suppliers in total. Except for 60% of them located in
Shandong Province, other suppliers are mainly scattered
in Inner Mongolia, Hebei, Sichuan, Jiangxi, Jiangsu and
other places.

2.4.2Maintenance of supplier relationship

The Group has always attached importance to the
cooperation with suppliers. It communicates with them
from time to time, and actively shares information about
major business events and industry development trends
with them. According to its own business development
needs, the Group helps suppliers through exchange
and support, and seeks for common development with
them. In order to broaden the purchasing channels of
ternary copper powder and provide opportunities for
more suppliers, Shandong Dongyue Silicone Materials
Co,, Ltd, a subsidiary of Dongyue Group, chose Jiangsu
Dafang Metal Powder Co., Ltd. as its new supplier.
After several technical exchanges and repeated testing,
the production process and technology of ternary
copper powder of this company gradually satisfied the
production needs of the Company, and this company
has thus become a high-quality supplier of the Group.
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Scientific and technological innovation

The Group always adheres to the “science and technology plus
environmental protection” development direction. Leveraging
on the existing advantages, it focuses on high-end product
development, and continuously conducts optimization and
upgrades in the industry in line with the market demand and
environmental trends. It has been identified as one national
key high-tech enterprise, national new material industry base
backbone enterprise, national science and technology and trade
export innovation base, etc. In 2016, Dongyue Group won the
National Professional and Technical Personnel Advanced Entity
award, a second prize of National Technology Invention, and
a first prize of Shandong Province Science and Technology
Invention Award and other awards. It has driven the coordinated
development of relevant industries & sectors through scientific and
technological innovation. During this Reporting Period, Dongyue
Group invested RMB73,947,000 on research and development.

3.1 Application of innovative achievements

The Group actively applies achievements of R&D innovation
in production and practice to serve social environmental
protection and economic development. In 2016, the
Group's two key R&D projects have successfully transformed
their achievements into productivity: DF2806 chlor-alkali
membrane realized successful trial production, and fuel
cell membrane passed all technical evaluations of AFCC
(Automotive Fuel Cell Cooperation), a joint venture between
Daimler-Benz AG and Ford for the R&D of fuel cell engine.

In 2016, the Group successfully completed the R&D and trial
production of DF2806 chlor-alkali membrane so that the
overall performance of DF2806 membrane almost reaches
or are close to the performance of the current mainstream
commercial membrane, marking another record of the key
technology of the new-generation independently-developed
domestic chlor-alkali membrane.
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Fuel cell vehicles are considered the best model of
new energy vehicles. Their core component is fuel
cell membrane, which is known as the soul of fuel cell
vehicles. In 2016, the fuel cell membrane developed
by the Company passed all technical evaluations of
AFCC, making the Company one of the two qualified
enterprises in the world. The fuel cell membrane
can enhance the service life and stability of fuel cell
vehicles, and plays a significant role in promoting
the development of the industry and contributing to
environmental protection.

3.2 Introduction of senior intellectuals and top

talents

The Group adheres to strengthening the Group’s innovation
and R&D capabilities and promoting the Company’s high
efficiency and technological development with the support
of high-end talents. The Group adheres to the talent concept
of “values should be reflected by economic efficiency and
talents should be rewarded with wealth”, and provides a
good R&D environment and economic returns for the talents.
Meanwhile, it adheres to the talent introduction mechanism
of “individual by individual and case by case policy”, to select
talents without limitation. As of the end of 2016, the Group
had three research and development institutes, i.e., Dongyue
Research Institute, Dongyue-Tsinghua Green Refrigerant New
Tech R&D center, and Dongyue Shanghai Jiaoda Polymer
Material Institute. Among them, Dongyue Research Institute
has a strong scientific and research team comprising several
doctors.
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The Group actively integrates internal and external human
resources so that they cooperate closely, and cooperates
with well-known colleges and universities to establish a R&D
system that combines industry, university, research, and
practice whereby it sets up research institutions in colleges
and universities to promote enterprise’s high-end R&D
process. In the research and development of per fluorinated
ionomer membrane, the Group and Shanghai Jiaotong
University jointly assumed several major national projects.
The Company also carries out Perfluoropolyether (PFPE)
lubricant project for the aerospace with Lanzhou Institute of
Chemical Physics. In addition, the Group also carries out joint
research with AFCC, Sunrise Power and other domestic and
foreign organizations.

Promote the development of the industry

As the council member of China Petroleum and Chemical
Industry Federation, vice chairman unit of China Association
of Fluorine and Silicone Industry, chairman unit of China
Fluorine Plastics Processing Industry Association, the Group
is committed to promoting the coordinated development of
the whole industry while seeking for its own development.
In 2016, the Group participated in or hosted the China
Fluorine Silicon Industry Development Planning and Industry
Exchange Conference for the “13th Five-Year Plan” period,
China Fluorine Chemical Technology Development and
Application Seminar, National Chemical Waste Salt, Residue
Management and Technology Development Forum, and
other important exchange activities, to share industry
technology and development experience.
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In addition, in order to better regulate the scientific
research, production, and application of chlor-alkali
perfluorinated ionomer membrane in China, the Group
actively participates in the formulation of national standards
and industrial standards, and was responsible for drafting
three national standards for chlor-alkali perfluorinated
ionomer membrane, i.e., Perfluorinated ionomer membrane
for chlor-alkali industry — General technical specifications
(GB/T 30295-2013), Perfluorinated ionomer membrane for
chlor-alkali industry — Test method (GB/T 30296-2013), and
Perfluorinated ion-exchange membrane for chlor-alkali industry
— Specification on application (GB/T 30297-2013), which have
been released and implemented. These series of standards
are the world's first group of national standards of chlor-
alkali perfluorinated ionomer membrane, which is of great
significance in protecting China’s independent intellectual
property rights and promoting foreign trade. In 2016, we
organized the preparation of national standard Determination
of perfluorooctane sulfonates and perfluorooctanoic acid
in separation membrane - LC-MS/MS (national standard
committee project number 20151848-T-469), draft for
approval of which has been completed.

4. Production safety

The Group, always adhering to the principle of “safety first,
prevention primarily, and comprehensive management” and
abiding by the basic management requirements of “zero accident
and zero tolerance”, constructs the safety management framework
at various levels and from various aspects, namely safety culture,
management system, emergency response, awareness and skills
training, etc. In 2016, with the concerted efforts of all employees,
the Group had not experienced any personal injury and death
accident.
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4.1 Safety culture and management

4.1.1Safety culture

The Group regards production safety as the core value

of the enterprise and is committed to building a safety

management culture with Dongyue characteristics.

In order to enhance the safety management level,

we put forward ten principles of safety management

covering three dimensions, i.e., leadership, employee

responsibilities and risk control.

BHEH EISEME [ B 42 ol
Leadership Employee responsibilities Risk control
e RAEEEEHRBEERNZT T2 EREE I EERMHT *  PTASEMEERIATERIRY

ZEEER
Management at all levels is
directly responsible for the safety
of their respective duty areas

s XMEEERRAIBRIHTT
PEITLEAME
Management at all levels takes
a visual action to fulfill safety
responsibilities

BAERLR —B-AFFEH

Safety is the primary requirement
for hiring employees

BT VARRBERNLRE
Bl

Employees must undergo
rigorous safety training
BETEER2HEZMRE
Employees’ direct invoviement
is the key

All accidents are preventable

o {EEBIERFAENRRES
B2 Erdall it
All risks in the course of the
operation should be identified
and controlled

o EMLPBBEMATIE
All safety hazards found must
be corrected

o DRBHA c REIEE
No operation is allowed without
permission

o ITRIMIRERIEEER
Safety after work is equally
important
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4.1.2Management system

The Group set clear policy objectives for safety and
management system with reference to the Production
Safety Law and other relevant laws and regulations, and
thereby implements the safety and occupational health
management in every particular step of the operation.

In order to put superior resources into the safety
management, the Group established the Production
Safety Committee headed by the chairman and the
president as the vice head, and whose members
include vice president of the Group, heads of various
departments, and general managers of subsidiaries. The
Production Safety Committee regularly meets to discuss
the production safety within the Group, to consider
the main issues of current production safety, and to

formulate corresponding measures.
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T REEBEREZEEEEES Figure: Safety and Health Management Organization
of Dongyue Group
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= functional departments and subsidiaries
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Regularly review the Group's production safety
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Consider and determine the major problems in production safety and the measures to be
taken

J

Production
Safety
Committee
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Production safety, daily management & control of equipment and facilities, and supervision
and evaluation
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Formulate and supervise the implementation of Group's safety policies, management
system standards, etc.
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Promote construction and implementation of DuPont, GB/T28001 and safety standardization
system, and create a safety culture
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Regularly assess the implementation of the target responsibility
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Safety
equipment
department
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The professional management must include safety and implement the production safety

&2 e s responsibility system of the functional departments
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management Develop professional management rules and regulations, and supervise their implementation

departments
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Implement management and supervision duties
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Implement local management and linear responsibility; the management at all levels
implement production safety responsibility system by participating in visual action and
practicing sense of leadership
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Promote the implementation of standards of DuPont and Formosa Plastics as well as safety
standards, and establish efficient safety production management system
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Establish and constantly improve the risk-rating control and to-be-accident risk investig ion
and management system, to eliminate hidden dangers in a timely manner

AR ERABAMBEREIAIE  REREABNBERR

Organize the implementation of their occupational hazards prevention and control work, to
protect the occupational health of employees )
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Subsidiaries
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4.2 Risk prevention and control

The Group attaches importance to the prevention and
control of safety risks in production and operation. The
Group takes various measures to control production safety
risks, including focusing on the process control, deepening
the inspection and supervision, carrying out the contractor
safety management and so on.

4.2.1Process control

The Group implements local management and liner
responsibilities for the subsidiaries and production
process of workshops. Each production unit develops
a clear and detailed division of safety responsibility
according to the actual situation, establishes workflows
for normal production, inspection and maintenance,
special operations, high-risk operations, incident
handling, etc. according to the safety laws and
regulations and the Group's requirements. Meanwhile,
they also establish and constantly improve the
production safety risk-rating control and to-be-accident
risk investigation and management system, to eliminate
hidden dangers in a timely manner.

4.2.2Hazardous chemical management

The Group has strict control over the storage,
transportation and use of hazardous chemicals, and has
transferred the safety management from the supervision
of the terminal results to the risk control of the process.
We regularly identify the safety hazards of the process
by implementing process hazard analysis (such as the
Hazard and Operability Analysis (HAZOP)) for all process
plants, and use this as a guide in improving the process
specifications, design of equipment and facilities, and
manual operational practices.
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In order to maximize the control of the impact of the
details of process on the management of hazardous
chemicals, we implement a strict change management
workflow for the process equipment, to carry out
level-to-level management and control for the
process parameters, alarm of equipment’s operating
parameters, process deviation and other abnormalities,
which ensures that the risks associated with hazardous
material during operations are controllable through the
abnormality analysis, evaluation, and post-record and
tracking.

4.2.3Contractor safety management

The Group revised the Contractor Management Process
of Dongyue Group in 2016 to strengthen the operational
safety management of contractors and other external
personnel, and urged subsidiaries to reorganize and
standardize the contractor management. We require
contractors to implement the same safety discipline
standards, training standards, and control standards
as the employees of the Group. Both the Group and
its subsidiaries have formulated the Contractor’s
Comprehensive Checklist to standardize the inspection
standards and require that at least one special
inspection must be conducted every month, and
corrective measures for the problems found must be
implemented in a timely manner.

4.2.40ccupational health management

The Group attaches greatimportance to the
occupational health management of employees,
and organizes employee medical examination, and
establishes health records each year. Meanwhile, it
constantly improves the automatic control level of
equipment, and takes strict closure and isolation
measures, toreduce employee’s exposure to
occupational hazards. We organize special training on
occupational disease prevention and control every year,
and provide staff with comprehensive and adequate
occupational disease protection equipment, to improve
staff's awareness of labor protection. In 2016, there
was no outbreak of occupational disease among the
employees of the Group.
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Emergency response and drill

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations, the
Group regularly revises the comprehensive emergency
plans for accidents, special plans and on-site disposal plans.
Subsidiaries have formulated the corresponding emergency
plans based on the Group's emergency plans. The Group and
its subsidiaries organize the company-wide comprehensive
emergency drills at least twice a year, each workshop
organizes a special emergency drill every month, and each
post organizes on-site disposal program drill at least twice
a month. In 2016, a total of 539 drills were organized at all
levels, with a participation of 58,324 person-times, which
effectively enhanced the staff's self-prevention and self-help
ability and the emergency response capability of subsidiaries
and posts.

Awareness building and training

The Group is committed to enhancing the safety awareness
of employees and contractors through various safety training
and related activities. In 2016, we conducted a safety
awareness survey for the management, professional staff and
all employees of the Group and its subsidiaries. Further, we
developed a training program for different job classification.
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Job classification

EERTEAREERE
Management of the Group and its
subsidiaries

EERTEBARIEAER
Staff of the Group and its subsidiaries

ZREBAR
Safety manager

EEAE

Production personnel

HABAE

New recruits

ABEAE

Contractor’s personnel
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BIFRER
Elements of training program
v ZRBRERA
Safety policies and principles
v ZRERER
Safety laws and regulations
v ZEEET)
Safety leadership
v 72 E IR E KB
Safety management and corporate strategy
v HY % B B R IR
Fire safety and emergency command
v R ER A
Safety policies and principles
v LERERER
Safety laws and regulations
v HI R 2 HRER{TE
Fire safety and emergency action
v ZEBRERE
Safety policies and principles
v LERBER
Safety laws and regulations
v LR EIR AL
Safety management and organization
v TEZ2ER
Process safety information
v BB
Check and audit skills
v SH % 2 L S AR A
Fire safety and emergency response organization
v ZEBERERE
Safety policies and principles
v LERERER
Safety laws and regulations
v HEEZR G ERRIERIE
Production safety rules and operational procedures
v FTE A B R bR
Occupational disease prevention and control of the post
v HY % 2 B ITE
Fire safety and emergency action
v ZEBRERE
Safety policies and principles
v RERRER
Safety laws and regulations
v HBIZBREHE
Three-level safety education for new employees
v Z R BR R A
Safety policies and principles
v 1EZAERE 2 2 Z kT
Job-related safety requirements training
v [\ B 2R

Risk disclosure
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5. Energy conservation and environmental
protection

The Group strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations on
environmental protection, energy conservation and emission
reduction, constantly improves the energy conservation and
emission reduction management system, actively implements the
technological transformation for energy conservation and emission
reduction, and strives to reduce the use of resource during the
production and operation, eliminate and reduce environmental
pollution. In pursuit of the operating performance, the Group
continues to reduce the impact on the environment and enhance
the Company’s green competitiveness.

5.1 Strengthen the environmental management

Based on the national environmental protection policies,
regulations and standards, the Group has formulated more
stringent internal control standards in accordance with the
requirements of the ISO14001 environmental management
system, so as to ensure that the environmental management
workis in a controllable state all the time and the
environmental protection and energy conservation targets
are at the advanced level of the national counterparts. The
Group has established and improved the environmental
management mechanism and vertically and horizontally
chained three-layer environmental protection management
network, to ensure the fulfillment of environmental
responsibilities at each level. The Group has invested more
than RMB250 million on energy-saving environmental
protection facilities since 2008.

The Group upholds the concept of “green office and low-
carbon life” and takes the “green office” as an effective way
to enhance employees’ saving consciousness and achieve
cost-reduction and increase profits. In addition, the Group
appeals employees to practice thrift from small things, such
as reducing use of water, electricity and office supplies and
advocates the green office model. The Group encourages
employees to practice green travel, advocates the use of
telephone conferences and other means of communication,
promotes the paperless office, advocates the recycle of
paper, and makes uniform requirements for the office
lighting, air conditioning temperature and so on.
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5.2 Reduce the use of resource

During the production and operation, the Group constantly
improves the energy saving and emission reduction
management system, strengthens the internal management,
actively updates the energy saving and emission reduction
technology, and strives to reduce the resource consumption,
to build a resource-saving and environment-friendly
enterprise.

5.2.1Reduce the energy consumption

The Group has developed a series of energy
management systems to strengthen the energy
management. The Company has formulated the
Regulations on the Energy Targets and Energy Efficiency
Performance Evaluation, which stipulates the
management process of the Company’s energy target
system assessment and monitoring indicators as well
as the evaluation methods and processes of energy
efficiency performance. Meanwhile, the Company has
developed the Regulations on Energy Assessment to
monitor the energy management level and the energy
utilization. In addition, the Company makes an in-depth
investigation of the problem, enhances the weakness,
taps the energy-saving potential and looks for the
energy saving direction, in order to achieve the goals of
“energy saving”, “consumption reduction” and "“efficiency
improvement”.

The Company reduces the energy consumption through
active energy-saving transformation, establishes the
quantitative assessment system for energy conservation
and consumption reduction, and decomposes and
assigns the energy consumption indicators to different
parts of the work to promote the energy saving work.
In 2016, the Group introduced a third-party service
organization to install the energy efficiency control
system, frequency converter and automatic control
instrument on 1# circulating water pump system and
installed the energy-saving device on 9 brine pumps
of 706-1 workshop and refrigeration workshop, to
achieve energy-saving effect. After 4 months’' operation,
T# circulating water pump system saved 900,000 kWh
electricity and 9 brine pumps saved 376,000 kWh

pEamahte
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The Group's products mainly include refrigerants,
polymer materials, organic silicon, dichloromethane,
polyvinyl chloride, caustic soda and other chemical
materials, and the main energy consumed in the
manufacturing process is electricity and coal. The
energy saving in 2016 was 586.20 tons standard coal.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's energy
utilization is as follows:

HE
Quantity

Grid power consumption
RS

Coal consumption

v

Gasoline

geh

Diesel
RERIRBRR

Comprehensive energy consumption

5.22kERER

RS B B AR AR M AR EE KM AR
RKNERE  SEMBEXAE
BRARKREBERER  BXE
WEER - AEABTEREKD
WESRIKBERERBRS - £E
REERMA R EIKEEK - HHE
EFKUETT YA R IR - AR
BEEFREREARIERNF
Ke RTHBBEIEORAK &
BHE TCRKERBRE)  LAE
BEE EEEVARSEIH

IKE

SNBE 1,333,253,764/%
Purchased electricity 1,333,253,764 kWh
BIRES 605,355MF
Total coal consumption 605,355 tons
BEE 169,380,000/%
Power generation 169,380,000 kWh
78,0897+

78,089 liters

4,887F

4,887 liters

623,197.78MEIZ 1
623,197.78 tons standard coal

5.2.2Water resource management

The Group strictly controls the consumption of water
for production and domestic use. The workshops are
responsible for the water-using equipment and piping
in their respective responsible areas. The Company
organizes the installation of waste water recovery
system or water recycling system, strives to collect the
recyclable waste water of the workshop and discharge
it to the water purification station for recycling and
processing, and gives priority to the use of recycled
water in accordance with the production needs. In
order to encourage employees to save water, the
Group formulated the Water Management Regulations,
and improves the employees’ water-saving awareness
through supervision, publicity and other forms.
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The Group adopts biochemical treatment for the
domestic sewage, office waste water and other parts
of organic industrial wastewater in the plant area. The
domestic sewage must go through the septic tank in
the plant area before entering the treatment system.
The Group performs recycling and comprehensive
utilization of the waste water in the living area. The
Group conducts the wastewater treatment in strict
accordance with the standard to ensure that the
wastewater discharge meets the standards.

During the Reporting Period, the wastewater discharge
data is as follows:

gE
B ERE Types of emissions Quantity
REXBERR 4B £ (W8) Total wastewater discharge (ton) 396,000,0
CODHER = (1E) COD emissions (ton) 178.2
[ATEME (B8) Ammonia nitrogen emissions (ton) 17.82

ABREHAR SEBBAKER
15,389,860MA °
53 FRYERE

AEBEITERBERDERE - KNS
B RIERE RS EESREHRENTE
fEE&E -
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total water
consumption was 15,389,860 tons.

5.3 Emissions management

The Group lays stress on regulating the emissions
management and takes appropriate measures to minimize
the impact of the production process on the environment.

Ealatte
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5.3.1Waste management

The Group constructs qualified pollution prevention and
control facilities, implements the feedback requirements
of the environmental impact assessment, and properly
prevents and controls pollution in strict accordance
with relevant laws and regulations. The legal persons
of subsidiaries of the Group shall sign the responsibility
letter of environmental safety management for
hazardous wastes each year, prepare annual hazardous
waste management plan and strengthen the on-site
management of hazardous wastes from every part of
production, storage and transportation, to prevent
environmental risks. Meanwhile, the Group achieves
the “reduction, recycling and hazard-free treatment”
of hazardous wastes through the development and
utilization of cleaner production technology and the
improvement of management and technical measures,
to improve the recycling efficiency of resources.

Polymers Company, Shenzhou Company, F&S Company
and Organic Silicone Company of the Group are
equipped with incinerators, which are mainly used for
the harmless disposal of HW11 (distillation residue fluid
and distillation slag) incineration. For the waste catalyst
that the Group cannot safely dispose of, the Group will
hand it over to qualified third-party disposal entities for
processing in accordance with the laws and regulations.

Currently, the solid wastes of the subsidiaries of the
Group are mainly the calcium sulfate slag and carbide
slag of Chemicals Company as well as the fly ash and
slag in the power plant of F&S Company. The Group
has taken effective measures to carry out the harmless
treatment of wastes and comprehensive recycling.
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ABEHA - EEFERYBE RN

During the Reporting Period, the Group's emissions are

N as follows:
BHRER HE
Types of emissions Quantity
FMEXAEEEDHEE BEidE) 90
Total hazardous wastes Waste oil (ton)
generated RE(E(L Y (1E) 394
Spent catalyst (ton)
WG 8 (MR) 5
Incinerator residue (ton)
HWIETE IR B ) RIS IR IMEYED ) (ME) 5,143
HW11 hazardous wastes (the part that is directly transported
outward without incineration) (ton)
HW45 %5 & i & 22 17 (M ) 835
HW45 hazardous wastes (ton)
ELBEZEREMES ARTERD (MR ) 800
Total harmless wastes Fine silicon powder (ton)
generated BIHRIACE (14) 181,606.5
Power plant ash (ton)
B F 4 (1) 1.2
Electronic waste (ton)
A ARSI (W) 48
Domestic garbage (ton)
AR (R ) 12
Office garbage (ton)
HippEzY (W) 350,000

BERLRE —EB-AFEH

Other wastes (ton)

Ealatte
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5.3.2Exhaust management

The Group attaches great importance to the
management of pollutants. By increasing investment
on environmental protection and conducting
technological transformation, the Group ensures that
its pollutant discharge can meet the standards. In 2016,
the Group mainly implemented two energy-saving and
emission-reduction projects aiming at improving the
atmospheric environment governance: the emission
reduction project of incineration of 3,000 tons of HFC-
23 hydrofluorocarbon per year and ultra-low emission
transformation project of power plants. Based on the
original desulfurization and denitrification project that
has already met the discharge standards, the ultra-low
emission transformation project of power plants is an
in-depth environment governance and transformation
project of environmental facilities. This technical
transformation project can reduce 129 tons of sulfur
dioxide emission and 112 tons of nitrogen oxides
emission annually. The project reform could effectively
reduce the Group's emissions to the atmospheric
environment of local area.

Meanwhile, the Company has been actively carrying
out clean production and further improving its energy
conservation efficiency. These efforts include the
implementation of clean production by Fluorosilicone
Company, Polymer Company, Organic Silicon Company,
Shenzhou Company and Chemical Company which had
been assessed and accepted by the local environmental
protection agency. Dongyue Fluorosilicone Company
has proposed 14 clean production plans with annual
discharge reduction of waste water by 136,000 cubic
meters, of chemical oxygen demand by 4.76 tons, of
ammonia nitrogen by 0.105 tons, of dust by 1 ton
and of sulfur dioxide by 0.4 tons. Dongyue Chemical
Company has proposed 17 clean production plans with
the annual emission reduction of 9,900 cubic meters
of waste water, 1.73 tons of chemical oxygen demand,
and 0.02 tons of ammonia nitrogen.
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By taking these measures, the Group has reduced
its pollutant discharge, among which, sulfur dioxide
emissions has been reduced by 15,329 tons, nitrogen
oxides emission by 2,677 tons, volatile organic
compound emission by 56 tons and dust emission
by 131,714 tons. In addition, the Group has also
commissioned a qualified third-party monitoring
organization to monitor the daily discharge of all
pollutants according to the regulations and to conduct
a comprehensive assessment of pollutant discharge
on a regular basis. The discharge outlets of the park
have fully met the discharge standards for several
consecutive years since the online system of the power
plant and the water plant had started running.

At present, the pollutant discharge of the subsidiaries
of the Group mainly includes sulfur dioxide, nitrogen
oxides, volatile organic compounds and other industrial
emissions.

The emissions of the Group in 2016 are shown as

follows:
HE
B ESE Types of Pollutants Quantity
ZE R E (HE) Sulfur dioxide (ton) 1,413
REt B E (HR) Nitrogen oxides (ton) 694
MEEHERE () Dust (ton) 182
BE A () Volatile organic compounds (ton) 87
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6. Staff caring

The Group attaches great importance to talents development, and
upholds the concept of “Values should be reflected by profitability
and talents should be rewarded by wealth”. By taking advantage of
an advanced talents development mechanism, a clear promotion

nel and work-life balance, the Group attracts, retains and

nurtures its employees, so as to provide strong support for the

technological innovation and sustainable development of the
enterprise.

6.1 RIFTAAER 6.1

AEBREERBEIEER - BE
REEIMELRER  BHERMER

FEMBMEBRESEAE M
REBBHETR REERHURS

A REBEEBE N ATEAENE
BEREETHRMOTENTWEFNER -
BRIERR(EBEMEEREREE LT
Bl R - HE2016FK - REEBEE
THRAEESCOAN  HP BT
tE&10% - A EES Tt A85% °
ERBLRERRRECEZ— BE
EEASBMEMAS S ERAERTE
METEZRR °

2% —l

Innovate the concept of talents

The Group has been actively protecting the basic rights
and interests of its staff according to relevant national laws
and regulations and has been striving to achieve equality
of gender, to eliminate and resist the use of child labor and
other behaviors like forced labor. At the same time, the
Group has been upholding the “employment-oriented” belief,
determining the comprehensive Remuneration Benefit System
according to staff's actual abilities and their contribution to the
enterprise, and determining staff's working hours according
to related regulations of National Labor Law. As at the end
of 2016, the total number of employees of Dongyue Group
was 5,660, among whom, female employees account for 10%,
staff with local household registration account for 85%. As
one of the top 100 private enterprises in Shandong Province,
Dongyue Group has made important contributions to Zibo's
talents introduction and local employment stability.

90% 47%
mEEEET W 30EFAT 31-403A 5% [ g =F=3-n
Male employees U“def 39: Ag\ed)Eetvveen 31-40 Staff with local
BT W 41-5048 5% SOEBRIA L household registration
Female employees Aged between  Aged over 50 SMBPFEE T
41-50

Staff without local
household registration
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6.2

The Group innovates its concept of talents by implementing
the talents incentive mechanism of “equity, option, bonus
plus commission”, the talent integration mechanism
of “not to own, but to use”, the talents introduction
mechanism of “special policy for special talents” and
the selection mechanism of “identifying talents by their
working performances”. The talents concept and innovation
mechanism of Dongyue Group has been fully recognised
by the central government and leaders of China. Premier
Li Kegiang has personally revised the concept of talents for
the Group. Li Yuanchao, who was then the minister of the
Organization Department of CCCPC, specially sent a research
group from the Organization Department to Dongyue to
learn. Later, a long research report was published in the
Organization Department Communications to promote
Dongyue’s experience in developing talents.

Broaden ways of career development

There are four ways of promotion for the staff of the Group:
cadre promotion, title promotion, staff promotion, higher
education promotion and professional talents promotion.
According to the principle of “limited performance, having
both ability and integrity as well as possibility of promotion
and demotion”, the Group has effectively combined the
corporate development with the career path of its staff,
which provides a smooth promotion channel for staff at all
positions and fully mobilizes their enthusiasm and creativity.

In January 2016, the Group and its subsidiaries organized a
competition and rotation of positions activity to break the
traditional practice of “only promotion, no demotion”. A total
of 301 people participated in the competition that involved
positions in production workshop, logistics management and
marketing staff of all the regional and overseas offices; 69
people participated in cadre rotation, which involved some
key management positions in professional departments as
well as functional departments. This competition and rotation
of positions activity not only provides an opportunity for the
subsidiaries of the Group to rationalize their organizational
structure and make clear of the responsibility of each
position, but also builds a platform for young capable
employees to show their talents, during which 18 young
cadres stood out in the competition and were assigned to
important positions.
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6.3 Improve the staff training system

In line with the talents development mechanism and to
build a learning organization, the Group has established a
comprehensive staff training system: a staff training center of
the Group has been set up; a group of training projects have
also been set up, which includes one training project for
senior managers, one for reserve management talents and
other management personnel training programs as well as
training projects for professionals in different business lines.
The Group taps the need of staff training and monitors the
implementation of staff training policies at four levels: the
group level, the subsidiary level, the production workshop
level and the production team level. In 2016, a total of 4,417
employees were trained involving 189 training hours.

Dongyue Group implemented the “five-100" talent project:
gave support and subsidize to 100 on-the-job cadres staff
to obtain master, doctor and other advanced degrees; gave
support and award to 100 on-the-job cadres staff to obtain
promotion-related professional titles concerning technology,
engineering, finance, auditing, securities, security,
environmental protection, mechanical equipment and others;
gave support and award to 100 in-service cadres above the
squad leader level to accept MBA business management
training; 100 outstanding cadres and staff were selected
and trained as senior reserve cadres and talents for priority
cultivation and use; 100 people with master or doctor degree
and professional managers.

In 2016, Dongyue Group mainly focused on innovated
exchange mechanisms and the creation of a professional
exchange platform, so that the exchange meeting could
become the main stage for solving problems and promotion
of skills. During 2016, 46 innovated experience-exchange
meeting were held; 33 brief reports were edited, printed and
distributed. At those meetings, 29 specialization technologies
were discussed; 130 experiences were shared; 12
achievements were made; 30 reasonable suggestions were
collected, and 111 professional suggestions were brought

up.
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6.4 Care for the life of staff

In order to strengthen staff's sense of belonging and balance
their work and life, Dongyue Group organized various
recreational and sports activities such as spring and autumn
games, photography competition, speech contest, art show,
knowledge contest for youth, etc. All the activities serve
as a stage for teamwork building and for staff to express
themselves.

Meanwhile, Dongyue Group specially sets up a beneficent
fund with an annual amount of RMB300,000 to RMB500,000
to help employees in financial difficulties. The Group's top
executives had donated a certain proportion of their salary to
supplement the fund.

7. Public welfare

The Group is enthusiastic about public welfare and charity, and
has long been committed itself to scholarships, disaster relief
and other areas of public welfare. In 2016, the Group donated
RMB2.738 million to all kinds of public welfare activities and
charities including education, transportation, health, disaster relief
and other areas.

The Group has set up four public welfare funds successfully with
a focus on education, elder care and staff care. Take Dongyue
Education Fund for example, in 2016, the fund rewarded 10
teachers with outstanding teaching performance, 60 outstanding
head teachers, 100 outstanding teachers (educators) and 100
students with excellent performance but are living in poverty
in Huantai county. Since its establishment in 2005, Dongyue
education fund has invested more than RMB4.5 million in
rewarding more than 1,800 outstanding principals and teachers
and in subsidizing 600 students. In addition, the Group has
also taken an active part in government disaster relief, the
glorious cause action of the All China Federation of Industry and
Commerce and other public welfare activities. Based on the four
major public welfare funds and supplemented by investments in
governmental and industry charities, an integrated public welfare
investment system has been established.
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Rl REEENARZES
Table 1 Four Public Welfare Funds of Dongyue Group

ESE8 PR L B HRRAR

Funds Year of establishment Targeted people and its purpose

REHEES 2000%F AR SRE A A B NAE R H A MBS B R EN SR
£ AHERBEEENNBERYIREEE ]

Dongyue Education Fund 2000 To reward the local teachers with outstanding teaching performance
and students with outstanding academic achievements.
Dongyue Studies were established for the middle and primary
schools in Huantai County.

REEZES 20074F AR EREILESRR A _EZ ABI2007T £/E A

Dongyue Elder-care Fund 2007 To provide an allowance of RMB200 to elders aged over 80 in
Tangshan Town.

RERBES 2000%F RRBERE  IIRETAERFHBERERLNERET

Dongyue Scholarship Fund 2000 To reward the students of Tsinghua University and Shandong
University of Technology with outstanding academic achievements

REEFLES 2005%4F RN 2 B T /TR

Dongyue Staff-caring Fund 2005 To support the Group staff in financial difficulties

AREBERGSELRZRMRFER © 2016
F5A - AHEBRERREARKETE
B - BBV EME MR BB MR AR - AT
BTRASBERNBLIT - I - REKE
BERAAN W7~ BORBEBNHREEEM
FHERE  RTHNRIOBERRE -

The Group actively participated in community and environmental
construction. In May 2016, the Group provided RMB10,000
to sponsor the construction of roads for the community and
helped to renovate four roads around the factory, which made
the transportation of the residents living nearby much more
convenient. In addition, Dongyue Group has also contributed
labor, materials and financial resources to repair and replace
transformers of nearby villages and towns, making electricity
available to villagers.
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To the members of Dongyue Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dongyue
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 100 to 206, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in
the basis for qualified opinion paragraph, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening balances, corresponding figures and
comparative financial statements

The auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 contained qualification
on the possible effect of the limitations on the scope of the audit in
relation to Loans and Receivables and Bank balances and cash. Details
of which has been set out in the auditor's report dated 28 April 2017.

As the auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 formed the basis for the
corresponding figures presented in the current year's consolidated
financial statements, any adjustments found to be necessary in respect
of the carrying amount of the Loans and Receivables and Bank balances
and cash would have a significant effect on the opening balances on
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2016 and the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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BREETEE Key Audit Matters

RS EEEREETENEXAY - RAHE Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
F2016FE12A31B I EENGE S B REANEST were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

SAEENEIR ZEEEEAET SR REs statements for the year ended 31 December 2016. These matters were
AEBERELRTEESERBETREN  T5Te addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
WZEEHREEEENER - statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BRETEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

8 % B IERERE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade receivables
of approximately RMB1,120 million, net of impairment as set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

We had identified impairment of trade receivables as a
key audit matter because significant judgements had
to be made for the assessment of the recoverability for
each debtor including trading history, credit history and
estimated future cash flow. Management has concluded
that approximately RMB22,751,000 in respect of the
impairment of trade receivables was recognised in the
Group's consolidated profit or loss.

R2016F12A8318 » EEENBRE NGRS T IERERM T
2680 R ER 2 E DIEWFTEH AR 12088 7T °

AR A BALER AR A YR BB e R ERHE A5
- BREESEL  ERELREFTRESRE i)
EERBIRUGIERERR ABERETEE - E18E
Bt B SRWFIEZREREEBLESBRANER
#9 AR #522,751,0007T °
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENETNANEEREETSHE

Our audit procedures to address the impairment of trade
receivables included the following:

Testing the accuracy of the ageing of receivables balances
on a sample basis.

Testing on large individual aged receivables balances,
understanding the rationale for management’s
provisioning decisions by reference to payment patterns
during the year as well as other information available.

Assessing the level of cash collected by the business after

the year end of past due receivable balances to consider
any additional provisioning requirements.

EERIEE HERNFBREMNETITEFBIELAT
PR AN BB PR AR B SRR BR IR O YERE I o
BREESERAARRERNBRZIESREE  BB2
EENNMNREAREMREENBEREERERERT
21 o

AHERFR 2R EB AR REGIARET RE 2R
K REREBEHEIMEEBER -
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Key audit matter

BRETEE

Impairment assessment of available-for-sale investments

A HERERE G

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had available-for-sale
investments with the carrying amount of RMB1,153 million,
and recognised impairment of approximately RMB42.3
million in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

The Group recognises impairment for available-for-sale
investments in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income when there is
objective evidence of impairment, which includes when
there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the investments. The impairment recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income is the cumulative difference
between cost and fair value. The impairment for available-
for-sale investments is significant and determination of
whether there is objective evidence of impairment involves
significant management judgement.

MR2016F12A31H - EXEEFAREEAARKE1538
B2 AEHERE  YHRGRABEEREMEERAR
AERRELNARE423BETT -

BERERLRFEREEERN (BEREZAHELRX
RS T kA ) N B Ba MR 2 E W AR AR AT
HERERRRE - REaBRa kR M2 ARARE
RZBER/KAERNFEZRFER - AIMHEREZ
HEBEANEERRHATBREREREEREEN
EARHE -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEENETNAEERRETSHE

Our audit procedures to address the impairment assessment of
available-for-sale investments included the following:

We discussed with management whether there was any
objective evidence of impairment of individual available-
for-sale investment as at 31 December 2016 and critically
challenged management's assertions and conclusions;

We assessed whether there was objective evidence of
impairment for the available-for-sale investments where
there was a cumulative loss as at 31 December 2016.

We obtained the latest audited financial statements
of the investees, and performed certain procedures
on the financial position of the investees to assess the
reasonableness of the view of the management of the
Company that there was impairment indicator on the
investments and whether the impairment of the available-
for-sale investments made by management was sufficient.

BEFHAHNEREREMEATORTRFEREAT

EEHERENWBEEMERAHEEREN2016F12A
JTHHERBENEESEE  UETEREEEBNERN
K

EEIMEETEREZEZPTHEEIRENR 20165
123 HHIR AR ERE -

BESDESHRENRIPNEEGMBGHRE  YEY
WIRE T M BAHIETE T HITHERF - AFHEER
AIEEERRREANETSRNERREAEANEE
BEHHAIEHEREREEETRE
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Information Other than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Yip Kai Yin with practising certificate number
PO5131.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

31 May 2017
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Consolldo’red Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B Z2016F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

20164 20154
B5E AR¥T T ARETIT
2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
gz Revenue 6 7,969,773 7,032,486
SHEE PR Cost of sales (6,328,718) (5,863,519)
ESAl Gross profit 1,641,055 1,168,967
HAtnlig A Other income 7 186,667 343,949
D MEERY Distribution and selling expenses (283,058) (251,284)
TEFAY Administrative expenses (387,610) (261,116)
AR ERERE Impairment of available-for-sale
investments (42,324) -
EEERE Impairment of intangible assets = (40,000)
s E E Assets written off 8 = (1,478,200)
s R HERY Research and development expenses (73,947) (69,797)
BEK A Finance costs 9 (166,229) (208,663)
Pl NG e Share of results of associates (12,440) (573)
B A& A (B 1) Profit/(loss) before tax 862,114 (796,717)
Frigst (Fs) iK% Income tax (expense)/credit 10 (246,648) 115,780
NEEZHN, (BE)RE2E  Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive
WA (FAx )4z income/(expense) for the year 1 615,466 (680,937)
THIR T SN, (E18)  Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive
REEWA(FX) @5 : income/(expense) attributable to:
—KRRNBEAA — Owners of the Company 588,154 (690,479)
— I AR R A - Non-controlling interests 27,312 9,542
615,466 (680,937)
FIRAERN(E8) Earnings/(Loss) per share 14
—ER(ARE) - Basic (RMB) 0.28 (0.33)
—EE(ARYE) - Diluted (RMB) 0.28 (0.33)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R2016%F12A318
At 31 December 2016

20164 20154
BiaE AR® T AREET T
2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FREEE Non-current assets
M - SRR Property, plant and equipment 16 3,874,258 4,181,257
BEWME - WENRE Prepayments for purchase of
Z FaftFaaE property, plant and equipment 8,682 281
JE e Prepaid lease payments 17 472,533 469,366
T3 EFE B Prepayment for land lease 82,000 =
mEEE Intangible assets 18 107,225 117,993
REE RN A MR Interests in associates 19 10,283 995
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 20 1,152,959 1,195,283
REFTEEE Deferred tax assets 21 451,653 453,288
kS Goodwill 22 85,894 85,894
Uk B — 1 B BB A &) BT S A+t Deposit paid for acquisition of
2iEe a subsidiary 23 - 165,897
W g & N R T A Deposit paid for acquisition of
s associates 59,800 7,250
6,305,287 6,677,504
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 24 710,968 713,461
EER®BZME Properties for sale 25 407,220 787,429
E‘E\HTH% Prepaid lease payments 17 13,603 13,241
B 5 N H b el T8 Trade and other receivables 26 1,208,975 1,392,153
iu%gm Entrusted loans 27 30,000 336,300
BEEPIRITER Pledged bank deposits 28 106,703 113,214
IRTTENIR S Bank balances and cash 28 2,082,361 1,467,426
4,559,830 4,823,224
RBEE Current liabilities
B 5 REMERN IR Trade and other payables 29(a) 1,950,444 2,194,297
KE %E%%ﬁz&i Deposits from pre-sale of properties 29(b) 98,527 422,670
== Borrowings 30 1,797,700 1,831,754
MIEBE Tax liabilities 61,534 49,067
PRIEW A Deferred income 31 27,925 28,755
3,936,130 4,526,543
REBEETE Net current assets 623,700 296,681
BEERRBHERS Total assets less current liabilities 6,928,987 6,974,185
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R2016612531H
At 31 December 2016

20165 20154
BaE AR® T AREET T
2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
EXR#E Capital and reserves
(&N Share capital 32 200,397 200,540
B Reserves 5,187,611 4,600,999
RNAREE AEIGER Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company 5,388,008 4,801,539
JEIE IR AR R A Non-controlling interests 298,243 270,836
MRS Total equity 5,686,251 5,072,375
FEREBERE Non-current liabilities
TEIEUT A Deferred income 31 252,057 264,051
ELEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 21 58,679 50,147
iy Borrowings 30 932,000 1,587,612
1,242,736 1,901,810
6,928,987 6,974,185

FI10E206E 257 A VB HRRKLEETGR2017F

SHNBEHERKETZE - Wh FIALRERE

E
RELR
Zhang Jianhong
EBEF
Director
102 REEEERAF —B—<FFRHK

The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 206 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 May

2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

R
Zhang Zhefeng

EF

Director

Ealate



Consolidated Statement of Chonges in Equity

2 Z2016F12H31 B IFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

EGEEIN
Attributable to owners of the Company
Bhi HE FERER
B OESSE BE AVER AN BMRR REEW M M6 4
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARMTR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Share Statutory Non-
Share Share  option  Merger  Capital  Surplus  Retained controlling
Capital ~ premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  eamings Total  interests Total
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  AMBOOO
(k) (W) (i)
(Noted) ~ (Noteb)  (Noteg)
WSEIF1RER Balance at 1 January 2015 0002 123359 382319 @00 10108 76317 3038767 5640807 256997 5897804
Fh(ER)/&HRAE
(F%)/hAeE (Loss)Proft and total comprefensive (expenselfincome for the year = = = = - S 047 60479 95 (680%7)
gx Transfer - - - - 618 2565 (21569) 618 115 li5!

FERRRERE Capialcontrbution from non-controling nterests s s s S (18 . L 8 48 40

EfiRs(Ha) Diidends i o 19 - : - ; i s (5174 - (i

BRiEES, Recogniion of equity-etted

WROXHEE Shared-hased payments - - 9525 - - - - 95%5 - 95%5

BORERD () Shares repurchased and cancelled (note 32) (38) (6622) - - - - - (7004) - (7004)

WISENAN LR Balance at 31 December 2015 20540 1226972 391844 (322100 101534 737882 2174977 4801539 270836 5072375

EREHREERALE Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - SeRS4  SB8IS4 2312 615466

g Trangler - - - - 506 - - 506 % 601

ERELR Lapsed ofshare optons - - [301,844) - - - 3184 - - -

BRREHRA (M) Shates repurchesed and canclled (note 3) (143) (o) - - - - - ) SAL

WIEE12A3 ALH Balance at 31 December 2016 200397 1224924 - (322100 102040 737882 3154975 5388008 298243 5,686,251

Mk - Notes:

(@) APHFEFERER2006F TR ZEEEAR - (@ Merger reserve arose in group reorganisation completed in 2006.

(b) 200711716 EI C ANEBEAE D ETE/R (b)) On 16 November 2007, the Company repurchased all of the 275,000,000
Eﬁm%ﬁz% H§275 000,0008% - i a% 55 s [B] & A previously issued ordinary shares of US$0.1 each and these repurchased
WA A A R (E X%TTHQK HHaxs - A ordinary shares were cancelled with all of the authorised but unissued share
H - #1%3:84,000,000, OOOHleXEEO B Mg ® capital as of that date. On the same date, the authorised share capital was
B& - H%;‘fiﬂﬁ$i Z400,000,00078 7T ° F220074F 11 A increased to HK$400,000,000 by the creation of 4,000,000,000 new ordinary
158 - Fsﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%?‘*f‘ﬂ% 000,0008% & AR EI{E0,178 7T shares of HK$0.1 each. 275,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were
AT o o4 BB 0 BT IR EE 2 R e then issued to the shareholders existing on 15 November 2007. The excess of
R AB NG o the repurchased amount over the nominal amount of new shares issued was

credited directly to the capital reserve.
B 8 8 B JEIE AR AR SR U R RE SME s TSR A L 3R The acquisitions of additional interest from non-controlling shareholders of
BRER 2 X5 HILEEZEEITE SREEER subsidiaries were recognised as transactions with non-controlling interests and
BARFEENNR, Y - the corresponding discount/premium were credited/debited directly against
capital reserve.

(0 IREREARKLMEA(HE])QFENEED A (©  Inaccordance with the Company Law of People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and
ERMAY - RATREME A FBFESRIREE the relevant Articles of Association, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are
S ERET 2BRB B EF10% BE BN required to appropriate amount equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as
BERTHE © determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory

surplus reserve.
EERGEEAREESZ Sy 0 BEHERE Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when its balance
EREMER0%2 €7 » AIHEME—F D o reaches an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital, further appropriation
HREIREDA @ AT R HE R R EEMBTEE is not required. According to the Company Law of the PRC, statutory surplus
DA R & E o EIE AR N o reserve may be used to make up past losses, to increase production and

business operations or to increase capital by means of conversion.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2016 103



an\

BRERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2 E2016F 12431 AILFE

For

the year ended 31 December 2016

20165 20154
AR¥T T ARETTT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
RETER OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BB ATEN(E8) Profit/(Loss) before tax 862,114 (796,717)
FEIFH Adjustments for:
BB AR Finance costs 166,229 208,663
B A Interest income (32,512) (144,162)
EIEY AN B IR Realisation of deferred income (30,333) (24,826)
RE 5 BRI E Recognition of impairment on
trade receivables 22,751 (900)
e M i Depreciation and amortisation 721,030 691,538
BEEMNES Release of prepaid lease payments 13,469 13,088
RAELEE 7 A MR Equity-settled share-based payment expenses - 9,525
WREFE Write-down of inventories 5,200 9,458
Fikla A NGIES Share of results of associates 12,440 573
AHEERERBKA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments (14,768) (117,037)
HEYE - MR RREBE Loss on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 35,910 8,252
B EERE Impairment of intangible assets - 40,000
Y - B RRERE Impairment of property, plant and equipment _ 740
REE RN B 2 RERE Impairment of investment in associates 995 -
AEHERERE Impairment of available-for-sale investments 42,324 -
Ue BB 2 N A 2 Wes Gain on acquisition of associate (22,723) -
T - 2R R Written off of property, plant and equipment - 5,047
MEEEE Assets written off - 1,478,200
LBEELBHA KL ERE  Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 1,782,126 1,381,442
FE0EMm,/wmL (Increase)/decrease in inventories (2,707) 76,942
B o REMBEWIER D, (38I1) Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other receivables 160,427 (937,699)
EHERB 2 YR Decrease in properties under development for sale 380,209 16,960
B REMENRZIECRD), BN  (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (243,252) 221,678
RETEEMEZZERD Decrease in deposits from pre-sale of properties (324,143) (116,380)
IEIEU AIZ N Increase in deferred income 17,509 72,587
KEMEERS Cash generated from operations 1,770,169 715,030
EAATER M IEF Income taxes and withholding tax paid (224,014) (150,839)
RETBHMERELFHE NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,546,155 564,191
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B E2016F 12431 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

20165 20154
AR¥T T ARET T
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
REED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
MEZFRERTER Entrusted loans to third parties (284,500) (1,903,000)
BEYE  HENRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (448,779) (394,455)
XHEMLES Payment for prepaid land lease (98,998) =
BEETEE Purchase of intangible assets (360) -
HE=H 2B E Wealth management investments to third parties - (828,200)
FEZHEEZTER Repayment of entrusted loans from third parties 590,800 1,936,700
B UIFE Interest received 32,512 144 162
R EEMRITF SRR Proceeds from release of pledged bank deposits 6,511 71,931
HEWE  MERREMEZIE  Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
equipment 1,564 3,655
FE-HEEEVRE Repayment of wealth management investments
from third parties - 805,000
AHEEERERBMA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 14,768 117,037
B U & A AR B Dividends received from associates = 254
U BE — I B A BIFTURER (321F)  Deposit received from/(paid for)
2E® acquisition of a subsidiary 165,897 (165,397)
W aE B & N B FTSZ A Deposit paid for acquisition of associates
2E® (52,550) (7,250)
REZEABRESEE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (73,135) (220,063)
AMEEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BEEmRERIE Proceeds from borrowings 1,249,787 2,090,585
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (1,939,452) (1,947,743)
BERFLE Interest paid (166,229) (210,188)
BERE Dividends paid = (151,746)
B0 KRR D Shares repurchased and cancelled (2,191) (7,004)
IR R T E Capital contribution from non-controlling interests = 4,182
METBFMARSERE NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (858,085) (221,914)
B RERFREBAEMTFE NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 614,935 122,214
FHZREREFARLER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,467,426 1,345,212
FRZHAESREFREER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR
B - represented by:
BITHEBR RS Bank balances and cash 2,082,361 1,467,426
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2016F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

—REHR

RESEEAR AR ALRQF L) R200657
AR HAEHSEMAIREHREER
A R) - H %S E AL Scotia Centre, 4th
Floor, P.O. Box 2804, George Town, Grand
Cayman, Cayman lIslands © &K QX B8y J& 19 B
2007F12AI0RBRETBMAS R I AERA
AlER T -

NAR A —BIREEBR AR
FEEREH AN FE3S -

HIt B AR

$®ﬂ&ﬁ%%”ﬁ0ﬁﬁ$%lnigﬁ
BRI DIEREERAHE - 5o TR

BHRER SRR - BEIE(PVC]) Rk
MR UA R EAh o pbSN - AEE MR EARK
AME(THEDEEDEER -

AAFEBY
T -

EHERNERIA

RAVBRRARRBREMB AR Z W
EBARB(TARE D2 -

—NFFER

AR -

1.

General

Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 24 July 2006 as an exempted company with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Scotia Centre,
4th Floor, P. O. Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10
December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 38.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture,
distribution and sale of refrigerants, polymers, organic silicone
and dichloromethane, polyvinyl chloride ("PVC") and liquid alkali
and others. In addition, the Group is also engaged in property
development in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The addresses of principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” in the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B E2016F 12431 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Application of new and revised accounting
standards

Amendments to IFRSs and a new interpretation
that are mandatorily effective for the current year
ended 31 December 2016

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time in the
current year the following amendments and a new interpretation
to International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to

IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements
Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception

Amendments to IFRS 10
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations

The application of the amendments to IFRSs and the interpretation
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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2. BAFMIREBITZE
(&)
C M8 B R 4 BB 37 R R ARME RT &
A~ BERETE

REEIEIRFERAIATEB/MERARER
2R R MEFT BRI s 3R 5 22 R

SR

2. Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations and
amendments issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

B B B 75 5 5 2 | SRt T A2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
oL
B B B 75 s 5 ZE B P& 4R IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
£155% Customers?
(30 B B 765 e 2 22 R e IFRS 16 Leases?
F165%
BB BRERE  INER S RIBIRE? IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
ZEeBREENR Advance Consideration?
BRI R 2R BURR TSRS A Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
({&5T7%) 2014F E2016F 1 2014-2016 Cycle®
Bl 2 FE oS
/T\HM"H&%QEEU Aﬁ&.ﬁr;%ﬂﬂﬁt}, Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
2R (EFTAR) EMHNNRRZS Share-based Payment Transactions?
B B B s R 5 42 R Eﬁilﬁfféﬁﬁkiﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁlj Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial instruments
Fa5(ERTA) FARIREE 4 with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?
BrE AT fg\,ﬁ?ﬁrﬁﬁ&
LRSS Al
TEA2
B R B 75 i 5 2E B B[R B R RS E R & Amendments to IFRS 15  Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from

F1558(BRTA)

BB B 75 e 5 R
F105% MR SR
AR5 2855
CHEN,

B &t R FH 757
CHEN,

B & T RIS 125%
({/ FIA)

RERTERIE4057
(f/ HEN)

155 R P A KM

BB

REEFEARENE
BB REZAEW
BEHEHRA

BER

AR EBIELIE
FERIA R E < R

BIRIEYFR’

&'

]

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to |AS 7

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 40

Contracts with Customers?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
its Joint Venture?

Disclosure Initiative'
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

Unrealised Losses!
Transfers of Investment Property?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, as appropriate

201791 A1 B2 &% 2 FE HIR A
H2018F 1 A1 Bk 2 &2 FE R AR
20191 A1 Ak 2 & FA 2 FE B AR
RESRETE BRI 2 £ Fis 2 FEERI AR

W =
A ow o =

> H2017F 1 A1 2018F1 B 1H sk 2 & F1a 2 January 2017 or 1

FREMBAER(INEE)

EETEHAFE B R B 8 R A R A 5T R 4% The Directors anticipate that the application of the new and
TR (T XAEERRIN) $iRE B &

I E-NEEYNZ

108 REEBEERAE —FT—

LY

revised IFRSs, other than those set out below, will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B E2016F 12431 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or
value in use in IAS 36.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B E2016F 12431 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the carrying amounts of the
non- controlling interests and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 “Income Taxes” and IAS
19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);
and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquire (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another IFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
IAS 39, or IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquire prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised as of that date.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash- generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the

amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment
is acquired.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following

conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statements
of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants of which the primary condition is
that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where the current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
business combination.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described below),
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of these payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effective of any changes in estimate being

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;
the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell

the intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed
above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Exploration rights

Exploration rights are recognised at cost on initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, Exploration rights are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration rights include the cost of exploration rights and the
expenditures incurred in the search for natural resources as well
as the determination of the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration rights are reclassified as either intangible
or tangible assets. These assets are assessed for impairment before
reclassification.

Impairment of exploration rights

The carrying amount of the exploration rights is reviewed annually.
When one of the following events or changes in circumstances,
which is not exhaustive, indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable has occurred, impairment test is performed in
accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

the period for which the Group has the right to explore in
the specific area has expire during the period or will expire in
the near future, and is not expected to be renewed.

substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of natural resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned.

exploration for and evaluation of natural resources in the
specific area have not led to discovery of commercially viable
quantities of natural resources and the Group has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of exploration rights (Continued)
sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development
in the specific area is likely to proceed, the carrying amount
of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be
recovered in full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
at the end of each reporting date. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties for sale

Completed properties and properties under development for
sale in the ordinary course of business are included in current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises both the prepaid lease payments for land and
development costs for the properties. Development costs
of properties comprise construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised according to the Group's accounting policy and directly
attributable costs incurred during the development period. Cost of
each unit in each phase of development is determined using the
weighted average method.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately

expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Properties for sale (Continued)

The Group transfers a property from inventories to investment
property when there is a change of intention to hold the property
to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than for
sale in ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Any
difference between the fair value of the property at the date of
transfer and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-for-
sale investments. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, entrusted loans, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its costs
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 90 days or 180 days, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of
its continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the assets is estimated in order to determine the effect of the
impairment loss. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating-units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Share based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognized in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will continue to be
held in share option reserve.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Related parties

a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

i)

i)

iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

i)

iii)

Vi)

vii)

viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in a).

A person identified in a) i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concurring the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts on trade
receivables

The Group’s management assesses the recoverability and
determines the provision for impairment of trade receivables in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3. Such
estimation is based on the credit history of its customers and
the current market conditions. Management reviews the debtor
settlement status periodically and reassesses the sufficiency
of provision accordingly. The aggregate carrying value of
trade receivables at 31 December 2016, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of RMB25,669,000 (2015: RMB2,918,000), was
RMB1,120,355,000 (2015: RMB1,293,613,000).
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)
Collectability of entrusted loans

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss on entrusted
loans, the Group estimates the future cash flows of entrusted loans
for impairment testing purpose. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the entrusted loans’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise in future financial periods. The
aggregate carrying value of entrusted loans at 31 December 2016
was RMB30,000,000 (2015: RMB336,300,000).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on projected product
lifecycles and economic life of property, plant and equipment.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off
or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. The aggregate carrying value
of property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2016 was
RMB3,874,258,000 (2015: RMB4,181,257,000). Further details are
disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as the Group’s
management considers it is probable that the future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses or tax credit can be utilised. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2016
was RMB451,653,000 (2015: RMB453,288,000). Further details are
disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Exploration rights

The Group's exploration rights have a finite validity period, after
which the Group will need to apply for renewal. The Group's
exploration rights were renewed in October 2015 for a period
of two years till October 2017. Having checked the applicable
laws and regulations in the PRC, the directors of the Company
anticipate that there is no material legal impediments would
prevent the Group from renewing its exploration rights provided
that the Group submits the relevant application documents in
compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations to the
relevant PRC government authority. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company believe the Group will be able to renew the
exploration rights with the relevant government authority
upon the expiry of the exploration rights in October 2017 at
insignificant cost. In addition, the directors of the Company
assess the impairment of the exploration rights by estimating
the recoverable amount of the assets. The carrying amount of
exploration rights at 31 December 2016 was RMB40,000,000 (2015:
RMB40,000,000) and no impairment was recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB40,000,000 impairment
was recognised). Further details are disclosed in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)
Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of goodwill was
RMB85,894,000 (2015: RMB85,894,000) and no impairment loss
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
nil). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings disclosed
in note 30, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.



5. EXERBRMERREEE

RBR (&)
(a) EMIEWESE

REMBHRERME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2016F12H31 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

%= 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(a) Categories of financial instruments

20164 20154
AR¥T AREFTT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
EREE Financial assets
B R EWEIE Loans and receivables (including
(BIEEEREITER pledged bank deposits, bank
RITHEBREIRE) balances and cash) 3,458,941 2,948,792
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 1,152,959 1,195,283
4,611,900 4,144,075
cRAE Financial liabilities
BESHRCAR Amortised cost 3,816,216 4,786,171

(b) MEEEEBERBEK
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BRI - ZRER D EBFRTF
K RITEBRNIRE - BHNEMER
RAMEE - HESRTANFERS
MIFEIEE - WE ST AMHERRERE
wEhsER(EERRLMNERER) -5
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, entrusted loans, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group's
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Market risks

(i)

Currency risk

The functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries are
RMB with most of the transactions settled in RMB.
However, foreign currency (mainly the United States
dollar "USS") were received when the Group earned
revenue from overseas customers and when settling
payables for purchases of machinery and equipment

from the overseas suppliers.

The Group does not have any hedging policy to
manage the risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. In order to reduce the risk of holding
foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the
foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking
into account its foreign currencies payment schedule in

the near future.
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5. EXEREVMBEKREEERE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

REE (&) objectives and policies (Continued)
(b) MERREEEZERBER(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)
iR () Market risks (Continued)
() E¥mEE(E) (i) Currency risk (Continued)

RiEBRH - REENINEETE
BE¥EEREEAENREEN
-

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

BE aE
Assets Liabilities
20165 20154 20165 20154
ARET R AREFTT AR¥TRT AR®TT
2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ET uss 593,559 121,480 24,046 153,288

MR20165F12A8318 * M ARBE X
ELAEEBEI10% WA E
A EERERERTE  FERH
BwF BBREBSBELEA T
% A R #56,951,0007C(2015%F :
TB&/ EF AREES180,000T)
FERABBREUEITLTENRIT
EHEEE B RHEMERR
B RAETEEREERE KK
#/ESIEFTER o

EEERR FHEANARTE
[ BRF AR - BEREE DT
BEKREBINERE

At 31 December 2016, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against US$ with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit/loss after tax for the
year would have been RMB56,951,000 higher/lower
(2015: RMB3,180,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of US$
denominated bank balances and cash, trade and other
receivables and US$ denominated borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 30 for
details of these borrowings) and entrusted loans. At
31 December 2016, 19% (2015: 31%) of the Group's
borrowings bear fixed interest rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits, entrusted loans and
variable-rate borrowings (see note 30 for details of
these borrowings).

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market deposit
rate and the PRC official lending rate, Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") and London Inter-
Bank Offer Rate ("LIBOR") arising from the Group's RMB
borrowings and USD borrowings respectively.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings. The analysis
is prepared on the financial balance at the end of
reporting period. 10 and 25 basis points (2015: 10 and
25 basis points) increase or decrease is used which
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
In relation to the Group's exposure to interest rates risk
on bank deposits, if interest rates had been 10 basis
points (2015: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's post-
tax profit/loss after tax for the year ended 31 December
2016 would increase/decrease by RMB1,658,000 (2015:
RMB1,578,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates risk on variable-rate borrowings, if interest
rates had been 25 basis points (2015: 25 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit/loss after tax for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would decrease/increase by
RMB4,146,000 (2015: RMB5,935,000), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expenses on floating rate
borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and
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Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, entrusted loans and trade and other
receivables (except for prepayments), represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. The objective of the Group's measures to manage
credit risk is to control potential exposure to recoverability
problem. Most of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are held in major financial institutions in the PRC, which
management believes are of high credit quality.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group assesses the credit worthiness and
financial strength of its customers as well as considering prior
dealing history with the customers. Generally, customers are
granted with credit periods less than 90 days or 180 days
and the Group usually does not require collaterals nor any
credit enhancement from its customers. An aging analysis
of trade and other receivables is set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group’s management
makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of trade receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of the overdue
period, the financial strength of the customers and whether
there are any trade disputes with them.
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5. EXEREVMBEKREEERE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management
RBER(E)
(b) B EEEBERBR (&)

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

REBE SRR

EEERPECRARE  AEEEEY
HEEEERRARNAEBNASEEZEMNR
FLRERSRENDTENRELTF
FI3R £ IH B KF -

EEBETRITEENFERIBR - A&
EXRBIRITEEERRBESHEER
I8 o R2016F12A8318 » AEEBERBHA
BIRTTE B & A RH806,724,0007T
(2015%F © AR #2,670,800,0007T ) ° #¥
BRI 30

REBE D RFIFERERZ
TRIJIAEEIFTESRB BRI
BRZIHFES o JIRTIRIBEANEE AT BE
WERNRNRFHBNSBAGBERRE
BReRERR - FERAERERE
BBRIINEA °

Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings.
The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had available
undrawn borrowing facilities of RMB806,724,000 (2015:
RMB2,670,800,000). Details of which are set out in note 30.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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5. EXERRMBERRBEEER

KRR (4&)
(b) MEEREEBRREBR(E)

Policies (Continued)

objectives and policies (Continued)

5. Capital risk and financial risk management

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

REBESRER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TEE2 N FEE R (&) Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)
20165
BB 12A3188
METHE 1AM 23R EAEIE 1EESE REREER KAl
% ARBTR ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
Average Less than 1-3 3 months 1yearto undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year Syears  cashflows 2016
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
0165 12A318 31 December 2016
EAREMERTE Trade and other payables - 610,672 737,069 192,587 19621 1559949 1,559,949
&8 Borrowings
-EE - fixed rates 5.78 1,722 282,560 186,167 61,260 531,709 518,300
-%8 - variable rates 6.35 57,626 231,343 1,133,373 901,814 2,324,156 2,211,400
670,020 1,250,972 1,512,127 982,695 4,415,814 4,289,649
R015%
AER  12A3EH
IETaHE 1EAR 1B3ER EREE 1EESE REherE FAE
% ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR ARETR
Canying
Weighted Total amount at
Average Less than 13 3 months lyearto  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 5 years cash flows 2015
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000
0154128318 31 December 2015
BARERENFE Trade and other payables - 480467 810,125 560,171 19741 1870504 1870504
&8 Borrowings
) - fixed rates 584 4539 81,689 501,701 518153 1,106,082 1,045,100
-8 - variable rates 6.21 30250 263,752 1,087,69 1,140,040 2521738 2,374,266
515,256 1,155,566 2,149,568 1677934 5498324 5289870
’*"_'"";':_ )
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Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(c) Fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Revenue and segment information

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods and
properties.

The Group's operations are organised based on the different types
of products and property development. Information reported to
the board of directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of products
and property development. This is the basis upon which the
Group is organised.

The Group's operating and reportable segments are as follows:
Refrigerants;
Polymers;
Organic silicone;
Dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkalj;

Property development - development of residential
properties at Shandong Province, the PRC.

Other operations — manufacturing and sales of side-products
of refrigerants segment, polymers segment, organic silicone
segment and dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali
segment.
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6. Wk o EHER(H)

2B I R AE

REBIRZHRAEE D B R EERN D
o o

20164

g

e External sales
DUBNBEE  Interseqment sales

e

S~ PEDES Totel revenue - segment revenue

%A SEGVENT RESULTS

KABLERT  Unallocated corporate expenses
FAREMEA  Unallocated other income
HENA Finance costs

STBAATEE Share of results of associates

REBEH  Profit before tax

REEEARAT —B-AFEHR

6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable and operating segment.

2016
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6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

20155 2015
“8RR
gRH  BATHE Bk NCRER  NERE ERABER  EMER i e
ARETL  ARETR  AREfR  ARETT  ARETI  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Dichloromethane Reportable
Organic PVCand Property  segments Other

Refrigerants Polymers Silicone liquid alkali ~ development total  operations  Eliminations Total
RMB1000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000
g Externdl sales 1867578 19264 144300 977928 619233 686038 172,102 7032486
DHEEHEE  Inter-segment sales 993,860 - 33 3718 - 97911 SI7857 (1515769) =
B - DB Total revenue - segment revenue 1861438 1952624 1443354 981,646 619,233 7858,295 689,959 (1515,768) 7032486
HHEE SEGMENT RESULTS 372158 181,47 (28873) 54046 200,133 718111 18138 - 79,849
FAROEFT  Unallocated corporate expenses (3,74
FAREMUA  Unallocated other income 117014
HigaE Assets writen off (1,478.200)
BENE Finance costs (208663
SIEBEDAZE Share of results of associates (7)
REREE  Loss before tax (79.717)
2 L& B S 5T R B RE3 AT it A9 The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
AREBEABRER - D EREREALED segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies as

FEARDECEAMMA ~ RRITHRA - EFH
B - PrinEtE A RIREMBEKRAT - &5
EBEVERAE o WIIMARZLEARRAZRMER A
FERDEEMFRAENIER - ANEER
BENDHEMLIFABZERRAZRE
BALERRHERBNESE - HAEE5]
ALEER -

7 BB R IHE TR IRIT IS X

-
GtE -

described in note 3. Segment results represent the results of each
segment without allocation of unallocated other income, central
administration costs, directors’ salaries, share of result of associates
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. No segment information on assets
and liabilities is presented as such information is not reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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ERERRE

FRRERIBZRLBESBRAIRER
Bk s E R

Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
Entity-wide disclosures

Information about revenue from refrigerants segment by
products from external customers

20164 2015%F

AR¥TF T AREFT

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

—@—EFLLHCFC-22) Monochlorodifluoromethane (HCFC-22) 457,124 590,967
Mg 7 B (R134a) Tetrafluoroethane (R134a) 186,082 153,279
& NE(RI25) Pentafluoroethane (R125) 69,047 34,701
R439A R439A 1,647 417
R410a R410a 294,294 271,373
R413A R413A 34,648 35,972
R142b R142b 42,540 43,107
R152a R152a 148,298 113,654
R22 R22 307,584 287,233
R32 R32 111,127 165,127
HAth Others 175,657 171,748
1,828,048 1867,578

FRRERIBZED FHRDBRAINRK
EFHREER

Information about revenue from polymers segment by
products from external customers

20165 20154
ARBT R AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
BPURE L1 (PTFE) Polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) 1,031,301 1,045,205
NEA I (HFP) Hexafluoropropylene (HFP) 317,249 253,861
N&ERT IR Perfluorocyclobutane 48,091 49,922
2 BE NG (FEP) Fluorinated ethylene propylene (FEP) 18,505 22,558
PR L) (PVDF) Polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) 341,332 259,464
HIRB(FKM) Fluorine rubber (FKM) 110,028 87,728
R 2 k% (VDF) Vinylidene fluoride (VDF) 17,722 18,055
Eith Others 303,411 215,831
2,187,639 1,952,624

e .'-?!
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6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

EREREEE) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

FRRERIEZERESBRBIRER Information about revenue from organic silicone segment by
Bk EER products from external customers

2016%F 20154F
ARET T AREBTTT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
DMC(ZREEAREEIRE) DMC (Dimethylcyclosiloxane) 292,216 348,683
107588 107 Silicone Rubber 472,796 426,173
EB Raw Vulcanizate 252,938 164,162
D3I(NHRER=ZESER) D3 (Hexamethylcyclotrisiloxane) 168 =
RIR B Gross Rubber 55,586 48,285
RIEE KR Gaseous Silica 106,488 107,679
DMCIKERY) DMC Hydrolysate 117,893 79,874
—RESER Trimethylchlorosilane 50,909 42,613
RES SR Methyldichlorosilane 1,958 1,781
I AEREDMC DMC Lineament 168,814 96,567
DZAGANGEE-S:-JuskiES=p o)) D4 (Octamethyl Cyclotetrasiloxane) 51,837 42,578
HAh Others 113,113 84,626
1,684,716 1,443,021
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6. WERDHER(EF) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
ERERENE(E) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
ERERERDEZ-_SF %R PVCRERD Information about revenue from Dichloromethane, PVC and
HBREIREEHN R RER liquid alkali by products segment from external customers
2016%F 20154
ARBTR ARETFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
PVC PVC 570,223 441,405
—E Rk Dichloromethane 174,921 180,278
o Liqui alkali 466,100 356,245
1,211,244 977,928
ERERERDE EMRE SR KEINRE Information about revenue from other operations segment by
Bz g g products from external customers
2016%F 20154
ARBTR AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AHF (K EER) AHF (Anhydrous Fluoride) 418 736
R Ammonium Bifluoride 49,445 52,792
el Hydrofluoric Acid 32,592 28,202
RE Bromine 61,054 52,120
Hith Others 43,455 38,252
186,964 172,102
BETEEEER Information about major customers
B ZE016E R2015ENANBIFRMEEES There was no revenue from a single customer that contributed
EREREE—TE Y WA EE e over 10% of the total sales of the Group during each of the two
28 810% A | o years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Ealatte
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6. WKk DHER(E) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
HEER Geographical information
REBREBINERE Z WFRE P& FEE The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical
NN location of customers is detailed below:
20154
ARETF T
2015
RMB'000
s PRC 5,576,179
T (BRAREISN) Asia (except PRC)
= - Japan 277,798
— P - South korea 251,631
—HE - India 28,097
— AN - Singapore 19,378
—&H — Thailand 45522
— PR {HBt A R — United Arab Emirates 54,516
— B A HTIR — Pakistan 18,523
— R - Malaysia 27,526
—JEEE — Philippines 8,013
— i — Viet Nam 17,512
—+FHH ~ Turkey 36,381
—HMER — Other countries 62,548
NEE Subtotal 847,445
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6. MKk oHER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
WEER(E) Geographical information (Continued)
20165 20154F
ARETT AREFIT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
=M America
—%H — United States of America 197,721 285,018
i — Brazil 96,390 70,331
—HMER — Other countries 20,498 19,101
/Nat Subtotal 314,609 374,450
M Europe
— B ARF — ltaly 96,625 99,465
— B - England 2,995 3,591
— g AT — Russia 27,406 25,732
— =2 - Germany 25,884 31,712
—EH — France 8,621 4493
—HER — Other countries 13,826 8,621
NEF Subtotal 175,357 173,614
FEM Africa
— 3k - South Africa 17,907 20,354
—& & - Egypt 4,645 6,408
—EBFE - Nigeria 16,019 16,263
—HMER — Other countries 9,782 11,030
/NET Subtotal 48,353 54,055
HMBEAR, M Other countries/regions 8,794 6,743
7,969,773 7,032,486

FBEARKE 2 FEREEEDIMNTE -

L 158 REKEARAT —B-AFEH

All of the non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
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6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
BiboHaER Other segment information
“ERR 20
M BOTHM BRE  PVCRER VELE SR BRH a3t
ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR
Dichloromethane Reportable
Organic PVCand Property  and operating Other
Refrigerants Polymers Silicone liquidalkali ~ development ~segmenttotal  operations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20165 2016
0% BEREERE Depreciation of property Plant
and equipment 237,768 178,117 137,794 119,712 1353 674,744 35,159 709,903
B EERY Amartisation of intangible assets 416 10,302 125 25 - 11,095 3 11,128
BIE5RE Recognition of impaiiment
WaEfE o trade receivables 17,306 87 61 4376 - 21,830 91 2751
BRIERRL Reseach and development costs
WARFRIE recognised as an expense 4,403 66,370 2,078 576 = 137 520 73,947
s Wite-down of inventories 1517 - - 3615 - 5132 68 5,200
HENZ - HER Loss on disposals of property,
REEE plant and equipment 10,254 759 15,394 2075 - 3532 588 35910
EERARS Release of prepaid lease
Payments 2,944 5132 3132 1,192 - 12,400 1,069 13,469
L 28R
IRE BATHH Bl PVC Rl nERE  BEndeE B3 a3t
ARETT  ARRTT  ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Dichloromethane Reportable
Organic PVCand Property  and operating Other
Refrigerants Polymers Siicone liquid kel development  seqment total operations Total
RVB000 RVB000 RMB000 RVB000 RVB000 RMB000 RVB000 RVB000
WI5E 2015
W% BERRENE  Depreciation of property Plant
and equipment 222551 183,797 134641 105,566 - 646,555 33866 680421
AT £ Amortsation of intangible assets 4) 10318 126 20 - 11086 31 11117
(EE)EREAE (Revisal recognition of impairment on
WaEfE trade receivebles (299) (668) 159 (109) - 1) 17 (900)
BRIERRL Research and development costs
HEREEA recognised as an expense 2475 63986 2009 563 - 69253 544 69797
s Write-down of inventories 5107 842 387 2979 - 9315 143 9458
HENE  BER Loss on disposzls of property, plant and
REER equipment 4965 1971 % 870 - 8051 0 825
EERARS Release of prepaid lease
Payments 2817 4339 3147 1116 - 11419 1669 13,088
BYEENE Impaiment o inangible assets - - - - - - 40000 40000
0E BERRERE  mpsiment of propery, plant and
equipment - - - - - - 740 740
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7. HlA

7. Other income

2016 20154
ARBT T ARETFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
NEg e E Government grants
—HFYIEE BB (fiEa) — Related to expense items (Note a) 36,573 23,678
—HEEEMME3) — Related to assets (note 31) 30,333 24,826
HRITERFEHA Bank deposits interest income 9,211 4,396
BHEHMSHA Interest income on wealth management
contract = 71,709
ZAERF BUWA Interest income on entrusted loan 23,299 67,466
REFHEERE Dividend income from available-for-sale
Z I B WA investments 14,768 117,037
s Exchange gain 29,037 19,400
HipF SHA Other interest income 13,224 6,693
Hitp Others 30,222 8,744
186,667 343,949
Mzt - Notes:
@) BNEMTEREMRESHEY - FEEHEH (@) The government grants are mainly for the expenditures on research

WHER BRI

activities which are recognised as expenses in the period in which they

are incurred.

Ee
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BeRS]) o HWAAF BHA2016F3A
NEZAEMEE  BUZESRELEX
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STED BRI TIEE MK « BIABFER
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R T ERITHEST c 2015 12A3ARESR
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8. Assets written off

As explained in the Company’'s announcement dated 30
September 2016, the Board have authorised an independent
committee (the “Independent Committee”) in February 2016
to investigate into the suspect misappropriation of funds of
the Group in relation to (i) wealth management investments
of RMB978.2 million (being the net balance of approximately
RMB1,249.2 million and RMB271 million due from and due to the
relevant companies for the wealth management investments
as at 31 December 2015 respectively) and (ii) 2 bank deposits
of RMB500 million ((i) and (ii) are collectively referred to as the
"Alleged Financial Transactions”). As disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 31 March 2016, PricewaterhouseCoopers
Management Consulting (Shanghai) Limited (the “Independent
Forensic Expert”) was engaged by the Independent Committee
to perform a review on the Alleged Financial Transactions (the
“Review”) which has been completed. The Independent Forensic
Expert has issued a forensic review report to the Independent
Committee in September 2016. A summary of the findings of the
Review was disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30
September 2016.

With regard to the net balances of the wealth management
investments of RMB978.2 million, according to the Review, a
balance totaling RMB978.2 million as of 31 December 2015 which
were recorded under the line item “other receivables” as at 31
December 2014 was due from a group of 9 companies (collectively
referred to as the “MC Companies”) to 2 subsidiaries of the Group
(the "2 Subsidiaries”), namely Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co.,
Limited and Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Limited, through a
local bank in Zibo City, Qishang Bank, Huantai branch, in the PRC.
The entire balance of RMB978.2 million remained outstanding
as at 31 December 2015 and up to the date of authorisation for
issue of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015. The Group recognised interest of
RMB71.7 million arising from the wealth management investments
for the year ended 31 December 2015. There were approximately
RMB828.2 million of wealth management contracts being invested
by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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8.

MEEE (&)
AMRMEBE RS FHRNPEZBIRITRD A
RAFEEDITHMERITFERARES0
BEJL NRARN2015F11 BRAZEITE R
BER  MEEFZRHBE AT - BRERFTT
1B EFRGFRNFE—RIRTT - 1ERZ
RITAMRABRR L GELERSEERL
RES  MEZMREBRAREHEZEL I
KREEXRZBITARBSOEETNEEE
B AEEEZRITHEHRHARE
5008 BILIRBE S WL IRITIGUL ©

WEE A ANRE1 47828 B ILHRKEEREE
2015%F12 A31 H IE FE RS -

EERR LRERNESRHEE/ALN
SEETHERESHESAARTEBRE

Assets written off (Continued)

With regard to the 2 bank deposits of RMB500 million placed
by the 2 Subsidiaries in Bank of Communications Company
Limited, Qingdao branch, the PRC, the Company was informed in
November 2015, upon enquiries with the bank, that the balance
of the 2 deposits had become zero. According to the Review, the
deposits were placed with a bank in the PRC as security deposits
lending the same amount of loans to 2 of the MC Companies
which subsequently defaulted on repayment of the entire RMB500
million loans due to the bank and as a result, the RMB500 million
security deposits placed by the Group with the bank were
forfeited by the bank.

The aggregated amount of RMB1,478.2 million were fully written
off during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The above-mentioned Alleged Financial Transactions are
considered by the Directors as suspected unauthorised use or
potential misappropriation of funds made by certain former
employees of the Group.

B & B A< 9. Finance costs
20165 20154
ARET T AREBTT
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FE Interest on:
ARAFAEIHEEZRITER Bank loans wholly repayable within five
years 167,025 203,655
ARAEFAEEEMEER Other borrowings repayable within five
years 858 6,533
BB ABER Total borrowings costs 167,883 210,188
B E - WBERREBITEREE  Less: Amounts capitalised for property,
plant and equipment (1,654) (1,525)
166,229 208,663

FRBTEAZEERRIR—REERE
& DB RAEREERSIRANETHE
AL R GE471%(2015%F : 6.22%)5HE o

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general
borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a weighted
average capitalisation rate of 4.71% (2015: 6.22%) per annum to
expenditure on qualifying assets.
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10. FRr8HiBX (E&R) 10. Income tax expense/(credit)
20154
ARETT
2015
RMB'000
PRI RSB ([ DERMFEH]) PRC enterprise income tax ("EIT")
—ERFE — Current year 167,452
—iBAFERERE — Over provision in prior years (9,592)
— T HIERER ([ I ER ) — Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") 27330
185,190
EEFATE S (f5E21) Deferred tax charge (note 21)
—HENBAR A DIREH 2B - Withholding tax for distributable
profits of PRC subsidiaries 18,145
—HAt - Others (319,115)
(300,970)

PR (%) @5

Total income tax expense/(credit)

(115,780)
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10. RS HiRI (%) (&)

AFERIERY, (ER)BiReEas R EM
EEWARKNBT AR, (R R

10. Income tax expense/(credit) (Continued)

The tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to the
profit/(loss) before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or

mr loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2016 20154
ARET T ARETFT
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BrbiAnsEF,(E518) Profit/(Loss) before tax 862,114 (796,717)
LA(25%) ¥ FTSF B RETE BB Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate of
A (M Ea) (25%) (Note a) (215,528) 199,179
REBEREAENMER Income tax on concessionary rate 11,643 18,015
AR AR TR TR 52 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose 2,440 89,634
Frihi & AR EENTRIERE Tax effect of share of result of associates - (143)
IR o2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose (8,840) (81,059)
AERTREEENHRIESE Tax effect of tax losses not recognized (7,997) (82,505)
FIFA LRI AFER T EEBAOTIIE  Taxeffect of utilization of tax losses
ga previously not recognized 26,689 2,713
BEFERETR,(FBEEME)  Under/(over) provision in respect
of prior years 16,866 9,592
R B AR D REBFEEL Deferred tax on distribution earnings
BB (M5EDb) of PRC subsidiaries (Note b) (18,742) (18,145)
FRIARFER AR E R Z58AFIE  Tax effect of deductible temporary
TR differences previously not recognized - (1,785)
3 R(E TR (B 5EC) LAT (Note c) (73,573) (27,330)
+ M 3% (E B A B I s Tax effect of LAT 18,393 6,833
EH A, Others 2,001 781
REEMBER S (FR) Tax expense/(credit) for the year (246,648) 115,780

164 REEEBRLA —B—REFR




10. RS HiRI (%) (&)

FicE

(a)

5% B EEMERREEARRIEMBR
AILERECTERAR(TERELT]) » X
RESHIFMHERAR(RESASFD - W
RREEREVRARABD(TRERHE]D
WRREREM AR QR (TRERE ] R
RREBABEEXEARAR(BHABEZE DA
BAPTS BB E - IIREEBAFHHBERAT
(TEEWR DS ERI%  DEEE
RIFEHEMEEER -

TR IR BB R B R B 15 48 BB A 25 L B B [2008)
FIHM - FRIEEEE2008F 1 A1 BRRTESE
SEMEB RS - BRIECONEIZE D ERMI
B b ¥ PTISRUE)E 3R 27IE A RINE IR B ¥
HNE 1 SRS BEAE ME AR A DEE O KAV AR T 41
MIEFEH - MERARRD KA ELTTH
BEE,/BfEAARE18742,0007T (20154 :
AR¥18,145,0007T) EFT AF B ©

4 b3 (E R B EE M FHEIR30%E)60%HY
ZER R - B2 SH & TS SRR AT F00R
S BRI AR A KT E MR
HH e

AT IR BN RE21
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10. Income tax expense/(credit) (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25% represents the relevant
income tax rate of Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue
Chemicals”), Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd. (‘Dongyue Polymers”),
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd (“Dongyue
Organosilicon”), Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.
("Dongyue Fluo-Silicon”) and Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd
("Union Property”) which are the major subsidiaries of the Company. The
income tax rate of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd.
("Huaxia Shenzhou") is 15% as it obtained the qualification as a high and
new technology enterprise.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State
Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui [2008] No.1, dividend distributed out
of the profits generated since 1 January 2008 held by the PRC entity shall
be subject to EIT pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law
Concerning Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and
Article 91 of the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income
Tax Law for Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises.
Deferred tax asset/liability of RMB18,742,000 (2015: RMB18,145,000) on
the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries has been charged to profit or
loss for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 21.
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MNERERN (BE)RZEWK

A/ (BX) B8

FRaf,/ (BR)REmEBA (FX) 8%

B GEA) TIISE :

income/(expense) for the year

11.Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive

Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year

has been arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following items:

20165 20154
ARET T AREBTT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
e E B A A (ML) Short-term employee benefits (Note) 517,284 405,205
RIREF Post-employment benefits 84,101 98,653
st E 7 AR SR Equity-settled share-based payment
expense = 9,525
Hih8 T&F Other staff welfare 39,135 25,044
48 TR Total staff costs 640,520 538,427
ERRARY 2 FEKAR Cost of inventories recognised as an
expense 5,597,486 5,172,491
M - KEREBEITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 709,903 680,421
EEESHEGTAEERA) Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales) 11,128 11,117
ZE AN & Auditor's remuneration 2,252 2,603
BE U 25 R 5R Net foreign exchange gains (29,037) (19,400)
TR, (FE)E S REBGIERE Recognition/(Reversal) of impairment on
trade receivables 22,751 (900)
BE& ARE Impairment of wealth management
contract = 1,478,200
BRER AR 2 T R A Research and development costs
recognized as an expense 73,947 69,797
WoRFE (GT AEEKA) Write-down of inventories (included in
cost of sales) 5,200 9,458
BOoBENES Release of prepaid lease payments 13,469 13,088
LEYZE  BRLBHER Loss on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 35,910 8,252
A ERERE Impairment of available-for sale
investments 42,324 -
mAERE Impairment of intangible assets = 40,000
M - HeE R ERE Impairment of property, plant and
equipment - 740

iz - A EBTHRABEEEMNE -

ERENTFTESEONBEAABARE
10,698,0007T (20154 : AR#10,243,0007T) °

Note:  Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs.

The actual discretionary bonus paid to the directors was
RMB10,698,000 (2015: RMB10,243,000).



R.EEREETHRAESHMH

MoZ(2015F : 0B )EERETEITHAE
FACTEMEBT

Notes to the Consoli

12. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2015: 10)
directors and the chief executive were as follows:

20164 2016

HES Executive Directors

RERLE Mr. Zhang Jianhong

EEEE Mr. Fu Kiwan

flEars Mr. Liu Chuang

ERIEE Mr. Cui Tongzheng

BRELE(R2015F  Mr Feng Jianjun (appointed
3HI6HERE) on 16 March 2015)

RELE Mr. Zhang Jian

BUFHTES Independent Non-executive

Directors

TRBRAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

EEREE Mr. Yue Run Dong

BRELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
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12.

EERTETHAEEM(E) 12.Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)
201545 2015
L=
‘ gl AL _
e e (&) RIRGHEIRR XHA%  EftEd st
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT AR%Tn ARET:
Equity-settled
Discretionary Pension share-based
bonus scheme payment Other
Fees Salary (Note)  contributions expense benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HTEE Executive Directors
RELAE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 5925 - 3439 - 15,508
BELE M. Fu Kwan 144 - - - - - 144
ABFRE Mr. Liu Chuangi 144 6,000 475 - 3490 - 10,109
ERNTE Mr. Cui Tongzheng 144 2400 3843 6 1,293 2 7688
RERE(R215F Mr. Wu Tao (resigned on 16
3RI6AET) March 2015) - - - - - - -
BRELAE(R015F  Mr. Feng Jianjun (appointed
3R16HEZR() on 16 March 2015) 15 - - - - - 15
RELE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - 52 - 1%
BUFYTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRIELE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 265 - - - - - 265
EERLE Mr. Yue Run Dong 158 - - - - - 158
BRELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 158 - - - - - 158
1416 14,400 10,243 6 8274 2 34,341

WITEFENFS R REDEN —RE
ZEALTEEARBRENERRNERH
REMNEBREM N FERFALIEFA
TRENME -

SRIBRSCETRARAITHAREL - £ 3FTH
BHH NS ERTRERRER RO
A -

FR- AEBTEANEEZRAEESHFAL
TS AREE N AE B RIEA AL
SRR ERAEE BIEXTEITHAS
ST EE NEE E20165 &2015512 831
B IE R EF ERERBE

BaE - BIBTEALDIRBEEMEARBKMETE °

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the executive
directors are generally emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
those persons’ other services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Mr. Zhang Jianhong is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments for the two years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Note: Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance
of the directors.

Ealatte
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13. Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2015: three) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in note 12 above. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2015: two) individuals were as follows:

20164 20154
ARET T ARETT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
e Salary 11,426 9,398
RIRET I K Pension scheme contributions 14 11
AR sE 8 2 LARRD TSR SZ Equity-settled share-based payment

expense - 1,862
11,440 11,271

BEHMNNFLATAER - Their emoluments were within the following bands:
20164 20154
EE#A EEHE
2016 2015
No. of employees No. of employees
1,500,001/ 7T 22,000,000/ 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 -
2,500,001 7T & 3,000,000/ 7T HK$2,500,001 to HKS$3,000,000 - 1
8,500,001/ JL £ 9,000,000/ 7T HKS$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000 = 1
11,000,001 752 11,500,00078 7T HK$11,000,001 to HKS$11,500,000 1 -
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14. 8RER,(FE) 14. Earnings/(Loss) per share
KRABIEEAEEERERNLEEEF The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
(BBR)DERETINEEAE - attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

2016 20154
¥ +
2016 2015
‘000 ‘000
MERAARE SRR, (EBE)ME  Earning/(Loss) for the year attributable
MAFEARRER ARERT], to owners of the Company for
(BB (ARE) the purposes of basic and diluted
earnings/(loss) per share (RMB) 588,154 (690,479)
REREARREERF,(FBB)ME  Weighted average number of ordinary
SRS Lk shares for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings/(loss) per share 2,111,795 2,116,050
ARARD T EATEERENTEES VIR The computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years
MFEETE - WEFEEE20165 &2015512 ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 does not assume the exercise
A31BUEEENEREERT, (BB of all of the Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise
R L S R IR R B TE - prices of those options are higher than the average market price
of the shares.
15. R E 15. Dividends
2016 20154
ARET T AREBTT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
FAREIRNBRE : 2016F RHAPALE ©  Dividends paid during the year: 2016
FRRZTHEIT(2015F 1 2014F RHIBE S final dividend: HKS nil (2015: 2014 final
FH0.09787T) dividend: HK$0.09) per share = 151,746
HZE2016F12A3BIEFE EE5EEREE A final dividend HKO.1 per share (2015: HK$0.05 per share),
i€211,169,000 7T, (2015%F : 105,584,000/ JT, ) amounting to HK$211,169,000 (2015: HK$105,584,000) in respect of
(B0 L (20159 + BM0.05E L)) 2K the year ended 31 December 2016, equivalent to RMB187,307,000
HifR B - ABE N A K ¥187,307,0007T(2015 (2015: RMB93,437,000) has been proposed by the directors and is
& AR®0934370007T) » HERKREKRS subject to approval by the shareholders in general meeting.
R R o —
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16. Property, plant and equipment

BT HERRE RE HRREE  ARIE @t
AR®TT ARETR AR%Tn ARETR AR%Tn ARET:R
Plant and Motor Furniture Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles and fittings  in progress Total
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
A cosT
01551 A18 At 1 January 2015 1529954 6156309 44818 389716 63417 8184214
RNE Additions 8452 83787 1186 36,760 287322 422507
g% Transfer 22526 242,186 = 13,236 (277948) -
BREEHERRINE Transfer to properties for sale (757) 5 = = (2,184) (2941)
isa Written off (2,346) (6,710) S L = (9,056)
HEREH Eliminated on disposals (1375) (52942) (649) (2479) = (57441)
R0158128318 At 31 December 2015 1556454 6427630 45355 43737 70607 8537,283
RE Additions 61502 107,852 25% 35,855 232,646 440379
EL3 Transfer 11761 117,169 - 25933 (154,863) -
finsa Witten off - - - - (654) (654)
L EREH Eliminated on disposals (3469) (105991) (551) (1497) - (111,508)
R0168128318 At 31 December 2016 1606248 6,546,660 47328 497528 147736 8865500
ZHAHERAE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
R0sE1 A18 At 1 January 2015 393719 3053936 33936 245758 - 3727340
TEERR Charge for the year 75,397 545,346 5,531 54147 - 680,421
il Impairment 255 485 - - - 740
A Written off (513) (3.49) - - - (4,009)
HERKH Eliminated on disposals (466) (45,115) (597) (2,297) - (48.475)
R015E124318 At 31 December 2015 468392 355115 38870 297,608 - 435602
REERX Charge for the year 106,447 546,215 2,783 54458 - 709903
L ERKH Eliminated on disposals (1022 (71,869) (514) (1,282) - (74,687)
R0168128318 At 31 December 2016 573817 4025502 41,139 350,784 - 4991242
REE CARRYING VALUES
R016E124318 At 31 December 2016 1052431 2,521,158 6189 146,744 14773 3874258
R015E 124318 At 31 December 2015 1,088,062 2876474 6,485 139629 70607 4181257
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16. M5 ~ #Es R (&)

M201656F12A318 - A& B /ME TETF
MANEEERET HEEEBEAARY
155402,0007C(20155F 1283180 : A R #&
148,074,0007T) °

WE - BERLRERBERER THIMBETA
ERFRRNRERNBRISEEFENE :

BF 205 SR FHEA (AR & A %)
WS N 5108
RE 54

BMNEE  S5F

AEEDEFEREED 52 ARM6,048,000
TC(20154F + AR¥50,738,0007T) M A REEE
T0(2015%F © AR #163,913,0007T ) HYIE=F -
WEREREE  AAEERITERREMER
YEHAR o

BFAUNPE L ERRETRHEERE

16.

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had not obtained the building
ownership certificates for certain buildings with carrying values of
RMB155,402,000 (31 December 2015: RMB148,074,000).

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings Shorter of 20 years or the terms of lease
Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture and fittings 5 years

The Group has pledged buildings and plant and machinery with
carrying amount of RMB6,048,000 (2015: RMB50,738,000) and
RMBnil (2015: RMB163,913,000) respectively, to secure bank loans
and other loans of the Group.

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and held under
medium-term lease.

17.F84HE& 17. Prepaid lease payments
AREBRBEMNHES SRS B HTER DTN The Group's prepaid lease payments are analysed for reporting
BN purpose as follows:

2016%F 20154
ARET T AREBTTT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

REmEBWEN ST ¢ Analysed for reporting purpose as:
— BNEREL — Current portion 13,603 13,241
— JERNEAER - Non-current portion 472,533 469,366
486,136 482,607

ZE BN ERH20E0F 6 B Lk
FtE -

The amounts represent the medium-term land use rights situated
in the PRC for a period of 20 to 50 years.

e
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AEEDMIFR@AEARE2621,0007TH)
BNEE - BREERETREMERIELR
(20154 : AR#104,940,0007T) °
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17. Prepaid lease payments (Continued)

The Group has pledged prepaid lease payments with the

aggregate carrying amount of RMB2,621,000 to secure bank and
other loans (2015: RMB104,940,000) of the Group.

18. BILEE 18. Intangible assets
EHEA B IR st
ARETTT AREFT AREBTT AR®TRT
Proprietary Exploration
Technologies Software rights Total
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB 000
2% COST
20151 H18 - At 1 January 2015, 31
2015%F12H31H December 2015
20161 A 18 And 1 January 2016 128,512 1,363 80,000 209,875
NE Additions - 360 - 360
2016512 A31H At 31 December 2016 128,512 1,723 80,000 210,235
BERRE AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
201591 A1H At 1 January 2015 40,553 212 - 40,765
REERZ Charge for the year 10,857 260 - 1,117
BE Impairment - - 40,000 40,000
201512 A31H At 31 December 2015 51,410 472 40,000 91,882
AFEERL Charge for the year 10,861 267 - 11,128
2016512 831H At 31 December 2016 62,271 739 40,000 103,010
RHE{E CARRYING VALUES
20165128318 At 31 December 2016 66,241 984 40,000 107,225
20155128318 At 31 December 2015 77,102 891 40,000 117,993
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18. BILEE (&)

REEMBETEEDRAE=ZTEE

HE R R ESE R B A A e R Al F
A WIRESED BIRSFER10F M3F
ESFE o

20124 - REENAREARBOBET
ME=ZFTRBREARE BAEMEES
KRR - AR ESHARSMNEREIR
B (BARAERR LB EBNEERM
B o WIBTES SRS E LA S IEAAK
TRERENSEEL A EIRME -

BBEEPEMRRFEENEARE - R
BEMEETEEBMEFE - AEBRA
ERBFEEERE - BR2015F108 - A&EE
BRI R EEMFIEE2017F108 ° A&
NEIEERA  REZE2016F12A31HIEF
B EERRE0155F : DHERBREAR
#40,000,0007T © JYEREBIRERERE 7%
MBS R IBE A AR/ TR -

18.Intangible assets (Continued)

All of the Group’s intangible assets were acquired from third
parties.

Proprietary technologies and computer software licences have
definite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
5to 10 years and 3 to 5 years respectively.

During 2012, the Group acquired exploration rights of two mines
from third parties in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region in the
PRC for a total consideration of RMB80 million. The directors of the
Company expected that the mines are abundant with fluorspar
resources, which is a major raw material for the refrigerant
business of the Group. The acquisition of the mines will enable
the Group to secure a reliable supply of high quality fluorspar
resources at a reasonable cost.

According to the regulations on exploration and mining rights
in the PRC, the Group can extend the exploration rights as long
as the survey is in process and the application fee is submitted.
In October 2015, the Group extended the exploration rights
for a period of two years till October 2017. The directors of
the Company considered that no impairment was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB40,000,000
impairment was recognised due to decrease in mining areas of
the two mines upon renewal of the exploration rights).

pEamahte
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19. REE N T RERS 19. Interests in associates
20165 20154
ARBT T AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR EIFE LT E A BRI E KA Cost of investments in associates
unlisted in the PRC 981 980
W iE — g A Bl 2 e Gain on acquisition of an associate 22,723 -
FEAGUREER (B518), R F - Share of post-acquisition (loss)/profits,
MR E RIS net of dividends received (12,426) 15
RIE Impairment (995) =
10,283 995
20165 2015612 A431H - REEEE A The details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2016 and
AIBFFIRAT ¢ 2015 are as follows:
BRLH EHRBKS  RYER IRERRE FEROBY ARESENEMERX  FREFSRRELA IERR
Form of Principal
business Country of place Class of Registered capital Proportion of voting  Principal
Name of entity structure establishment ~ of operation  share held held by the Group rights held by the Group  activity
20165 20155 20165 20155
2016 2015 2016 2015
FRABERUERE BRAT G G MR 4% % (Fida) BHERE
BRAT (Hfzta)
Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate  Limited liability ~ PRC PRC Registered 4% 44% (Notea) Real Estate
Development Co, Ltd. company capital (Note a) Development
FREHRENIHER  BRAT f G iMaR 49% 4%% 40% 0% BERHEES
BRAT (Witb) (o) EEERL
Wi
Chifeng North Dongyue Limited liability ~ PRC PRC Registered 49% 49% 40% 40%  Production
New Material Development  company capital (Note b) (Noteh)  and sales of
(o, Ltd. fluorogypsum
MiE - Notes:

(a)

HR2016F1A8H » ARRIMHMB AR ILEERE
G EEERAREBIE=F(EAEH)]
i MARBITZRERERERAEERE
WEMRZEERAF([RRA]) 44%8 7 HE - R
RREPEENEEEREER - NEEF
B RR FA44%H X KB E ARSI AR —XK
Bt A AR AE e o EIRR RINIB 12 5 FIE T
REEEFFELOIME - ALt » 2016F A&
BRI & R Thi44%m A B E -

On 8 January 2016, Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with independent
third parties, as vendors, to acquire 44% equity interest in Zhangjiajie
Xinye Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (RRAZEEEEMRZEERA
A))(“Zhangjiajie”) at a consideration of RMB1. Zhangjiajie is engaged in
real estate development business in Hu Nan. The Group held 44% equity
interest in Zhangjiajie and accounted for the investment as interest in an
associate. The share of post-acquisition profits of Zhangjiajie depends on
the proportion of actual capital contribution by investors. As a result, the
Group's share of post-acquisition profits of Zhangjiajie was.calculated on
a 44% basis in 2016.
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19.

176

REE R R R ()

(b) F2011F2H18H + ARRWHBRARINT HE
FEBFLATARARE—ZBIFE = H5]L
Wk RALAE T RE - AEEEHEIE RS
TEEAFE  AAHARERBZAREHEE
RANRTZARAAEETHIME - LR
EOREZE2016F12A31BILFERIFEERS -

FrAERE A RIIRAEDENZSHRAMHH
KA » IRIZBERE 53R & ERIAR B A B 75
BREEESIT

A

A

19. Interests in associates (Continued)

(b)  On 18 February 2011, Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chemicals
Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with an

independent third party to establish North Dongyue. The Group is able

to exercise significant influence over North Dongyue because it has the
power to appoint two out of five directors of that company under the
Articles of the Association of that company. North Dongyue has ceased

its business during the year ended 31 December 2016.

All of the associates are accounted for using the equity method

in these consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial

information is set out below and is prepared in accordance with

IFRSs.
RERR Zhangjiajie

20165
AR¥T
2016
RMB’000
BEE Total assets 581,529
FEN=NE Total liabilities 558,159
FEE Net assets 23,370
AEBEENFEE Net assets attributable to the Group 10,283
20164
ARET T
2016
RMB’000
W zs Revenue _

Bt N EEE ARG FERE Loss for the year attributable to owner
of the associate (28,272)
AEBELERE Group's share of loss (12,440)

&\

REEBERAE —B-AFFR
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19. REtE AR fEs= (&) 19. Interests in associates (Continued)
RERA(E) Zhangjiajie (Continued)
it B RS A R B B A B S N R R RS Y BR Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
ENEIRNGE VB HRERAER the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

2016%F
ARET T
2016
RMB’000
KRR FEE Net assets of Zhangjiajie 23,370
AEBRRR AN B ERER L Proportion of Group’s ownership
interest in Zhangjiajie 44%
AEERERAERHREE Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in Zhangjiajie 10,283
EtFRE North Dongyue
20165 20154
ARBT T AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEE Total assets = 8712
BAE Total liabilities - 5,556
BEFE Net assets - 3,156
NEBEREEEFE Net assets attributable to the Group = 1,546
HAb A% - Other adjustments:
REEREE A RIRHE Sales from the Group to associate - (551)
= 995
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19. REFE DRIV s (4])

19. Interests in associates (Continued)

A RE (&) North Dongyue (Continued)
20164 20154
AR¥ T ARETF T
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
Wz Revenue = 8,291

B2 AmHA AREFAER

of the associate

Loss for the year attributable to owner

M

REEELEER

Group's share of loss

M

BB HER SR AN SR RS ERE
EREIRN A MR PR

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to

the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

20164 20154
AR®T T AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
A RENEETFE Net assets of North Dongyue = 3,156
AEBRILF R EMAEERLL Proportion of Group's ownership interest
in North Dongyue 49% 49%
AEEMNETREEZHREE Carrying amount of the Group's interest
in North Dongyue = 995

78 REEEERAT —B-AFFH

A
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20. Available-for-sale investments

2016 20154
ARET T ARETT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
EETRARTES - IRBCARTIER Unlisted equity securities, at cost
— I REIFTIREERBR AT (HiEa) - Shandong Innovation Investment
Co,, Ltd. (Note a) - 2,324
—HEREER NEERBR AR ~ Zibo ZhangDian Huitong
(MRIEER]) (MidEa) Microfinance Co., Ltd.
("ZhangDian Huitong") (Note a) 26,703 66,703
—IRFEERKERERES - Shandong Peninsula Ocean Blue
AR A ([SPOBE]) (BizEb) Economic Investment Co., Ltd.
("SPOBE") Note b) 126,256 126,256
—FERERERNBRAR — China MinSheng Investment
(T R&% D) (M5t Co,, Ltd. ("CMIC") (Note ©) 1,000,000 1,000,000
1,152,959 1,195,283

FaidF ERERERLABRORAR
B RBEPRERKARERERE - AR
BEAFENGESELERR  AARES
RRERNFEEAAISFE

MiaE

ZEERAEPERINAAEE - AEER
IR AT B R B BR A 55575 9.9%H) A% 78 18
o RREE2016F 128318 ILFERES R
EARZURE - REBNREERZH 5%
iz - AARIEERAE - ARM40,000,0007T
HREDREE20165F12A31BILFERR -

SPOBEA— MR EHESEMKYMALAE
B o REZE201MFNANBLESFE - ARG H
SPOBER] 37 3R B8 1 7% + 7R B§20,000,000A% SPOBE
f& 17 - 48R (B 520,000,000 TT(HHERARE
126,256,0007T ) ° HA2015%F &2016%F12H318 -
7R &) 5 20,000,000%SPOBERE 15 » {d H AR A
HEERHY18.18% ©

2014465 A9 + AR5 B3R EE A R 3%1,000,000,000
BB - HERP R0 E  REAAR
#1,000,000,0007C © R R AR R BEK L HAD
B FENERERENEEER -

The above unlisted investments represent equity investments in
private entities. They are measured at cost less impairment at the
end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.

Notes:

(a)

The entities are private entities that were established in the PRC.
The Group holds 9.9% of the equity interest in Shandong Innovation
Investment Co., Ltd and the investment amount has been fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2016. The Group holds 15% of the
equity interest in ZhangDian Huitong, the directors of the Company
considered that impairment of RMB40 million was recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

SPOBE is a private entity that was incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with SPOBE to subscribe 20,000,000
shares in SPOBE at a total contribution of US$$20,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB126,256,000). As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, the Company had
20,000,000 shares which represents 18.18% equity interest in SPOBE.

On 9 May 2014, the Group subscribed 1,000,000,000 shares in CMIC,
which represent 2% equity interest in CMIC, at a consideration of
RMB1,000,000,000. CMIC is a company established in the PRC and is
principally engaged in equity investment and assets management.
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21.

IEAEBL TR

R EREMENRLERIBLERONT

21. Deferred taxation

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purpose:

20165 20154

AR¥T T ARETIT

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

FEIEFIAE B Deferred tax assets 451,653 453,288

RERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (58,679) (50,147)
392,974 403,141

AERCHATBECHAEE(RE) A

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)

FEHINT ¢ recognised and movements thereon for the year:
hEaER
0% BER
HEREAR ESEH  mEAELN REH
THAREN  FERE  ERER  BAWE HEER  ERMAR HEER Afp it
ARRTT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR AR
Tax credit
Government  On acquisition
Distributable grantson  of qualified
Profits of Accrual for prepaid property
PRC Depreciation  employee lease  plant,and  Capitalised Tax
Subsidiaries allowance benefits ~ payments  equipment interest losses Others Total
RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB1000
RsEIA1R At T January 2015 (24,164) (8:454) 44036 450 17500 (5329) 17388 18679 102,171
BMERBRARETA  (Charge) Credit recognised
in Profit or [oss (18,145) 23276 (16,189) 4873 - 1,680 - 305475 300970
RsE1A3A At 31 December 2015 (42,309) 14822 27841 47384 17500 (3,645) 17388 324154 403141
BRRaENH Dividend withholding tax paid 5000 - - - - - - - 5000
BB EA  (Charge) Credit recognised
in Profit or loss (1874) 607 10008 (1527) - 1514 (15859) 8828 (15167)
M06E1 AR At 31 December 2016 (56,051) 15429 37,855 45857 17500 (2131) 1533 33298 392974
e ;"a
180 RESEERLAT —Z—RFFHK



21.

22,

IEAERE (4])

20165124318 - REE A BIEHE SHAR K
st H B AR A TR & 18 A A R 144,154,000
TL(20155 © AR #310,699,0007T) * it E
H A B A R #6,133,00070 (20155 © AR
69,552,0007C ) W B 1B R ELERIBE E o
HRTHREEHESEEENERBEFZ
GRIAARBABIBEERBEN - AL ER
BR TR E) A A IE B4R A R #5138,021,0007T
(20155 + AR¥241,147,0007T ) 7 &R IE T
MEEE ABARNEBERLEBEAR
#869,096,0007T & A R #37,664,0007T * 5 Bl
1§ 7220194 K 20204F 2 BA(20154F : AR
69,096,0007T & A R #37,664,0007T # 5 Bl 1
20194 K 20204 FI|Hf) -
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21. Deferred taxation (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB144,154,000 (2015: RMB310,699,000) available for offset against
future profits of which a deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of RMB6,133,000 (2015: RMB69,552,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in the remaining
unused tax losses of RMB138,021,000 (2015: RMB241,147,000) as
it is uncertain whether taxable profit of the corresponding group
entities will be available against which the unused tax losses
can be utilised. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
RMB69,096,000 and RMB37,664,000 that will expire in 2019 and
2020 respectively (2015: RMB69,096,000 and RMB37,664,000 that
will expire in 2019 and 2020 respectively).

EE 22. Goodwill
20164 20154
AR¥ T ARBEFIT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
PR COST
R1ATBEKRI2A31H At 1 January and 31 December 85,894 85,894

AEITRERE - AR 84,540,000 (2015
0 AR ¥584,540,0007T ) M A R #51,354,000
JC(20154F © AR #£13540000 ) 2 B E B

DA TMERCELEM(RSELE
) BIMETEMBAR : &0 FHED

HHEBWA RSB SRS R TR
ERARI(REEZE]) - RELE20165F12H
NALEFE ASEEEERTEWADLIRMT
A EERE o

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill of RMB84,540,000
(2015: RMB84,540,000) and RMB1,354,000 (2015: RMB1,354,000)
have been allocated to two cash generating units (CGUs)
representing two PRC subsidiaries, Huaxia Shenzhou in the
polymers segment and Dongying Dongyue Salt Co,, Ltd ("Dongyue
Salt”) in the refrigerants segment. During the year ended 31
December 2016, management of the Group determines that there

is no impairment of goodwill.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2016 181

.



mEMBHERME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2016F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

22.

23

EE (&)
EEHA

FEMANARESRIREEREEFTE
BE- sELREEEEEHENDFH
MBRENTE RS RE RRIE X16.60%5T
B - AFHARNASRERA3%NIZEIE
KRR - ZERXTDVENBRTRIERE
A BETEBERITENFORBRES -
FEREEAENEMEIERRSE(BRER
HHEBLENXEAN)REREMLTA
B o ZBMAR VEREEMANBERE R
EEEBHMISRRNTEN - BEEEMEE - %
EFRRAEAELBENTME I TEEH
FEHANRRAEBEAEAINEASE -

WiE—HENERR MMz
BE

2015511 H278 » AR R —FEME A A
IWREEHBEXEERAG(ERE )M
—ZBNE=ZHENEREBERAB([E
HD) EBERIN—HERREE RS - #
KEILRBAEHHERZEERAR(EX])
75%HIRRHE c BAREILRENSEERE
X% BEFRA - WHFEEBEAEEEH
Ph R B H B 2575 R 38 AN SR B A WA ZROR o
M2015F 12831 EMEANZFARKE
165,897,0007C E BB K AIZ S FRIBE - 1
HE2016F12A31HILFE  ZBEEER
B o

22. Goodwill (Continued)

23

Huaxia Shenzhou

The recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 16.60%. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
flows which include budgeted sales and gross margins. Such
estimation is based on past performance of Huaxia Shenzhou
and management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of Huaxia Shenzhou to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of Huaxia Shenzhou.

Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary

On 27 November 2015, one of the subsidiaries of the Company,
Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd., as purchaser,
entered into a preliminary sale and purchase agreement with
Hengli Holding Group Co,, Ltd (B J1ZRX BB R A ) ("Hengli"),
an independent third party, as vendor, intended to acquire 75%
equity interest in Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd (U RBAEHERIEBRAF]) (‘Boda”). Boda is engaged in
real estate development business in Shandong. In the opinion of
the Directors, the acquisition will enable the Group for expending
of the real estate business and increase the revenue stream of the
Group. As at 31 December 2015, RMB165,897,000 has been paid to
Hengli as the deposit amount of the acquisition of Boda. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the amount has been fully
repaid.
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578 24. Inventories

20165 20154
AR¥ETF T ARETT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
R R KBRS Raw materials and consumables 323,770 274,668
paa-te Work in progress 67,988 63,222
LK Finished goods 319,210 375,571
710,968 713,461

EHERZZYHE 25. Properties for sale
20165 2015%F
ARYET T AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ELER®B B TME Completed property for sale 318,134 266,730
ERE AR TR Property under development for sale 89,086 520,699
407,220 787,429

REZE20102F12A381EFE  AEBER
BAREBANREILRETE S B
FERELERGR EEYME - BEEERAE
ESTEIDEREABEEFIME - ZERTIED
20126 L - BEEES AHE - ME—
HEREZ2014F 1283 AIEFERT - 5
“HEREE2015F12A31BIEFERT -
FE-HIRENEERBZE2016512H4318 1
FEET - 8 T —HTEF R R REERNT
T o

M20165F12A318 - IEHERGE 2EEY
¥HEEBEARBZTQ015F : ARM
442,212,0007T ) TE AR R & BA R BB EF T =
EARET -

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
management decided to develop residential properties on
two parcels of lands which are situated in Huantai Shandong,
the PRC for sale and the relevant development plan had been
approved by relevant authority in the PRC. The construction
work was commenced in 2012. The whole project is divided into
five phases and phase 1 was completed during the year end
31 December 2014 and phase 2 was completed during the year
ended 31 December 2015. Phase 3 and Phase 4 were completed
during the year ended 31 December 2016. The remaining one
phase was expected to be completed in the coming years.

At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of properties under
development for sale of RMB nil (2015: RMB442,212,000) are
expected to be completed within twelve months from the end of
reporting period.
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26. E5 R HMEWRIE 26. Trade and other receivables

20165 20154

AR¥T T ARETIT

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

2 5 EWG0E Trade receivables 1,146,024 1,296,531
B REREE Less: allowance for doubtful debts (25,669) (2,918)
1,120,355 1,293,613

[EM R IB S 2OR Prepayments for raw materials 25,851 23,313
JE BB (B R Value added tax receivables 5,629 7,757

TEEYHEEANTBNIIE Prepaid taxes arising from pre-sale of

properties = 19,445

JFE I B 2 A B FUA Amount due from associates = 2,107
Tﬁﬁ&ﬁ@%uﬁlw\ B Deposits and other receivables 57,140 45918
1,208,975 1,392,153

B S EWREBIEN20165F12A31HEAR
#882,106,0007T 2 FEM & (20154 + AR
1,072,350,0007T) °

AEERTRFPZESERGEEESR R
Ao - EIEER —AF0H NEk180
BAZIH - RIEHEF (R EKZEERE
HHEE)  AEERREHAERZESE
WHRE(N B REEBE) NIRRT 25 W
"|? o

184 REEEABRLA TR EFRH

Included in the trade receivables are bills receivable amounting to
RMB882,106,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB1,072,350,000).

Customers are generally granted with credit period of less than
90 days for trade receivables. Bills receivables are generally due
in 90 days or 180 days. The following is an aging analysis of
trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice date, also approximate the date of revenue
recognition, which are recognised by the Group at the end of the
reporting period.

Ealatte
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26.Trade and other receivables (Continued)

201645 20154

AR¥ETF T AREFTT

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

90H N Within 90 days 873,868 490,307
91HZE180H 91-180 days 209,690 784,301
180H A E Above 180 days 36,797 19,005
1,120,355 1,293,613

TERBETAHERA  AEESHEFEP
MEERTHEBEREPHNEEEZNEER
PHREA%EE - EPHERBEENERTR
FEEIZMIR © 98% (20155 1 99%) 7 %1 HA
MAREZESEUHEREEEAETNR
HEATR - AEERTEFPEHNEE 5
ARBERESEERE -

AEECESRRFBELHPEERDAE
B A AN R #47,52300070(20154F © A R#
39,420,0007T ) ZBE K ¥k B AR @AM
AEBWEGFHREBBELRE A5H
WARFE U S REB AR IE FHER -

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts research
on the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. 98% (2015: 99%) of the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have the high ranking record
attributable under the research on the creditworthiness. The
Group offers various settlement terms which vary depending on
the size of contract, credibility and reputation of the customers.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB47,523,000 (2015:
RMB39,420,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral or credit enhancements over these

balances.
20164 20154
AR¥T T AREET T
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
91BZE180H 91-180 days 10,726 20,415
181H M E Over 181 days 36,797 19,005
47,523 39,420
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26. B 5 K HAth FE YRR ()
MNMEEE R Y MAE S AREERER
SHEY M - AREAY E S ERE
Bif - ARAEFRARSHEREUER

26.Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Allowance of the above amount has not been made by the Group
as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality
and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The directors of

of o the Company consider they are in good credit quality.
RIREESF Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
20164 2015%F
ARYET T AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEEAR Balance at beginning of the year 2,918 3,818
FREHE Provided during the year 22,751 -
B OE 5 W GRIERE Reversal of impairment on trade
receivables - (900)
FR ISR Balance at end of the year 25,669 2,918

A EBHB RGBT R E 5 8 KRR
HYRL(E

NHEEEERNIEEEAIIMNERTIE
MRS E AR RE ST -

The above allowance represents impairment for trade receivables
which are considered not recoverable.

The Group's account receivables that are denominated in
currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

%5 AR
Fi F7
Uss$ RMB
‘000 ‘000
M2016512H318 As at 31 December 2016 18,093 125,513
20155124318 As at 31 December 2015 16,136 104,781

FE Y 2 R A AR EEIR - B RIREX

fEiE -

Amount due from associates were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.
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27. EXER 27.Entrusted loans
20164 20154
ARBT T ARET T
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
FER Entrusted loans 30,000 336,300

MR2016F12A831H ZEERNEBRBLD
AREEH B T(2015%F « AR¥E3363H 8
T0) c AEBRE  FpEsp ARENES

TCRAIAZ S -

28

)

BE

BENEE FRARMRBEFIEEARN
Bl A A R #85,000,000
7T~ A R #3,160,0007T & A K #18,540,000
Jo(20154F © A R #42,500,0007C + A R #&
45,745,000 & A R #24,970,0007T ) °

BRI 2

EHEFRITTEREIBRITEBRIZZE AN KL
B BIFRITTEREIBITABRR2016F
AEBMEFEHEERFED R A1.65%
(20154 : 2.80%) £20.42% (20155 : 0.35%) °

RS EEENY
MRS BRI THESRESIAT

BEMBITERRITEHRR 28

BN ERTIE

be fully recovered.

Cash

As at 31 December 2016, the balances of entrusted loans were
approximately RMB30 million (2015: RMB336.3 million). In the
opinion of the Group, the remaining balance of RMB30 million can

Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and

Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB85,000,000,
RMB3,160,000 and RMB18,540,000 (2015: RMB42,500,000,
RMB45,745,000 and RMB24,970,000) have been pledged to secure
the bills payable, letter of credit and mortgage loan, respectively.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry variable interest
rates. The weighted average effective interest rates on pledged
bank deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2016 were
1.65% (2015: 2.80%) and 0.42% (2015: 0.35%) respectively.

The Group’s bank balances that are denominated in currencies

other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities

are set out below:

E™ AR®
FIL FIL
uUss$ RMB
'000 ‘000
R20165F12A31H As at 31 December 2016 67,317 466,911
72015 12A31H As at 31 December 2015 4,146 26,906
BT ARYE
Tt Tt
HKS$ RMB
'000 ‘000
2016512 A31H As at 31 December 2016 22,890 20,475
72015F12A31H As at 31 December 2015 33,844 28,355
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2. BEZREMBENREARRKRER
EYEZEBRE
(a) EZRHEMBLTE

188

29.Trade and other payables & deposits

received from pre-sale of properties

(a) Trade and other payables

2016 201546
ARYET T ARETFT
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5 ENRIE Trade payables 1,086,516 1,358,497
B P I8 Receipt in advance from customers 107,609 69,920
JRE 1 B8 T 3 M B 1) Payroll payable (Note i) 173,293 143,950
WEE - e RERERE FUIB(MIFEIN)  Payable for property, plant and
equipment (Note ii) 109,072 87,281
H At ERITRIR Other tax payables 108,939 30,173
BV XFEIEE A Eftizs Other deposits in relation to property
development project 58,000 58,000
TEHERBRZEEYEMENBE IR Construction cost payables for properties
under development for sale 191,982 156,957
Fth A K e kI (B i) Other payables and accruals (Note iii) 115,033 289,519
Bt Total 1,950,444 2,194,297
ik - Notes:

(i)

(ifi)

=

R2016F12A31H - ENBIHME—18
ATENBAREEHRESCBEBEARE
56,869,0007C(20154F : A IR #46,370,0007T ) °
BRESHEAEETRHNERES N2
RESEMT  HRERMABLREREE - I
BREFFRUTREERFE - HREBIEEE
A—FEFHITE  TELIREMERBESF
PEME TR o

Wi - RS MR BB SRR MRS I
RELETHE=EARNZN - AHRARFE
SEAFTREERTRE -

R2015F 128310 - HEN REFREBERRE
—ERN—BRARARBEEHSEATERRE)
FRIE AR #100,000,0007T ©

EEBARAT —B-AFFEHR

(i)

(ifi)

As at 31 December 2016, included in the payroll payable is a provision for
social insurance fund for employees of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to RMB56,869,000 (2015: RMB46,370,000). The amount of the provision
represents the Group's entire obligation for social insurance fund for
employees of PRC subsidiaries and is determined based on the relevant
national regulations on social insurance and calculated based on the
basic counting unit multiplied by the social insurance rate. The basic
counting unit for social insurance shall be the average wages of an
employee in the preceding year and shall not be less than the minimum
limit promulgated by the local social insurance bureau each year.

The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment will be
settled three months after the completion of installation of the plant and
machinery which is recorded in the addition of construction in progress
during the year.

As at 31 December 2015, included in other payable and accruals, is an
amount of RMB100,000,000 due to a company, which the director of the
Company is a former shareholder.

Ealatte



REMBHRERME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B E2016F 12431 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2. B RHEMENZERKHETE 29.Trade and other payables & deposits

EVEzEWRE (E) received from pre-sale of properties
(Continued)
(a) EZRHEMESREGE) (a) Trade and other payables (Continued)
E 5 R IB 8 EE AR 201,000,000 Included in the trade payables are bills payable amounting
(20154 : AR #508,319,0007T) 7 FE to RMB201,000,000 (2015: RMB508,319,000). Bills payable are
NEE - BNEEAAEBR/NCERIE secured by the Group's pledged bank deposits.

TR E R -

HEE R EESA0H - KEE The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days.

BRI EENERREERE - R The Group has financial risk management policies in place

FTE R FIENMEEHRAEE - to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

timeframe.

BIFZRZAE - EHEMNFIBRRE D The following is an analysis of trade payables by age,
ME5TF : presented based on invoice date:

2016 20154F

ARET T AREFT

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

30HA Within 30 days 610,672 472,159

31HZE90H 31-90 days 263,635 306,426

91HZ180H 91-180 days 158,432 309,855

181HZE365H 181-365 days 34,155 250,316

T ZEF 1-2 years 12,194 9,162

BiE2E More than 2 years 7,428 10,579

1,086,516 1,358,497

REEAABEEEE TSN The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated

ZEEAHENE S R E M ENTIEET in currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant
(NI group entities are set out below:

E ARYE

Tt Tt

uss$ RMB

‘000 ‘000

2016512 A31H As at 31 December 2016 3,466 24,039

2015 12H31H As at 31 December.2015 3,198 20,755
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29.

30.

EEREMEMRERRKBETFE 29.Trade and other payables & deposits

EYEzEWIRE(E)
(Continued)

(b) REFEEWEZEWEZES

received from pre-sale of properties

(b) Deposits received from pre-sale of properties

20165 20154
ARMTF T AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEEWE 2B WIZE (M) Deposits received from pre-sale of
properties (Note) 98,527 422,670

Mim: ZeRATEREMEELNTRKETF KA -

arising from the pre-sale of properties in the PRC.

Note: The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers

gEg 30. Borrowings
20164 20154F
ARBT R AREBTT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
EIEFRIRITER Unsecured bank loans 2,689,700 3,333,140
BEMIBITER Secured bank loans 40,000 49,700
BEEREMER Secured other loans - 36,526
2,729,700 3,419,366
AR AT HARR AEE R BREE Carrying amount repayable:
TR Within one year 1,797,700 1,831,754
E2NERERNEpka More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 932,000 1,461,612
EINVESERNEHERES More than two years, but not more than
five years = 126,000
2,729,700 3,419,366
B AR RBEE TR FEREEAFKIE  Less: amount due within one year shown
under current liabilities 1,797,700 1,831,754
1B R HARIR Amount due after one year 932,000 1,587,612

Ealss
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20165124318 + AR %40,000,0007T(2015
F: AR¥497000007C) K B FRITE
FNEAEER@EAE S ARE60480007T
(20155 + AR #22,066,0007T ) K12 F (2015
F:EBFIUREERERAR2621,0007T
(20154 : ARR¥44,52500070) BT & 1E
RER - ZEFRPRITERIRF B435%
Z522%(2015%F : 485%F6.25%)5H 8. °

2015128318 - B—REBMBEBIELH
BEREMERIEEES625000k T (HE
M AR¥36,526,5007T) + BASBEREAE
AR#28672000EF REREBEBAR
#163,913,0007C HY# 28 I 2R 18 LA R AR EI 4218
AR 604150007 M TEH T 1EBIEIE -
ZEFIRMBERTTR EFR B INF B3%FH 8 °
2015%F - NEBERBEERE N RENHF
B AARE21250007T c BEHEME
RER2016FFREREE -

AEETESEERREGOTH B (HEH
EBRWT
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30. Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, secured bank loans of RMB40,000,000
(2015: RMB49,700,000) were secured by the Group's buildings
(2015: buildings) with the aggregate carrying amount of
RMB6,048,000 (2015: RMB22,066,000) and prepaid lease payments
with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB2,621,000 (2015:
RMB44,525,000). The secured bank loans carry interest at 4.35% to
5.22% (2015: 4.85% to 6.25%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2015, secured other loan made by a financial
institution represented borrowings of US$5,625,000 (equivalent
to RMB36,526,500) which was secured by the Group’s buildings
with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB28,672,000, plant and
machinery with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB163,913,000
and prepaid lease payments with the aggregate carrying amount
of RMB60,415,000. The loan carries interest at LIBOR+3% per
annum. During the year 2015, interest expense of RMB2,125,000
was paid and payable by the Group in relation to the loans. The
secured other loan amount has been repaid during the year 2016.

The exposures of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the
contractual maturity dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:

20165 20154
AR¥T AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ELEBE: Fixed-rate borrowings:
1F R Within one year 458,300 546,400
EANEXIES hispked In more than one year but not more
than two years 60,000 438,700
EINVESERNHERES In more than two years but not more
than five years = 60,000
518,300 1,045,100
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30.

B& (&)
Besh - AEEAT B EHFILT -

20165128310

WERSE F=

ANR#2,211,4000007C REEFFEN0%ZE15%
(AEEEBHFE
435%%6.46%)

- REIRITRIZE IR B 03%

- BERITRIERE 3%

2015128310

WEREE F=

AR#2223,730,00070 1ZEEZRFIEN0%BZE 15%
(RFEEEBHFE
6.15%%7.75%)

AR#150,5360000 WEERTTRIZEREN013%
- BBIRITRIERR B 03%

FERHERBREERN K RRBIRTRIE
KE/ BERTAEFSESD - BEEKRT
RHPBRARRITRM - MHBEARRITHE
mEEENEEE - BIIRIREE R X R
MIEEFNERENRTE - RBIRTRENR
BRTBHEEN SN BEFEERRER
BEBRTRAERSFENEENZBNE
HEHRE -

FESIZENRFEAEFHTE -

30. Borrowings (Continued)

In addition, the Group has following variable-rate borrowings:

Loan amount as
at 31 December 2016 Interest rate

RMB2,211,400,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(current year applied rate:
4.35% to 6.46%)

- LIBOR plus 3%

- HIBOR plus 3%

Loan amount as at
31 December 2015 Interest rate

RMB2,223,730,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(current year applied rate:
6.15% to 7.75%)

RMB150,536,000 LIBOR plus 3%

- HIBOR plus 3%

The variable interest rates change in accordance with the standard
lending rate and the LIBOR/HIBOR. The standard lending rate
is promulgated by the People’s Bank of China. The interest of
borrowing at standard lending rate will be reset when there is
a change in the borrowing rate promulgated by the People’s
Bank of China. The interest of borrowings at LIBOR is reset on a
quarterly basis and the interest of borrowings at HIBOR is reset on
a monthly basis.

Interest is repriced every 3 to 12 months.

pEamahte
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30. Borrowings (Continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to

contracted interest rates) are as follows:

20164 20154

2016 2015

TEEEE Fixed-rate borrowings 435% & 6.3%  4.60% & 6.65%
4.35% to 6.3% 4.60% to 6.65%

FEEE Variable-rate borrowings 4.35% % 6.46% 3.20% 2 7.20%
4.35% to 6.46% 3.20% to 7.20%

SAAR R B FBAO T B S0 DA SN B S 51 1
A EE SR

The Group'’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are

set out below:

ESH AR
FIt FIT
us$ RMB
'000 '000
2016512 A31H As at 31 December 2016 - -
20159128318 As at 31 December 2015 200,625 133,930
BT AR
Tt Tt
HK$ RMB
'000 '000
MR20165F12 H31H As at 31 December 2016 - -
R2015%12831H As at 31 December 2015 120,000 100,536

REZE2016F12831HILFE - AEBEE
+ R B ARME1757,700,0007C(20154F © AR
#51,745,528,0007T ) ¥ B HE R 52 HRSRITE X
K& 55 AR932,000,0007T (20154 © AR
#51,587,612,0007T ) B AEIK R R BRERITEI 3K o

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group obtained
new unsecured short-term bank loans in the amount of
RMB1,757,700,000 (2015: RMB1,745,528,000) and unsecured
long-term bank loans in the amount of RMB932,000,000 (2015:
RMB1,587,612,000).
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30. 6 & (&) 30. Borrowings (Continued)

RBEHR AEFBFUTARSAEES As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

I undrawn borrowing facilities:
20164 20154
AR®TF T AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
A1E A EEf Expiring within one year 806,724 2,570,500
BiA 1 F B Ef Expiring beyond one year - 100,300
806,724 2,670,800

31. EEEW A
EIEMAIED MRS R Rs
AEBBREESRANBERAE REEN
AR TS H e -

31.Deferred income

Deferred income represents government grants received in
respect of property, plant and equipment, costs incurred by the
Group in relation to development activities and the prepaid lease
payments for existing office and plant.

FEREERANETHOT Movements of deferred income during the year are as follows:
20165 20154
ARYET T AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
M1 ATH At 1 January 292,806 245,045
INE Additions 17,509 72,587
R IR Release to profit or loss (30,333) (24,826)
M®12A31H At 31 December 279,982 292,806

.-:a’."-'-".‘
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ELEWA () 31. Deferred income (Continued)
BWEFENDTAT ¢ Analysed for reporting purposes as:
2016%F 20154
ARET T ARETTT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
BIEAER 7> Current portion 27,925 28,755
JERNEAEE > Non-current portion 252,057 264,051
279,982 292,806
&I 32. Share capital
BoEE [}
Fix AREBTT
Number Share
of shares capital
‘000 RMB'000
IR0 B ITTH T B AR Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
ETE ¢ Authorised:
PR2015F X 2016%F1 A1H A K At 1 January 2015 and 2016 and
2016%F12H31H 31 December 2016 4,000,000 382,200
BETRER Issued and fully paid:
201541 818 At 1 January 2015 2,118,167 200,922
B e KT eER% D (MIsE) Share repurchased and cancelled (Note) (4,776) (382)
2016451 818 At 1 January 2016 2,113,391 200,540
B K aTsERAR D (MIaE) Share repurchased and cancelled (Note) (1,702) (143)
2016512 A31H At 31 December 2016 2,111,689 200,397

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2016 195



mEMBHERME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2016F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

32.

33

196

A (48)

Mz : RREFERN  ARABBEEHARIMA
RARBEERTEMINT

32. Share capital (Continued)

Note: During both years, the Company repurchased its own shares through The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:

SRO.1ETH B& BRI EHENAE

BE RS ZEREE BT BT BT
No. of Aggregate

ordinary shares consideration

Date of repurchase of HK$0.1 each Highest Lowest paid
HKS HKS HKS

20/1/2016 260,000 1.58 1.58 412,280
21/1/2016 492,000 1.56 1.55 773,484
26/1/2016 950,000 1.51 1.46 1,423,481
1,702,000 2,609,245

8/7/2015 3,246,000 2.12 1.8 6,082,870
24/8/2015 1,280,000 1.93 1.66 2,206,829
26/8/2015 250,000 1.9 1.74 450,514
4,776,000 8,740,213

A _ERBAD IO RE B & FE 8N

O 44 5E2,609,24578 TL(HHER AR
2,192,0007T) (20154F : 8,740,213 7L (FBER
AR#7,004,00070) ) LABEE_EilAR 15 o

FA- BEARFNBARBE  LEXE
BIARBER LETHES

AR AD 32 Y BV RIE

QR ERAFEE R R 2 0 A
STEI([E2 ) TR ER2007F 11 A16H BB
BRERMERA  HEZENARBDES
REEBREES - BIEFE  ARAESEA
MEEREE(BEARRRENBRRN
EZRES)BREBRENRERRARG -

REEBERAE —B-AFFR

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

The total amount of HK$2,609,245, equivalent to RMB2,192,000
(2015: HK$8,740,213, equivalent to RMB7,004,000) was paid to
repurchase the above shares.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year.

33. Share-based payments

The Company's Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme (the “Schemes”) were adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 16 November 2007 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees. Under
the Schemes, the board of directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

Ealatte
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20165 K2015F 128318 * XA AHEE
BIIENRIERT I TR E R L R AR TE B AR
BEEE 3 M AT IR A7 o

M2016F128318 » BRETE THERS
R ARITEBRERN S RAORGEE ATR
(20154F : 135,900,0000% ) * HHERARFE
HEEB/TARHDE0%(20159F © 6.43%) °

BRENEERERFBNT
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33. Share-based payments (Continued)

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, none of share in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

At 31 December 2016, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme was nil (2015: 135,900,000), representing 0%
(2015: 6.43%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

REH A
IR LB BEH THEHA THEE BN FE
Fair value
Exercise at grant
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price date
BHRAHBEABRENE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:
B RESTE -
Share Option Scheme:
RTEENERE
Options to directors
FEARAEA 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2012  01/06/2012201/06/2016  8.13/8 7T 3.067%8 7T
Option A 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2012 01/06/2012 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.067
FEARAES 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2013  01/06/2013E01/06/2016  8.13/8 7T 3201787C
Option B 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2013 01/06/2013 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.201
FERRHEC 1/6/2011 01/06/2011ZE01/06/2014  01/06/2014F01/06/2016  8.1377T 33148 7T
Option C 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2014 01/06/2014 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3314
FERR#ED 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2015  01/06/2015501/06/2016 81387 341177T
Option D 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2015 01/06/2015 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.411
BT EENERE
Options to employees
AR AL 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2012  01/06/2012201/06/2016  8.13/8 7T 3.0677%87C
Option E 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2012 01/06/2012 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.067
R AEF 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2013  01/06/2013E01/06/2016  8.1377T 3201787C
Option F 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2013  01/06/2013 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.201
FERRHEG 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2014  01/06/2014%01/06/2016  8.13/87T 331487
Option G 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2014 01/06/2014 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.314
5 A% e 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2015  01/06/2015%01/06/2016  8.1387T 3411787
Option H 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2015 01/06/2015 t0-01/06/2016~ HKS$8:13 HKS$3.411

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2016 197



mEMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Z2016% 1231 BIFF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2016

33. AR 0 X RYFRIE (&) 33. Share-based payments (Continued)

A RYRIFBEEHZ2016F12A31BIEFER The following table discloses the movement of the share options
BicEES) during the year ended 31 December 2016:

R20165F1H1H 7A20165F12H31H

e RATHE 2R K e RATHE

TR T TR

Outstanding Outstanding at

at 1.1.2016 Forfeited 31.12.2016

BB AR R Option type ‘000 000 ‘000

BERSHEA Option A 8,000 (8,000) =

FEARHEB Option B 8,000 (8,000) =

FERRHEC Option C 8,000 (8,000) =

FERHED Option D 8,000 (8,000) =

RS HEE Option E 25,975 (25,975) =

B AR Er Option F 25,975 (25,975) =

FEARHEG Option G 25,975 (25,975) =

FE AR HEH Option H 25,975 (25,975) =

135,900 (135,900) =

20165FFF 4B Exercisable at the end of the year

AJfTfE 2016 -
8.13} 7T 8.13} 87T
INHEFITTE(E  Weighted average exercise price HK$8.13 HK$8.13

198 REKEBERAF —B—RFFR



33. MR RV FRIE (48)

LATRBRIBEEE2015F 12831 ILEEH
B RS

REMBHRERME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B E2016F 12431 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

33. Share-based payments (Continued)

The following table discloses the movement of the share options
during the year ended 31 December 2015:

201591 18 2015512 A318
BRI TE BRI B AR T
T T T
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1.1.2015 Forfeited 31.12.2015
BENSHESE R Option type '000 '000 '000
BERRAEA Option A 8,500 = 8,500
AR HEB Option B 8,500 = 8,500
BB EC Option C 8,500 = 8,500
FEIRHED Option D 8,500 = 8,500
BB RS EE Option E 26,825 (1,350) 25,475
R HEF Option F 26,825 (1,350) 25,475
FEARHEG Option G 26,825 (1,350) 25,475
RN Option H 26,825 (1,350) 25,475
141,300 (5,400) 135,900

2015FFF 4B Exercisable at the end of the year
TR 2015 135,900
8137 8138 7T
INHEFITTE(E  Weighted average exercise price HK$8.13 HK$8.13

REHBH G20 Ee A1 B EE
fi% 1 N B A A R #405,174,0007T © HEER
FEUAENE -FRATEREEERA

B o
Ea

B E2016F12A3BIEFE KEERAK
NRIERENEREEZAIARES T
(20154 © AFR#59,524,0007T) °

The estimated fair values of the options granted on 1 June 2011
at the date of grant was RMB405,174,000. These fair values were
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

The Group recognised the expense of RMB nil for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: RMB9,524,000) in relation to share
options granted by the Company.
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34.

200

iR

20165124318 + ANEE & R EE R FIE

34. Commitments

At 31 December 2016, the Group had outstanding commitments

N as follows:
20164 20154
ARBT AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
BIRRE Capital Commitments
EREWEYE - S NEREMNEARSE  Capital expenditure in respect of
it BETAERELRE M BHRENAN acquisition of property, plant and
B equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 14,204 30,035
Hith &g Other Commitments
ERELEREZERMENMIA  Construction commitment contracted
& BRI ERESEMBEEREA in respect of properties under
g development for sale contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 70,681 92,298
84,885 122,333

REEBERAE —B-AFFR
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35. fHERE 35.Lease commitments

AEBERABEA The Group as lessee
20164 20154
AR¥TT AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

FREMELEHEREBESMAE Minimum lease payments paid under
operating leases during the year:
SUES Premises 1,978 2,537
FHE Leasehold land 3,113 9,280
5,091 11,817
REpdE HEIR - AEERIBEABEK ST At the end of the reporting date, the Group had commitments for
EAEAESEEES NN HIHS R0 future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
N leases which fall due as follows:
2016%F 20154
ARBTR ARETFT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
TR Within one year 6,256 5,971
E2EEFEF(BIEEREMF) In the second and fifth inclusive 25,024 23,834
HBIRSF Over five years 48,339 52,114
79,619 81,919
AT ENF T B AERGEE T+ HuE Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the
RS - AL E 880204 - Group for certain lands. Leases are negotiated for an average term
of 20 years.
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36. BEALTRS

FA - BREAMBEMRAEIIES - NEE
RETMIIREALRS ¢

(a) BEEMH

36. Related party transactions

Other than set out in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following related party transactions during
the year:

(a) Purchase of raw materials

20165 20154

AR¥T T ARETF T

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

FEFE AT AR R R 2 Non-controlling interest 1,780 3,513

(b) TEEEASHM
FRCEFREMERERAENHE

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

mE management during the year was as follows:
2016%F 20154
ARBT T ARETT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEEEEA Short-term employee benefits 32,892 37,275
RIREF Post-employment benefits 5,006 17
BYES TETHAER Share options granted to directors,
E2EEANB BB chief executive and key management
personnel - 5773
37,898 43,065

RKEF T E

AEBEFENEES P ESEDT BT
EMBEZOR KRN K E - AEBEZAR
ArEIERE T A L (RFMRARE) - 1F
REBENNES - ARENKE-EETRY
A ERTEIERIREHK -

37

.

37. Retirement benefits plans

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local governments in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

Ealss
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38. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company

38. A QA B D AT
RNER-CYe Egfi/
il PEEL L it vEE ifdERE
n
Country of
incorporation Paid up issued/
or registration/ registered share
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share held capital
00
RERAT 48 iftan ARBed1 3607
Dongyue Polymers PRC Registered capital RMBod1 360
REHT Gl Bl ARE3000T
Dongyue Chemicals PRC Registered capital RMB340,000
REEx Gl iftén A
Dongyue Salt PRC Registered capital RMB0,000
RERERAIIARAT  7E iftén AR 16677
(Hita) RC Regstered capid RBI2667
Dongying Dongyue Precision
Chemicals Co, Ltd (Note &)
REAR o ifiax ARBa0m0r
Dongyue Fluo-Silcon PRC Registered capital RAB400,000
Hong Kong Talitemationsl &% iR 10047
Tiading Co, i (Bf3ED) K Registered capiel HD100
Hong Kong Talli International
Trading Co, Ltd. (Note b)
REAME i iftes AREs00007
Dongyue Organasiicon PRC Regstered captal RB630,000
REERECEANTARDY E ifiax ARET000T
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak ~ PRC Regstered capital RMB70,000

Fluorine Chemicals Co, Ltd.

KARAEHERERLA
ER B KARFRAZENA TEER
0eE  W5E 0eE  NSE w6E N5E
% % % % % %
Proportion ownership interest
held by the Company Proportion of voting power
Directly Indirectly held by the Company  Principal activities
2016 015 2016 015 2016 2015
% % % % % %
10000 5 00 HERHEINELE
Manufacture and sale of
polytetrafuoroethylene
- 10000 10000 SHERHERSE
Manufacture and sale of
refrgerant
- 6000 600 AERHEE
Production and sales of salt
250 071 Ul HEREERE
Production and sales of
broming
§79 138 80 PEREERRALN
Manufacture and sales of
methane chloride
10000 - 00 HEEER
Sale of chemical products
800 1600 10000 BEREEABENH
Manufacture and sale of

5100

5100

organosiicon materal

BERHERKELE
Manufacture and sale of
anhydrous fluorie
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38. AR T B RFIE (&)

38. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company

(Continued)
ifRIgEE/ B&fi/ ROAREHRRRRLH
il PEEs €863 FERHRR fdERa B 3 KMAFEREEH TERE
WeE  N5E - weE 0F weE E
T % b % % % %
Country of
incorporation Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest
or registration/ registered share held by the Company Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation (Class of share held capital Directly Indirectly held by the Company  Principal activities
2016 2015 2016 15 216 005
000 % % % % % %
FRERREARLA(NE) 7 ifén ARB300T - - W00 nm 800 0 REREEER
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co, Ltd.  PRC Registered captal RMB,000 Manufacture and sal of
(Note ¢ fluorite
REERERNMERLT 98 ifiax ARES000T - - 1000 im0 10000 0000 FEREERR
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Fluorine  PRC Registered captal RB30000 Manufacture and sale of
Chemicals Co, Lid. fluorite
URRERASHHERDT 98 iftén AR50 - SO0 s S0 S0 BEREEEEE
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe PRC Registered captal AMBTI5,700 Manufacture and sale of
Fluorine Chericals Co, Ltd. silicone rubber
URRERAERARL 98 iftax ARBB000T - - 10000 00 10000 000 HERE
Shandong Dongyue Union PRC Registered capital RIBB0000 Property development
Property Co, Lid.
ERREAREAARLT  9E ifiEx AR 007 10000 q00 10000 000 HEKIER
Huangtai Dongyue Intemational ~ PAC Registered capital RMBS, 000 Sale of chemical products
Trade Co, Ltd.
25 Gl iftén ARE10007 10000 100 10000 0000 HEREELERATIER
Huaia Shenzhou PRC Regstered capital RMB10,000 Manufacture and sale of
fluoropolymer
J e --‘.‘
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38. XA FEIMB A R FIE (&) 38. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company
(Continued)
RELL - WBARMERITEMERES None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
BT BB ARG ARANDE - of the year. All the PRC subsidiaries are domestic enterprises.
a5 - Notes:
@ RERFBECLIERABDNREZR2015F12A8 (@) Dongying Dongyue Precision Chemicals Co., Ltd. had increased its
3TEIEFEENEFMEARE ARK12,667,000 registered capital to RMB12,667,000 during the year ended 31 December
JT °© 2015.
(b)  Hong Kong Taili International Co., Ltd. &R EE (b)  HongKong Taili International Co., Ltd., a 100% subsidiary of Dongyue
E100%M B AR - BARABNR2014F6 A3A K Group, has been set up by the Company on 3 June 2014.
S0
(0 FEFEFEEFMRARNREZ2014F12H31H () Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co,, Ltd had increased its registered capital to
IEFEIEINE M E A ZE ARK9,000,0007T © RMB9,000,000 during the year end 31 December 2014,
39. Zx A B B FS HA SR AR 39.Summarised statement of financial
position of the Company
20164 20154
AR¥T T AREFT
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
R B AR M E Investments in subsidiaries 1,524,547 1,524,547
AR ERE Available-for-sale investments 126,256 126,256
RITHER MRS Bank balances and cash 36,324 31,636
HimeEE Other current assets 219 64,914
HEMReasE Other current liabilities (7,532) (69,646)
HuIERE AR Other non-current liabilities - (33,512)
1,679,814 1,644,195
[N Share capital 200,397 200,540
& (MRE) Reserves (Note) 1,479,417 1,443,655
1,679,814 1,644,195
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39. AN A B AR R R AR (48)

39.Summarised statement of financial

position of the Company (Continued)

MizE - Note:
EEE Movement in the reserves:
REE BRERE BXHE KREBEA @t
ARBFIT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Share
Share option Capital Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
201541 A1 H &% Balance at 1 January 2015 1,233,594 382,319 200,344 (364,199) 1,452,058
FRHEF R EZERALEE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 140,440 140,440
[SENES Dividends paid - - - (151,746) (151,746)
R 2 AN X508 Recognition of equity-settled
shared-based payments - 9,525 - - 9,525
[EpSEES2leh) Shares repurchased and cancelled (6,622) - - - (6,622)
2015% 12 A31 B 4% Balance at 31 December 2015 1,226,972 391,844 200,344 (375,505) 1,443,655
FRREF R EEBRALTE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 37,810 37,810
B AR A 2R Lapsed of share options - (391,844) - 391,844 -
FE O] R st iy Repurchased and cancelled (2,048) - - - (2,048)
2016%F12 831 H # 8k Balance at 31 December 2016 1,224,924 - 200,344 54,149 1479417

40. L AR S MR

EEGR2017F5A31 A HE RIRHETIZRR A M ER
2% °
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40. Approval of the consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 May 2017.



Five-Year Fina

BEEREE Assets and liabilities
RW12A31H
As at 31 December
20125 2013 20144 20154
AREFT AREFT ARETT AR®T:R
2012 2013 2014 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
EEME Total Assets 8,777,989 10,032,631 12,003,560 11,500,728
8BRS Total Liabilities (3,551,131) (4,521,803) (6,105,756) (6,428,353)
5,226,858 5,510,828 5,897,804 5,072,375
RABHEAEGER Equity attributable to Owners

of the Company 4948315 5,266,849 5,640,807 4,801,539
FERBRRER Non-controlling interests 278,543 243,979 256,997 270,836
5,226,858 5,510,828 5,897,804 5072375
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Five-Year Financial Summary

E ¥ Financial results
BZE12R31HLEEE
Year ended 31 December
2012%F 20134 20145 2015% 20165
ARETTT ARETTL AREFTT AREBTTL ARETR
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
& Revenue 7,050,822 6,782,814 7,599,696 7,032,486 7,969,773
HEMK Cost of sales (5,367,436) (5,686,752) (6,383,611) (5,863,519) (6,328,718)
E7 Gross profit 1,683,386 1,096,062 (1,216,085) 1,168,967 1,641,055
Heple A Other income 117,817 178,186 290,501 343,949 186,667
DEMBEERST REFREE  Distribution and selling expenses
and intangible asset (209,912) (253,976) (251,209) (251,284) (283,058)
THRS Administrative expenses (367,203) (298,483) (289,791) (261,116) (387,610)
ARPERERE Impairment of available-for-sale
investments - - - - (42,324)
B EERE Impairment of intangible assets - - - (40,000) =
MEEE Assets written off - - - (1,478,200) -
M7 R FEEY Research and development expenses (33,764) (71,668) (73,398) (69,797) (73,947)
MERA Finance costs (136,076) (89,065) (201,441) (208,663) (166,229)
FribE e AREE Share of results of associates 324 445 283 (573) (12,440)
BRBLATRF Profit before tax 1,054,572 561,501 691,030 (796,717) 862,114
Fr5R Y Income tax expense (347,509) (124,275) (194,034) 115,780 (246,648)
REERFR2EBALLE  Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 707,063 437,226 496,996 (680,937) 615,466
TEEFEEEFNRZEBA Profit and total comprehensive
(AX) %8 income (expense) attributable to:
VUNIE =N Owners of the Company 713,056 465,398 483,276 (690,479) 588,154
JEER AR R A Non-controlling interests (5,993) (28672) 13,720 9,542 27,312
707,063 437,226 496,996 (680,937) 615,466
Eea --‘.‘
208 HREEEERAT —E—XREER



EERE

Vistra (Cayman) Limited
P.OBox 31119

Grand Pavillion, Hibiscus Way
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Corporate Information

Registered office

Vistra (Cayman) Limited
P.OBox 31119

Grand Pavillion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of business in the PRC

Dongyue International Fluoro
Silicone Material Industry Park
Zibo City

Shandong Province the PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Flat 02, 15th Floor, AXA Centre
151 Gloucester Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

Website address

www.dongyuechem.com

Directors
Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. FU Kwan

Mr. LIU Chuangi

Mr. CUI Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned on 2 May 2017)

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 2 May 2017)

Dr. FENG Jianjun (resigned on 2 May 2017)

Mr. ZHANG Bishu (appointed on 2 May 2017)

Mr. ZHANG lJian
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Corporate Information

BIFHITES Independent non-executive directors
TRERE Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen

BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

EEREE Mr. YUE Rundong

NRIWE Company secretary

BrEEL T Ms. Chung Tak Lai

RERRK Authorized representatives
HEEE Mr. FU Kwan

BEELL Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai

EREES Audit committee
TRERE(ERE) Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
BB LA Mr. YANG Xiaoyong

EREREE Mr. YUE Rundong

FMEES Remuneration committee
BEBEEE(FE) Mr. YANG Xiaoyong (Chairman)
TRERE Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
RIERFEAE Mr. ZHANG Jianhong

REZESE Nomination committee
REREE(EE) Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
TRIEBEAE Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen

BB LA Mr. YANG Xiaoyong

TEEREZE Corporate Governance Committee
REREE(EE) Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
EFEE Mr. LIU Chuangi

IEEE S (R20174E5 52 H BFIF)
SRINE S (RO0174E5 H2 A IEZ1F)
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Mr. FENG Jianjun (resigned on 2 May 2017)
Mr. ZHANG Bishu (appointed on 2 May 2017)
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SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House

3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman lIslands
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REEHR

Corporate Information

Risk Management Committee

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Xiaoyung
Mr. Yue Rundong

Principal share registrar and transfer office

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House

3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal bankers

China Construction Bank Corporation
Huantai Branch

134 Jianshe Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

7 Zhangbei Road

Zibo Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

48 Heng Huan Road
Zibo City, Huantai
Shandong Province, PRC
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Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

101 Zhongxin Road

Suo Zhen

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

China Everbright Bank Company Ltd.
Zibo Branch

107 Liu Quan Road

Gaoxin District

Zibo Shandong Province PRC

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Zibo Branch

103 Liu Quan Road

Gaoxin District

Zibo Shandong Province PRC

Investor relations consultant

Investor Connect Advisory
12th Floor, Infinitus Plaza
199 Des Voeux Road Central
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

External legal advisor

Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong
Baker & McKenzie Hong Kong

Stock code
189
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Dongyue International Fluoro Silicone Material Industry Park

E&E Tel: (0086) 533 8510072
{5 E Fax: (0086) 533 8513000
#81E Website: http://www.dongyuechem.com
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